
 

 
1 

Committee Administrator 
Sally Gabriel 

Tel:  01884 234229 
E-Mail: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk 

 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  Members of the public wishing to speak to a planning application 
are requested to contact the Committee Administrator before the meeting starts.  
 

MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
A MEETING of the PLANNING COMMITTEE will be held in the Town Hall on 
Wednesday, 3 June 2015 at 2.15 pm 
 

The next ordinary meeting of the Committee will take place on Wednesday, 1 
July 2015 at 2.15 pm in the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Tiverton 

 
KEVIN FINAN 
Chief Executive 
26 May 2015 
 
Councillors: Mrs H Bainbridge, Mrs J B Binks, K Busch, Mrs C Collis, 
Mrs F J Colthorpe, R Dolley, J M Downes, S G Flaws, P J Heal, D J Knowles, 
R F Radford, J Smith, J D Squire and R L Stanley 
 

A G E N D A 
 

MEMBES ARE REMINDED OF THE NEED TO MAKE DECLARATIONS OF 
INTEREST PRIOR TO ANY DISCUSSION WHICH MAY TAKE PLACE 

 
1   ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   

To elect a Chairman for the municipal year 2015/16. 
 

2   ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN   
To elect a Vice Chairman for the Municipal Year 2015/16 
 

3   APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS   
To receive any apologies for absence and notices of appointment of 
substitute. 
 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   
To receive any questions relating to items on the Agenda from members 
of the public and replies thereto. 
 
Note: A maximum of 30 minutes is allowed for this item. 
 

5   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 5 - 22) 
To receive the minutes of the previous meeting (attached). 
 

6   CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS   

Public Document Pack



 

 
2 

To receive any announcements the Chairman may wish to make.   
 

7   DEFERRALS FROM THE PLANS LIST   
To report any items appearing in the Plans List which have been 
deferred.  
 

8   THE PLANS LIST  (Pages 23 - 90) 
To consider the planning applications contained in the list. 
 

9   THE DELEGATED LIST  (Pages 91 - 124) 
To be noted. 
 

10   MAJOR APPLICATIONS WITH NO DECISION  (Pages 125 - 126) 
List attached for consideration of major applications and potential site 
visits. 
 

11   APPEAL DECISIONS  (Pages 127 - 128) 
To receive for information a list of recent appeal decisions.  
 

12   APPLICATION 99/03432/FULL - CONVERSION OF REDUNDANT 
FARM BUILDING TO AN AGRICULTURAL WORKERS DWELLING 
AT HARTNOLL FARM, HALBERTON  (Pages 129 - 132) 
Report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration regarding a request 
for a variation to the S106 legal agreement.  This item had been 
deferred at the previous meeting to allow for further negotiations to take 
place. 
 

13   START TIME OF MEETINGS   
To agree a start time for meetings for the municipal year. 
 

 
 
The Human Rights Act 1998 came into force on 2nd October 2000.  It requires all public authorities 
to act in a way which is compatible with the European Convention on Human Rights.  The reports 
within this agenda have been prepared in light of the Council's obligations under the Act with 
regard to decisions to be informed by the principles of fair balance and non-discrimination. 

 
Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and 
public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, as 
directed by the Chairman. Any filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible from a 
single fixed position without the use of any additional lighting; focusing only on those 
actively participating in the meeting and having regard also to the wishes of any 
member of the public present who may not wish to be filmed. As a matter of courtesy, 
anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chairman or the Member 
Services Officer in attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is 
happening.  
 
Members of the public may also use other forms of social media to report on 
proceedings at this meeting. 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting and listen to discussion. Lift 
access to the Council Chamber on the first floor of the building is available from the 
main ground floor entrance. Toilet facilities, with wheelchair access, are also available. 



 

 
3 

There is time set aside at the beginning of the meeting to allow the public to ask 
questions. 
 
An induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone wearing a hearing aid or using 
a transmitter. If you require any further information, or 
 
If you would like a copy of the Agenda in another format (for example in large print) 
please contact Sally Gabriel on: 
Tel: 01884 234229 
Fax:  
E-Mail: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk 
 
Public Wi-Fi is available in all meeting rooms. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 215 

MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
MINUTES of a MEETING of the PLANNING COMMITTEE held on 22 April 2015 at 
2.15 pm 
 
Present   
Councillors 
 

Mrs F J Colthorpe (Chairman) 
Mrs H Bainbridge, M D Binks, 
Mrs D L Brandon, J M Downes, 
A V G Griffiths, P J Heal, Mrs L J Holloway, 
D J Knowles, E G  Luxton, R F Radford, 
J D Squire, Mrs M E Squires (Vice 
Chairman), R L Stanley and K D Wilson 
 

Present  
Officers:  
 

Jenny Clifford (Head of Planning and 
Regeneration), Thea Billeter (Area Planning 
Officer), Tina Maryan (Area Planning 
Officer), Reg Willing (Enforcement Officer) 
and Sarah Lees (Member Services Officer) 
 

Also in  
attendance:  I Sorrenson (Devon County Council,  

Highways Authority) 
 
 

185 APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

186 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
 
Mr Welchman, referring to item 5 on the agenda (Chettiscombe Estate) stated that he 
had heard this week that part of the application to build on land south of West Manley 
Lane had been removed, was this correct and if it was, could future consideration be 
given to designating this area as a green buffer zone? He also stated that this 
application had been dealt with on party political lines and that the discussion today 
was happening very close to a general election. He further stated that a future 
government may have a different planning vision and he urged the Committee to 
defer the whole process until after the general election. 
 
The Chairman stated that Members of the Committee were trained to set party 
politics aside and that answers to his questions would be given as part of the officer’s 
presentation. 
 

187 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 1 April 2015 were approved as a correct record 
and SIGNED by the Chairman. 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 216 

188 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Chairman had the following announcements to make: 
 

1. She welcomed Mrs Jenny Clifford to the Committee in her new role as Head of 
Planning and Regeneration. She had been remiss in not doing this at the last 
meeting but stated that she had always found Mrs Clifford to be very reliable 
and capable of finding solutions to complex planning issues. 

 
2. Three members of the Committee would not be returning after the election 

having chosen not to stand. These were Councillors Mrs Diane Brandon, Mrs 
Linda Holloway and Alan Griffiths. She stated that they had been stalwart in 
their attendance in what was one of the most difficult jobs on the Council. A 
great deal was expected of Planning Committee Members with issues 
sometimes putting them at odds with their constituents. She was grateful for 
the honour they had bestowed in having appointed her as Chairman and she 
thanked them for their trust in her. She wished them well for the future. 

 
189 14/008871/MOUT OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT 

COMPRISING UP TO 700 DWELLINGS, 22,000 SQUARE METRES OF B1/B8 
EMPLOYMENT LAND, CARE HOME, PRIMARY SCHOOL AND 
NEIGHBOURHOOD CENTRE WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS INCLUDING A LEFT 
IN LEFT OUT JUNCTION ON THE WESTBOUND A361 (ALREADY PERMITTED 
UNDER LPA REFS 14/00667/MFUL AND 14/01168/MFUL AND ACCESS AND 
EGRESS ONTO BLUNDELLS ROAD, TIVERTON (00:09:40)  
 
The Committee had before it a report * of the Head of Planning and Regeneration 
regarding the above application. She informed those present that this application had 
been considered at a meeting of the Planning Committee on 1 April 2015. The 
Committee had resolved that the application be deferred to allow for further 
consideration of the development approach to West Manley Lane in respect of 
access points, traffic and development on the southern side. She further explained 
that the applicant had sought to address these issues by: 
 

 Submitting a new site location plan that removed the area of land south of 
West Manley Lane from the red line application site. This area was now 
excluded from the application. 

 Having withdrawn plan C698/26 ‘West Manley Lane Access Layouts’. This 
plan which previously showed proposed access points both north and south of 
West Manley Lane was no longer part of the application. 

 
Referring to the questions raised by Mr Welchman at public question time, the Head 
of Planning and Regeneration confirmed that in respect of his first question the 
explanation above did indeed confirm development of the land south of West Manley 
Lane had been removed from the application. In relation to deferring a decision on 
this outline application until after the general election she stated that the day to day 
running of a planning service could not be held up by an election: decisions still had 
to be made. Planning Committee was not political. Should there be a change of 
perspective with a new Government this would take some time to filter through. 
Decisions are made against the policies and planning guidance that exist on the day 
of decision. She saw no advantage in deferring a decision any further. 
 

Page 6



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 217 

Discussion followed with regard to: 
 

 Whether or not the applicant could apply to build on the land south of West 
Manley Lane in the future? The Head of Planning and Regeneration stated 
that it was not possible to pre-empt what the applicant might or might not 
submit in the future. Members and the public still had an opportunity until 27 
April to submit formal representation regarding the Local Plan Review 
consultation and could further comment on this area should they wish to. 

 A desire to see roundabouts being landscaped as this was a ‘garden 
development’. However, it was explained that the appearance, landscaping 
and detailed layout of roundabouts were reserved matters and would be dealt 
with at the next planning stage. A noise assessment would also be conducted 
at the next stage. 

 The question was asked as to what the distance was from the last property in 
Post Hill to the first access point off the proposed roundabout, this was 
confirmed as being 9 metres to the back of the footpath. 

 
It was therefore RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to the 
signing of a Section 106 Agreement and the conditions as set out in the report. 
 
(Proposed by Cllr K D Wilson and seconded by Cllr R L Stanley) 
 
Notes: 
 

i. Cllrs: D J Knowles and K D Wilson declared personal interests in that they had 
had significant meetings with local residents and objectors to do with this 
application and they knew the applicant. 

 
ii. Cllr Mrs F J Colthorpe declared a personal interest as she knew the applicant. 

 
iii. Cllr R L Stanley declared a personal interest as he had met with local 

residents and objectors regarding this application.- 
 
iv. Sir Ian Amory (applicant) spoke; 

 
v. Mr Sorenson (Devon County Council (Highway Authority)) spoke; 

 
*Report previously circulated, copy attached to signed Minutes. 
 

190 ENFORCEMENT LIST (00:35:20)  
 
Consideration was given to the following cases in the Enforcement List *: 
 
Note: *List previously circulated; copy attached to the signed Minutes. 
 
Arising thereon: 
 
No. 1 in the Enforcement List (Enforcement case ENF/14/00124/UDRU – Without 
planning permission, an unauthorised development has commenced on land 
north of the A38. The development comprises of a change of use of land from a 
vehicle repair garage on part of the site and land used for lorry parking on the 

Page 7



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 218 

remainder of the land to a mixed use – Land at NGR 308125 115944 north of the 
A38, Maidendown Stage, Burlescombe). 
 
The Planning Enforcement Officer outlined the contents of the report, stating this had 
been brought back to Committee with a revised site plan. 
 
Discussion took place with regard to: 
 

 Burlescombe Parish Council discussing the site on several occasions and 
requesting action to be taken. 

 The need for Members to have sight of the previous set of enforcement 
instructions. 

 
It was RESOLVED that the Legal Services Manager be authorised to take any 
appropriate legal action including the service of an enforcement notice. In the event 
of any failure to comply with the notice served, the additional authority to prosecute, 
take direct action and/or seek a court injunction. 
 
(Proposed by Cllr Mrs H Bainbridge and seconded by Cllr Mrs L J Holloway) 
 
Note: 
 
Cllr P J Heal declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest as the applicant had 
purchased goods from his business and left the meeting during the discussion 
thereon. 
 
No. 2 in the Enforcement List (Enforcement case ENF/15/00041/UDUR – Without 
planning permission, the carrying out of engineering works to raise the ground 
level at the north eastern boundary and erection of close boarded fence close 
to the boundary, alleged to be above the 2 metre permitted development height 
at Clouds, Barnfield, Crediton). 
 
The Planning Enforcement Officer outlined the contents of the report stating that the 
matter referred to a building site which was at the rear of Clouds backing onto 
properties in Mount Pleasant, Park Street. The site was on a north facing slope and 
was formerly an orchard. He referred the Committee to the update sheet which 
stated that the Council’s Tree Officer had visited the site on 17 April and had 
concluded the area of the garden in question lay outside of the Conservation Area 
and the trees within it were not worthy of protection. 
 
He went on to explain that the main issue was to do with a change in soil levels (due 
to the slope) and the erection of fence at the boundary. An allegation had been made 
that close board fencing had been erected on a false level of ground. However, in his 
view the soil build up had not occurred as a result of development and stated that the 
fence was within the maximum height allowed therefore there was not enough 
evidence to indicate a breach had taken place. 
 
Discussion took place with regard to: 
 

 A condition in the previously granted application that required a Devon hedge 
to be installed not what was currently in situ, although it was confirmed that it 
was the developers intention to install a Devon hedge in time on their side. 

Page 8



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 219 

 A build up of soil, debris and vegetation under the shutter boards into the 
complainant’s garden. 

 The height of the fence being above the existing post height. 

 The Committee having sympathy with the complainant. 

 The Planning Enforcement Officer having no means, having surveyed the site, 
to judge where the natural height of the land was other than at a fixed point 
inspection cover. Taking measurements from surrounding gardens could be 
problematic in that they may have been landscaped over the years and there 
was no datum point to take levels from. 

 An inability to judge whether the wire fence was the true boundary. 

 Had the site not been developed the soil would not have washed down. 

 The ground had not yet been measured from the complainant’s side of the 
fence. 

 
It was RESOLVED that the matter be deferred to allow the Planning Enforcement 
Officer to return to the site in question in order to take further measurements, in so 
far as that was possible, and to negotiate with the developer and the complainant as 
to the best way forward. 
 
(Proposed by Cllr K D Wilson and seconded by Cllr J M Downes) 
 
Notes: 
 

i. Cllrs: Mrs H Bainbridge, M D Binks, Mrs D L Brandon, Mrs F J Colthorpe, J M 
Downes, P J Heal, D J Knowles, R F Radford, J D Squire, Mrs M E Squires 
and R L Stanley made declarations in accordance with the Protocol of Good 
Practice for Councillors dealing in planning matters as they had received 
correspondence regarding this application.  

 
ii. Mr Perks (complainant) spoke; 

 
iii. The Ward Member, Cllr J M Downes spoke; 

 
iv. The following late information was reported: 

 
21st April 2015 
 
The Local Authority Tree Officer visited the site on Friday 17th April. The area of 
garden in question lies outside the Conservation Area and the trees are not worthy of 
protection by way of a Tree Preservation Order. The change in soil level could lead to 
rot damage for the trees, but is difficult to predict. The soil should be removed from 
around the trees and would not involve a lot of soil because of the relatively small 
root protection areas of the trees. 
 
 

191 DEFERRALS FROM THE PLANS LIST (01:33:03)  
 
There were no deferrals from the Plans List. 
 

192 THE PLANS LIST (01:33:12)  
 
The Committee considered the applications in the Plans List *. 

Page 9



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 220 

 
Note: * List previously circulated; copy attached to the signed Minutes. 
 

(a) No 1 on the Plans List (14/01949/MFUL - Change of use of land from 
agriculture to the installation and operation of a solar PV park to generate up to 
5MW of power (site area 12.26 hectares) to include associated infrastructure 
(Revised Scheme) at Land at NGR 302663 109953 (Stoneshill Farm), Willand 
Road, Cullompton.) 
 
The Area Planning Officer outlined the contents of the report * by way of presentation 
of the application drawings and showing a number of photographs from different 
angles around the site. She informed those present that a site visit by the Committee 
had taken place the previous day. She referred Members to the update sheet which 
informed them that a revised site layout had just been received following objections 
raised by the Environment Agency. This had removed panels from the flood plain 
area. The Environment Agency were happy in principle with the new drainage 
proposal which proposed the provision of a number of bunded swales across the site 
and drainage pipes located on the downslope of each swale. As a result of this she 
stated that the second reason for refusal contained with the officer report had now 
been withdrawn. 
 
Discussion took place with regard to: 
 

 The question was raised as to whether policy COR10 dealing with strategic 
transport networks should have been listed within the report? The Head of 
Planning and Regeneration stated that she did not feel the proposal would 
compromise the function on the mainline railway and this could not be used as 
a reason for refusal. 

 If approved every access into the village would have a view of a solar farm. 

 There was a lot of public support for this application especially given the 
landowner no longer had a shop to generate income. 

 The site visit had shown how visible the site was and there was a concern 
regarding cumulative effect given the proximity of two further solar PV parks in 
the vicinity. 

 The visibility and impact of the development from the B3181 road adjacent to 
the proposed site  

 
RESOLVED that planning permission for this application be refused for the following 
reasons: 
 
1. The proposed solar PV arrays would be installed on grade 3a agricultural land, 

classed as being the Best and Most Versatile. In the opinion of the Local Planning 
Authority the proposal would take the land out of arable production for the 25 year 
duration of the proposal and insufficient evidence has been provided to 
demonstrate that there is no other land of lesser agricultural quality which is 
available and suitable for the proposed installation. The applicant's submitted 
sequential analysis is insufficient for this purpose as it only considers sites within 
close proximity to the proposed grid connection point and not potential sites 
further afield. The Local Planning Authority cannot be satisfied that the 
development is directed to the most appropriate parcel of land. It is considered 
that the harm caused by the loss of the Grade 3a land for arable purposes 
outweighs the benefits of the proposal in respect of its contribution toward 

Page 10



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 221 

renewable energy production and it is therefore contrary to policy DM5 of the 
Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies), the National Planning 
Policy Framework and the government's published Planning Practice Guidance. 
 

2. In the opinion of the local Planning Authority due to the scale, design and siting of 
the proposed solar PV installation the development is likely to have a significant 
adverse impact on the visual amenity of the surrounding area. There are both 
short and middle distance views of the site from the surrounding area which 
would be altered as a result of the solar PV development to the detriment of the 
visual quality of the area. The application is considered contrary to policies COR2 
and COR5 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy 2007 (Local Plan Part 1), policies 
DM2 and DM5 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management policies) and 
the National Planning Policy Framework and governments published planning 
practice guidance. 

 
3. The proposed scheme by reason of its prominent location close to one of the 

main approach roads to Willand, in combination with other solar schemes also on 
other main approaches to the village is considered to have an unacceptable 
cumulative impact upon the character of the area contrary to policies COR2 and 
COR5 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy 2007 (Local Plan Part 1), policies DM2 
and DM5 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management policies) and the 
National Planning Policy Framework and the Governments published planning 
practice guidance. 

 
(Proposed by Cllr Mrs D L Brandon and seconded by Cllr K D Wilson) 
 
Notes: 
 

i. Cllrs: Mrs H Bainbridge, M D Binks, D L Brandon, Mrs F J Colthorpe, J M 
Downes, A V G Griffiths, P J Heal, Mrs L J Holloway, D J Knowles, E G 
Luxton, R F Radford, J D Squire, Mrs M E Squires, R L Stanley and K D 
Wilson made declarations in accordance with the Protocol of Good Practice 
for Councillors in dealing with planning matters as they had received 
correspondence regarding this application. 

 
ii. Cllr Mrs D L Brandon declared a personal interest in that she had had a 

meeting with the applicant and knew the landowner. 
 

iii. Cllr K D Wilson declared a personal interest in that he had had a meeting with 
a representative of the applicant. 

 
iv. Mr Bell (Applicant) spoke; 

 
v. Cllr Ursell (Willand Parish Council) spoke; 

 
vi. Ward Members, Cllrs Mrs D L Brandon and R J Chesterton spoke; 

 
vii. The following late information was reported: 

 
Revised flood risk assessment received including a drainage strategy proposing the 
provision of a number of bunded swales across the site and drainage pipes located 
on the downslope side of each swale.  

Page 11



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 222 

 
17th April 2015 
 
Further response from Environment Agency received 15th April, as follows: 
 
We object to the application unless it can be revised to preclude the provision of PV 
units, Control Rooms etc, within the area of floodplain as shown coloured in blue on 
the attached/enclosed plan. Whilst the last sentence of page 7 of the applicants 
Flood Risk Assessment in effect states the above we draw to your authority’s 
attention the fact that drawing 4652-501 Rev –, within Appendix 5 of the FRA, shows 
otherwise. 
 
It is imperative that the floodplain, which is currently typically undeveloped, remains 
both clear of obstructions to flow and is not raised given there are properties at risk of 
flooding at Five Bridges. 
 
Our advice is consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework in particular 
from the Sequential Test perspective. 
 
With regard to surface water runoff we support the proposed provision of swales. 
 
2 further letters of objection received raising no new issues to those already listed on 
the committee report. 
 
17th April 2015 
 
Further revised Flood Risk Assessment received from the applicants, seeking to 
address the comments of the Environment Agency.  
 
21st April 2015 
 
We can withdraw our objection providing development proceeds in accordance with 
the revised FRA and the layout shown on Figure 5 ‘Proposed Site Plan’ (page 17 of 
the April 2015 FRA by ambiental). It is important that ground levels within Flood Zone 
3 and 2 not being raised. 
 
22nd April 2015 
 
The Environment Agency’s withdrawal of their objection is on the basis of a revised 
site layout being received, which removes development from within flood zones 2 
and 3. However, the submitted drainage strategy layout still includes the provision of 
panels in this location. Nevertheless, on the basis that the Environment Agency do 
not object to the scheme as shown on the submitted site layout and are happy with 
the measures set out in the drainage strategy (save for the fact that the plan still 
includes panels in FZ 2 &3) it is considered that in the event of an approval, this 
matter could be dealt with by condition. Accordingly, it is no longer recommended 
that reason for refusal 2 be included.  
 

 
 

Page 12



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 223 

(b) No 2 on the Plans List (14/02134/FULL – Erection of a dwelling (Revised 
Scheme) at Land at NGR 266113 109805 (Adj Paddons Farm), Wembworthy, 
Devon). 
 
The Head of Planning and Regeneration outlined the contents of the report * 
informing Members that whilst planning permission had been granted twenty four 
years ago very different planning policies were now in existence, there was no longer 
an infill policy and Wembworthy was no longer recognised as a settlement within the 
current Development Plan. In the officers view there was no special justification for 
allowing this development in the countryside.  
 
Discussion took place with regard to: 
 

 Policy 55 in the National Planning Policy Framework stating that development 
in the open countryside needed to demonstrate exceptional circumstances. 

 The fact that there had been recent development adjacent to and opposite the 
application site. 

 If planning permission was allowed a precedent could be set. 

 Whether there could be leniency and whether each application could be 
judged on an individual basis, however, it was stated that there was a very 
strong policy presumption against the application. 

 
RESOLVED that planning permission for this application be refused for the following 
reason: 
 
The site is located in the countryside where policies and in particular paragraph 55 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework seek to avoid new homes in the countryside 
unless there are special circumstances.  The application has not addressed and does 
not meet the requirements of Policies DM10 or paragraph 55 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework which allow for limited development where it meets strict criteria. 
The building is not required for an essential rural worker. In the opinion of the Local 
Planning Authority the proposal is therefore for the erection of a new dwelling for 
which no special circumstances exist that would override the policy objection. As 
such the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy COR18 of the Mid Devon 
Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and Government guidance in the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
(Proposed by the Chairman) 
 
Vote 8 for: 5 against 
 
Notes: 
 

i. Mr Fowler (the Applicant) spoke; 
 

ii. A proposal to grant planning permission was not supported. 
 

iii. Cllrs A V G Griffiths and R L Stanley requested that their abstention from 
voting be recorded. 

 
 

Page 13



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 224 

(c) No 3 on the Plans List (15/00317/FULL – Conversion of public toilets to 
commercial, retail and office space (Revised Scheme) at Public Conveniences, 
Lowman Green, Tiverton). 

 
The Area Planning Officer outlined the contents of the report * stating that initial 
concerns had been related to flood risk, however, this had been assessed and 
mitigating measures designed to minimise flood risk. 
 
Discussion took place with regard to: 
 

 Policy DM2 which related to ‘good quality design’, it was questioned whether 
the public convenience fell into this category. 

 The site location which was considered to be suitable for proposed retail 
and/or office use. 

 The need for public toilets in the town especially at the weekends in the 
evening. 

 The building was not at this stage going to be sold but would be let out. 
 
RESOLVED that planning permission for this application be granted subject to 
conditions as stated in the report. 
 
(Proposed by Cllr L J Holloway and seconded by Cllr M D Binks) 
 
Notes: 
 

i. Cllr R L Stanley declared a personal interest in that he was Cabinet Member 
for Housing and conversion of the public toilets would have an impact on the 
Housing Revenue Account. He stated that he would not be voting in relation to 
this application. 

 
ii. Cllr K D Wilson declared a personal interest as he had been electronically 

corresponding with the objectors. 
 

iii. Cllrs A V G Griffiths, D J Knowles and K D Wilson requested that their votes 
against the decision be recorded. 

 
iv. The following late information was reported: 

 
17th April 2015 
 
Further details in respect of flood risk have been received including details of flood 
prevention, resilience and safety measures to be incorporated into the building and 
details of previous flood levels, as requested by the Environment Agency.  The plans 
have also been amended to include a door on the south elevation to provide a safer 
escape route to higher ground in the event of flooding, also has requested by the 
Environment Agency. 
 
The Environment Agency has been re-consulted and their response is expected 
before Planning Committee.  Members will be updated further on this. 
 
 
 

Page 14



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 225 

21st April 2015 
 
Environment Agency consultation response 
 
We have no objections to the proposal. 
   
Having received additional survey of historic flood levels, and the proposed use of 
flood resistant measures, i.e. flood gates, non-return valves etc, and installation of 
new door adjacent Lowman Green Bridge, we can advise that the proposed change 
of use as now detailed aligns with guidance and policy as contained within the 
National Planning Policy Framework. It is pleasing that measures to reduce the risk 
of internal flooding occurring will be implemented as they will help reduce the 
potential for damage and disruption to the new business from occurring. 
 
We reiterate our comments that the tenants of the building should register to the 
Environment Agencies flood warning service. Details of how to register can be found 
on the GOV.UK web site. 
 
 

193 THE DELEGATED LIST (02:56:46)  
 
The Committee NOTED the decisions contained in the Delegated List *. 
 
Note: *List previously circulated; copy attached to signed Minutes.  
 

194 MAJOR APPLICATIONS WITH NO DECISION (02:57:27)  
 
The Committee had before it, and NOTED, a list * of major applications with no 
decision.  
 
It was RESOLVED that: 
 
Application 15/00537/MFUL – installation of a solar farm to generate 4.6MW of power 
at Sharlands Farm, Morchard Bishop be brought before the Committee if minded to 
approve. 
 
Application 15/00507/MFUL – new surface car park and associated lighting at 
Tiverton Parkway, Sampford Peverell be brought before Committee. 
 
Application 15/00334/MFUL – renovation and extension to provide 45 Extracare 
apartments at Alexandra Lodge, 5 Old Road, Tiverton, be brought before Committee 
and that a site visit take place. 
 
Note: *List previously circulated; copy attached to the signed Minutes. 
 

195 APPEAL DECISIONS (03:05:30)  
 
The Committee had before it, and NOTED, a list of appeal decisions * providing 
information on the outcome of two recent planning appeals. 
 
Note: *List previously circulated; copy attached to signed Minutes. 
 

Page 15



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 226 

196 APPLICATION 14/01938/MOUT - OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR UP TO 97 
DWELLINGS, TO INCLUDE THE IMPORTATION OF INERT WASTE TO RAISE 
LAND, WITH DETAILS OF ACCESS ONTO THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY PROVIDED 
AND WITH ALL OTHER MATTERS RESERVED FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 
AT LAND AT NGR 303843 111382, SOUTH VIEW, WILLAND (03:06:00)  
 
The Committee had before it a report * of the Head of Planning and Regeneration 
regarding the above application. The Area Planning Officer outlined the contents of 
the report by way of presentation and informed Committee Members that there were 
now two additional reasons for refusal on the update sheet which related to 
insufficient information being provided by the applicant.  
 
Discussion took place with regard to: 
 

 Both Willand and Halberton Parish Councils were against this application for 
reasons relating to site location and it falling outside of the current Local Plan, 
the additional strain on local schools and the availability of jobs. The area was 
currently designated as an industrial site and any development, if allowed, 
would be surrounded by industrial units. 

 The comment was made that the developer was offering 35% affordable 
housing. 

 The proposal was contrary to COR12 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy and 
failed DM2. 

 More infrastructure was needed in Willand rather than further housing 
development. 

 
RESOLVED that planning permission be refused for the following reasons: 
 
1. Policy COR17 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) seeks to deliver 
minor development proposals in the recognised villages in the District, of which 
Willand is one. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the development of 97 
dwellings in Willand would be a significant development in the context of policy 
COR17 and therefore be contrary to the objectives of the policy and the development 
focus set out in policy COR12 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) 
which seeks to reduce housing rates in the rural areas.  
 
2. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, the development of the site, 
sandwiched between two areas of employment development and physically divorced 
from the existing pattern of housing development in the village would not represent 
the high quality development required by policy DM2 of Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies) and the National Planning Policy Framework as 
it would be out of context with the spatial pattern of development in the village and 
would not be well integrated with surrounding buildings, streets, landscapes and 
uses. 
 
3. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, insufficient information has been 
provided to demonstrate that there is no commercial interest in the use of the site for 
employment generating purposes, particularly having regard to the high land values 
which have been sought for the development of plots of land on the site, taking into 
account prevailing local market values for similar developments. Accordingly the 
application is contrary to the requirements of policy DM21 b) of Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies). 

Page 16



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 227 

  
4. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, insufficient information has been 
provided to demonstrate that the development of the application site for mixed use 
purposes that incorporate an employment-generating use would not result in a 
financially viable development. The application is therefore contrary to the 
requirements of policy DM21 c) of Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management 
Policies).   
 
(Proposed by Cllr Mrs M E Squires and seconded by Cllr Mrs L J Holloway) 
 
Notes: 
 

i. Cllrs: Mrs H Bainbridge, M D Binks, Mrs D L Brandon, Mrs F J Colthorpe, J M 
Downes, A V G Griffiths, P J Heal, Mrs L J Holloway, D J Knowles, E G 
Luxton, R F Radford, J D Squire, Mrs M E Squires, R L Stanley and K D 
Wilson made declarations in accordance with the Protocol of Good Practice 
for Councillors in dealing with planning matters. 

 
ii. Cllrs Mrs F J Colthorpe and R L Stanley declared personal interests in that 

they had attended Parish Council meetings where the developer had been in 
attendance. 

 
iii. Cllr D L Brandon also declared a personal interest in that she had attended a 

meeting with the Managing Director of Devonshire Homes. 
 
iv. Cllrs Mrs H Bainbridge and A V G Griffiths declared personal interests as they 

knew the Managing Director from Devonshire Homes.  
 

v. Mr Russell (the Applicant) spoke. 
 
vi. Cllr Warren (Willand Parish Council) spoke. 

 
vii. As the application related to a split site, Ward Members Mrs D L Brandon and 

R F Radford both spoke. 
 
viii. The Chairman read out a letter from another of the Ward Members, Cllr R 

Evans. 
 
ix. The following late information was reported: 

 
A commercially sensitive and confidentially held independent report commissioned 

by Mid Devon District Council has been received regarding the value of the site and 

the marketing exercise undertaken by the landowners.  

In summary the report makes the following findings/conclusions:  

 Based on the submitted information they cannot gauge how comprehensive 

the marketing approach has been but the landowners appear to have utilised 

all of the mediums through which the consultants would have advertised the 

site if they had been the marketing agents. 

Page 17



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 228 

 In relation to the information provided by the applicants with regard to specific 

enquiries from prospective customers (often regarding design & build options) 

the prices quoted for build costs appear to be generally reasonable based on 

BCIS build costs (although there is one particular exception when the building 

cost provided appears expensive)  for the same periods but land purchase or 

rental costs are high, particularly when taking into account the economic 

climates at the time of some of the quotes.  

 The consultants have identified the neighbouring Mid Devon Industrial Estate 

(more specifically Blackdown Park units), Hitchcocks Farm, Cullompton 

Business Park, Venn Farm (Cullompton), land at Kingsmill Industrial Estate 

(Cullompton) and development in Wellington as being potential competition for 

the development of the site.  

 The consultants consider that the Gladman’s Cullompton Business Park site 

off the existing Kingsmill Industrial Estate, which like the application site is 

serviced, is the most comparable local site to the Mid Devon Business Park. 

The estate is being marketed and the asking price has recently been lowered 

and a lower value per acre is being sought than has been quoted to date at 

Mid Devon Business Park. However, they estimate that for bulk disposal 

purposes the value of Mid Devon Business Park would be slightly lower than 

is being sought for the Cullompton Business Park as the Cullompton site is 

marginally closer to the motorway.  

 It is considered that the site is not suitable for office development.  

 There may be scope for alternative employment related uses (public house, 

crèche, veterinary surgery etc.) on the roadside frontage plot only. This would 

achieve a higher land value than an employment use.  

 Disposal of the site in small plots may take 3-5 years.  

 The property market, including the warehouse/industrial sector is arguably at 

its strongest point since the economic downturn. The consultants consider that 

there is now a greater chance of securing a pre-let or disposal to an 

investor/developer.  

 The Landowners aspirations for a value per acre appear high in the current 

market.  

 

Your Officers have considered the content of the consultant’s report and the 

implication of these alongside the information and assessment already contained in 

section 1 of the material considerations section of the committee report (pg. 150) and 

have assessed the application against policy DM21 of Local Plan Part 3 

(Development Management Policies).  Taking account of the other employment sites 

in the locality which may provide some competition to the application site, including 

the recent permissions at Hitchcocks Farm and Venn Farm, which are not existing 

employment allocations) and the findings of the Employment Land Review, which 

recommends having an overall lower  quantum of employment development, it is 

considered that criterion a) of policy DM21 is met.  

Page 18



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 229 

The findings of the consultant suggests that the land values being sought by the 

landowners for the development of plots on the site are high in the current market 

and have been so since the economic downturn. This is likely to have been in order 

to see a return on their investment in the site. It is clear that there have been a 

relatively high number of enquiries to develop plots on the site over the years and it is 

noted that a contract has been entered into to dispose of the plot recently given 

planning permission for a foodstore (14/02116/FULL). Taking these facts into 

account alongside the commentary in section 1 of the committee report, it is 

considered that insufficient information has been provided to demonstrate 

compliance with criterion b) of policy DM21.  

As previously mentioned, no sequential viability test has been provided based on the 

requirements of criterion c) of policy DM21.  

Revised recommendation: 

Refuse planning permission for the following reasons: 

1. Policy COR17 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) seeks to deliver 
minor development proposals in the recognised villages in the District, of which 
Willand is one. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the development of 97 
dwellings in Willand would be a significant development in the context of policy 
COR17 and therefore be contrary to the objectives of the policy and the development 
focus set out in policy COR12 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) 
which seeks to reduce housing rates in the rural areas.  
 
2. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, the development of the site, 
sandwiched between two areas of employment development and physically divorced 
from the existing pattern of housing development in the village would not represent 
the high quality development required by policy DM2 of Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies) and the National Planning Policy Framework as 
it would be out of context with the spatial pattern of development in the village and 
would not be well integrated with surrounding buildings, streets, landscapes and 
uses. 
 
3. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, insufficient information has been 
provided to demonstrate that there is no commercial interest in the use of the site for 
employment generating purposes, particularly having regard to the high land values 
which have been sought for the development of plots of land on the site, taking into 
account prevailing local market values for similar developments. Accordingly the 
application is contrary to the requirements of policy DM21 b) of Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies). 
  
4. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, insufficient information has been 
provided to demonstrate that the development of the application site for mixed use 
purposes that incorporate an employment-generating use would not result in a 
financially viable development. The application is therefore contrary to the 
requirements of policy DM21 c) of Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management 
Policies).   
 
(x) *Report previously circulated; copy attached to the signed Minutes. 

Page 19



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 230 

 
197 14/02077/FULL - ERECTION OF A DWELLING WITH PARKING AND 

ASSOCIATED ACCESS (REVISED SCHEME) - 11 UPLOWMAN ROAD TIVERTON 
DEVON EX16 4LU (03:03:40)  
 
The Committee had before it a report * of the previous Head of Planning and 
Regeneration regarding the above application. At a meeting held on 4 March 2015 
the Planning Committee had considered the above application and had resolved that 
they were minded to refuse the application, subject to the consideration of an 
implications report. The Committee had considered: 
 

 The proposed density of development, whether the development was in 
character with existing dwellings in Pomeroy Road 

 Whether the proposal development was in contravention to the Masterplan 
approved for the Eastern Urban Extension; 

 If the development proposed would set a precedent of building in gardens of 
adjacent properties; 

 Whether the site could support 2 dwellings; 

 The need for the development to be in line with Development Plan Policies 
COR2, DM2, DM14 and not the Eastern Urban Extension. 
 

The Committee had initially considered that the proposal was out of character with 
the existing layout of the area, it would result in a development of uncharacteristically 
higher density out of character and appearance with the surrounding area, it would 
lead to a loss of local distinctiveness and provide a dwelling in close proximity to 
other dwellings contrary to the general character of the area.  
 
The Head of Planning and Regeneration made reference to some confusion 
surrounding this application which had related to some recent work undertaken by 
the Council’s IT department. This had unfortunately generated emails relating to the 
decision on certain historic cases including that on the withdrawal of the previous 
application for a dwelling on this site. She had been in communication with some of 
the objectors regarding this and had provided an explanation. 
 
RESOLVED that planning permission be refused for the following reason: 
 
The proposal is considered a departure from existing dwelling layout in the area, to 
have an unacceptable size of plot at an uncharacteristically high density contrary to 
the character and appearance of the surrounding area resulting in a loss of local 
distinctiveness and close proximity to other dwellings. The proposal is considered 
contrary to policies COR2 Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1), DM2 and 
DM14 Development Management Policies (Local Plan Part 3). 
 
(Proposed by Cllr R L Stanley and seconded by Cllr K D Wilson) 
 
Notes: 
 

i. Cllrs: Mrs F J Colthorpe, D J Knowles and R L Stanley made declaration in 
accordance with the Protocol of Good Practice for Councillors in dealing in 
planning matters as they had received correspondence regarding this 
application. 

 

Page 20



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 231 

ii. The following late information was reported: 
 
22nd April 2015 
 
Two further objections (one inadvertently omitted from the previous report and one 
recent) summarised as follows: 
 
1.            Letter from CPRE stating that “The principle of a further dwelling house 
within the small garden space is considered to be unacceptable as it would represent 
an over development of the site to the detriment of the visual amenities of the area.”  
They then list the policies to which they consider the application to be contrary 
COR2, DM2, DM15.  They also list Structure Plan, old Local Plan policies and PPS3 
which are no longer relevant. 
 
2.   Letter from previous objector in relation to the implications report   

summarised as follows: 

 5 objections were recorded in the original officer’s report, rather than 
the 6 shown on the Council’s website, including one from CRPE, which 
questions the validity of the officer’s report 

 The implications report on the agenda for the 1 April meeting was, in 
our view, biased in favour of the applicant.  The revised report is fairer 
but we still have some concern.  The sections headed “Financial 
implications” and “Risk assessment” do not include the consequences 
of the Council approving the application, i.e. the Council acting 
unreasonably or without regard to due process to the disadvantage of 
objectors who may also have a remedy. 

 The revised implications report uses an inappropriate argument relating 
to densities and plot sizes.  We question whether the average person 
would see Post Hill and Fairway as lying in the immediate vicinity of a 
site on Pomeroy Road.  The appropriate area for that comparison 
should be Uplowman Road and the two roads leading off  (Pomeroy 
Road and Pool Anthony Drive). 

 
(iii) *Report previously circulated; copy attached to the signed Minutes. 
 

198 99/03432/FULL - CONVERSION OF REDUNDANT FARM BUILDING TO AN 
AGRICULTURAL WORKERS DWELLING - HARTNOLL FARM POST HILL 
HALBERTON (03:40:30)  
 
The Committee had before it a report * from the Head of Planning and Regeneration 
regarding the above application.  The applicant had made a request to this authority 
for a variation to the S106 legal agreement attached to the original consent.  
 
The Head of Planning and Regeneration outlined the contents of the report 
highlighting the history of the application and reminding the Committee that it had 
previously granted planning permission for an anaerobic digester (AD) on land which 
was covered by that S106 agreement. The Applicant had offered an alternative area 
of land and approval was sought from the Committee to align the legal paperwork. 
 
Discussion took place with regard to the area of land now being offered as an 
alternative. The Committee did not feel that an area of woodland equated in size or 
value to the area of land being proposed to be sold on to the AD operators. 

Page 21



 

Planning Committee – 22 April 2015 232 

 
RESOLVED that a decision in relation to this matter be deferred in order to allow 
officers to negotiate with the applicant for an area of land to be included which was of 
an equivalent size and quality to that being proposed for removal from the existing 
S106 agreement. 
 
(Proposed by Cllr M D Binks and seconded by Cllr R F Radford) 
 
Note: 
 

i. Cllr K D Wilson declared a personal interest as he had had discussions with 
the objectors. 

 
ii. A proposal to allow a variation to the S106 agreement as set out in the report 

was not supported. 
 

iii. *Report previously circulated; copy attached to the signed Minutes.  
 

199 PLANNING PERFORMANCE (04:10:36)  
 
The Committee had before it, and NOTED, a report * from the Head of Planning and 
Regeneration providing the Committee with information on the performance of 
Planning Services for the financial year 2014-15 and quarter 4. 
 
It was explained that there were staff shortages within the Planning Service but that 
recruitment was under way. It was probable that there would be some slippage in 
performance until the service was up to its full compliment of staff. Until then there 
would be a need to meet all the critical targets in relation to special measures and to 
meet all timescales that would result in a cost to the Planning Authority if they were 
not met.  
 
The Committee were sympathetic to the staffing situation within the service. A 
suggestion was made that internships be offered to graduates planning qualifications 
to undertake some of the more administrative tasks within Planning. 
 
Note: 
 
*Report previously circulated; copy attached to the signed Minutes.  
 
Update sheet 
 
 
 
 
 
(The meeting ended at 7.00 pm) CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 22



AGENDA 1 

PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA - 3rd June 2015 

Applications of a non-delegated nature 
 

Item No. Description 
 
 

  
1.  15/00071/FULL - Conversion of church hall (Use Class D2) into a dwelling (Use Class C3) 

with raised deck area and associated parking at Hall & Land at NGR 272174 101673   
Bow, Devon. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 

  
2.  15/00330/FULL - Erection of 8 affordable dwellings with associated access, parking areas, 

drainage and landscaping at Land at NGR 277031 93171 (Adjacent Glenthorne), Cheriton 
Bishop, Devon. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 

  
3.  15/00352/FULL - Conversion of redundant barn to residential dwelling at Land and 

Buildings at NGR 304595 116820, Goldsmoor House, Westleigh. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Refuse permission. 
 

  
4.  15/00382/FULL - Erection of an agricultural livestock building (889 sq.m) at Land at NGR 

299384 112863, Red Linhay, Crown Hill. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 

  
5.  15/00533/FULL - Retention of cover over existing silage clamp at Land at NGR 300503 

112348 (Bycott Farm), Lower Town, Halberton. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 

  
6.  15/00507/MFUL - New surface car park and associated lighting at Land at NGR 304319 

114213 (Tiverton Parkway), Sampford Peverell, Devon. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 

  
7.  15/00537/MFUL - Installation of a solar farm to generate 4.6MW of power (site area 7.65 

ha) and associated infrastructure, including photovoltaic panels, mounting frames, 
inverters, transformers, substations, communications building, fence and pole mounted 
security cameras at Land at NGR 274885 105456 (Sharland Farm), Morchard Bishop, 
Devon. 
RECOMMENDATION 
1. Grant permission subject to conditions for the scheme of development proposed. 
2. To allow a proposed variation to the S106 pursuant to planning permission 
92/01338/FULL. 

  
8.  15/00574/FULL - Erection of single storey extension - HOUSEHOLDER APPLICATION at 

Sheraton House, Kennerleigh, Crediton. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 

  

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



AGENDA 2 

 
 
 
Application No. 15/00071/FULL Plans List No. 1 

 
 
 
Grid Ref: 
 

272120 : 101744  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Applicant: Bow Parochial Church 
Council 

  
Location: Hall & Land at NGR 

272174 101673    Bow 
Devon EX17 6HR 

  
Proposal: Conversion of church 

hall (Use Class D2) 
into a dwelling (Use 
Class C3) with raised 
deck area and 
associated parking 

 
  
Date Valid: 20th February 2015 

 
 
 
 

Page 24



AGENDA 3 

 
Application No. 15/00071/FULL 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
Conversion of church hall (Use Class D2) into a dwelling (Use Class C3) with raised deck area and 
associated parking. 
 
The application site comprises the church room building off the A3072 (ground floor only), and  an area for 
car parking approximately 150 metres around the corner from the church room on Station Road next to the 
village hall. 
 
The proposal is to form a  4 bedroom dwelling, with sleeping and bathroom accommodation at ground floor 
and entrance hall (full height), and a new first floor set out with an open plan kitchen, living and dining room 
arrangement.  A rear dormer style extension, accommodating full height French doors (and side window 
panes) leading out to a raised patio area is proposed at, with alterations to the existing window range 
directly below. The existing tiled roof covering is to be replaced with matching slates and to incorporate two 
roof lights in eastern roof pitch. All existing window and door frames are to be repaired and/or replaced on a 
like for like basis. 
 
No separate layout plans have been submitted for the proposed parking but the red line plan indicates that it 
will accommodate parking for 2 vehicles.  
 
Foul sewage is to be disposed of via the existing mains drainage system.  
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Site location plan  
Block plan 
Proposed elevations and floor plans 
Design & Access Statement prepared by D Grabham 
Bird and Bat survey prepared by PLANeco 
Letter from Paul Smith Consulting regarding structural issues received 20th February 2015 
Further supporting information received from the applicant's agent received 23rd March 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
None. 
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
 
COR1 - Sustainable Communities 
COR2 - Local Distinctiveness 
COR9 - Access 
COR17 - Villages 
COR8 - Infrastructure Provision 
 
Mid Devon Allocations and Infrastructure Development Plan (Local Plan 2) 
 
AL/IN/3 - Public Open Space 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



AGENDA 4 

Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
DM2 - High quality design 
DM14 - Design of housing 
DM15 - Dwelling sizes 
DM25 - Community facilities 
DM27 - Development affecting heritage assets 
 
CONSULTATIONS 

 
HIGHWAY AUTHORITY - 2nd March 2015  
Standing advice applies please see Devon County Council document http://www.devon.gov.uk/highways-
standingadvice.pdf 

 
BOW PARISH COUNCIL - 17th March 2015 
The meeting was attended by several Bow residents, many of whom represented local organisations and 
community groups.  Expressing interest in the above planning application, the residents addressed Parish 
Council to voice their concerns, principally about the potential loss of a community amenity.  In addition to 
stating their concerns, residents remarked on lack of advance notice and information; the LPA's site notice 
being the first intimation of the intention to convert the Church Room to a dwelling.  Given the lack of local 
public consultation, Parish Council would advise that more time is needed to enable public consultation to 
take place. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - 10th March 2015 
Contaminated Land - no objections to this proposal 
Air Quality - no objections to this proposal 
Waste & Sustainability  
Drainage - no objections to this proposal 
Noise & other nuisances - recommend approval with conditions: 
 
No work shall be carried out on the site on any Sunday, Christmas Day or Bank Holiday or other than 
between the hours of 0730 and 1900 hours on Monday to Fridays and 0730 and 1300 on Saturdays. 
 
Reason:  To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the amenities of neighbouring 
properties. 
 
Housing Standards - no objections to this proposal 
Licensing - N/A 
Food Hygiene - No objections 
Private Water Supplies - Further information is required prior to any comment. No record is held as being a 
private supply. However, if a private water supply is serving any other associated dwelling, the supply would 
become a small private supply and subject to the Private Water Supply Regulations 2009.  As such a private 
water risk assessment and sampling regime will need to be undertaken by this Authority prior to any 
residential use. There is a private water supply system within the Bow area. 
Health and Safety - No objections 
 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 
12 letters of objection have been received, raising the following concerns about the application scheme: 
 

 The application building is a valued community asset. 

 The Church building is not considered a viable alternative community space, and many of the 
groups in the community would prefer to use the church rooms if it were available. 

 There has been no consultation with the local community 

 Converting into a house will have a detrimental impact on the character of the building 

 Concern about impact on local wildlife habitats. 

 Access to the deck area via the rear steps will have a detrimental affect on the amenities of the 
neighbouring property. 

 Concerns about the parking proposals and the anticipated increase in demand for on street parking. 

 The facilities at the site could be easily improved and thus brought back into use 

Page 26



AGENDA 5 

 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
The main building is set between two existing residential buildings, and forming part of an elevated 
residential terrace on the main high street that runs through Bow. The site is in the Bow Conservation Area 
and the adjacent building (Chanterhayes) and the raised footpath in front of the site are both listed - Grade 
II.  The garage site is around the corner adjacent to the Parish Hall, and accommodates a dilapidated open 
fronted single storey structure with an area in front of the main highway. From the building at the rear, there 
is a shared stepped access to the land at the rear which includes a dedicated area for the proposed 
dwelling. The main issues relating to this proposal are: 
 
1. Policy matters; 
2. Access and parking; 
3. Design and site layout, heritage Impacts and amenity issues; 
4. Other matters- public open space, air quality, drainage. 
 
1. Principle of development. 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework sets a presumption in favour of sustainable development and this 
is further implemented through DM1 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 
Additionally, the principle of building a new dwelling within the settlement limit of Bow would be supported in 
principal by Policy COR17 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1). 
 
However, the overriding policy assessment against which the application scheme needs to be tested against 
are the provision outlined at Policy DM25, as set out below: 
 
The development of new community facilities providing a local community benefit or environmental 
enhancement will be permitted where they are easily accessible by the local community and well related to a 
settlement. Proposals for the redevelopment of existing community facilities that enables them to modernise, 
remain viable and continue to be retained for the benefit of the community will be supported. 
 
Proposals involving the loss of community facilities such as local shops, public houses, allotments, cultural 
and recreational facilities and other important local services will not be permitted where this would damage 
the settlement's ability to meet its day to day needs or result in the total loss of such services to the 
community. Only in circumstances where the facility is proven to be no longer economically viable, including 
for alternative community uses, will applications for alternative use be considered acceptable. 
 
From the representations that have been submitted it is clear that in the past the application site has been 
used by a variety of user groups and stakeholders in the Bow community, beyond providing a meeting point 
for religious gatherings. Although there remains a community style notice board outside of the site, the 
applicants agent has confirmed that room has not been used by the wider community in the more recent 
past, and refers to restrictive sanitary facilities, lack of car parking facilities and no wheelchair access as 
factors that would prohibit the attractiveness of the space for use by community groups on a regular and 
ongoing basis. 
 
The site has not been marketed for sale for the continuation of its existing use, however given the nature of 
the premises and their lawful use, this requirement is not considered to be considered a pre-requisite in 
terms of considering if an alternative use, such as a residential use as is proposed, is considered reasoned 
and justified in policy terms when tested against DM25. The more relevant test as enshrined in Policy DM25 
is to consider if the conversion of the site as proposed would damage the settlement's ability to meet its 
everyday needs in terms of ensuring the provision and the availability of community space for use by 
community groups.   
 
In terms of other community spaces with the village, Bow boasts a purpose built village hall and community 
room with its own car parking adjacent to the current recreation area and children's playground. This is 
where the Bow pre-school group meet and where the Bow Community market takes place.  
 
In addition there are other meeting room facilities that could be available for use by the community are at:   
 
St Bartholomew's Church in Nymet Tracey approximately 1.5 miles from Bow, with its own car parking, 
The Congregational Church meeting room adjacent to the Village Hall, with its own parking.  
 

Page 27



AGENDA 6 

In summary whilst it is understandable that there are parts of the local community that are reluctant for the 
building to change to a dwelling, it is not considered that the application proposal would damage the 
settlement's ability to meet its day to day needs (in terms of providing meeting space for local groups) and/or 
result in the total loss of such services to the community. On balance it is not therefore considered that there 
would be any reasoned justification to refuse the application on the basis that it is contrary to the provisions 
of DM25.  
 
2. Access and Parking. 
 
The site presents directly to an elevated footway above the A3072 with, with front door access stepped up 
from the highway. This is the only access to the site.  
 
The proposed area for car parking is an existing garage with apron off Station Road around the corner from 
the proposed dwelling, which would just about be large enough to accommodate 2 cars parked one in front 
of the other.  
 
Although from a numerical point of view it could be argued that the application scheme complies with policy 
DM8, it is not considered convenient and/or very practicable from a user point of view, which is a 
requirement as set out in the Supplementary Planning Document on Parking. However it is noted that there 
is on street parking available on the highway directly adjacent to the site. 
 
3. Design and site layout, impact on heritage assets and amenity issues;  
 
The church room sits as part of a residential terrace, and detached from the adjoining properties on both 
sides. The curtilage does not extend significantly beyond the footprint of the building. There is a shared side 
access with Woodhaven from the footway and that links to a side door in the building and onto a stepped 
access to the land at the rear of the site, a small section of which remains within the curtilage of the 
application site. It is in this area that a raised decking is proposed. The conversion and internal alterations 
(as described above) allow for access onto the deck area from within the building. Relevant points in terms 
of this part of the assessment are set out below: 
 

 The external alterations to the building are considered acceptable in design terms, and will not 
change the visual appearance of the building as it is seen within the Bow Conservation Area and/or 
in terms of affecting the setting of the neighbouring listed building(s). 

 

 The proposed new windows at the rear and within the side roof pitch will not create any issues of 
overlooking into the adjacent properties and/or their garden areas.  

 

 The applicant has submitted evidence to demonstrate that the conversion of the building can be 
undertaken and the patio area could be delivered from a structural point of view, and the Local 
Planning Authority have no evidence to dispute this.  

 

 The floor to ceiling height is approximately 5.5 metres and therefore is capable of being converted 
as proposed over 2 floors and approximately 150 square metres of habitable floor space, and 
therefore exceeding the Local Planning Authority's space requirements for a four bedroom / 6 
person house, and with an area of just over 30.0 square metres of outside space, predominantly set 
out as an upper level patio area. 

 

 The upper level patio as proposed will not result in detriment to the amenities of the occupiers of the 
dwelling to the east (Charterhayes) as the proposals include a 1.8 metre close boarded timber fence 
on top of the deck. 

 

 In terms of the impact on the amenities of the occupiers to the west (Woodhaven) the 
occupiers/owners have raised an issue that the proposal will result in detriment to their amenities 
with occupiers of the house passing up and down the steps to the patio area. It is noted by the case 
officer that the upper floors of this property has a glazed rear elevation and given the difference in 
levels views towards the neighbouring dwelling would be possible.  

 
In terms of assessing the scope of this potential impact it is relevant to note that access up to the 
land at the rear is achievable at present with the lawful use of the building as meeting space, and 
therefore the occupiers of the Woodhaven are already subject to potential overlooking issues. 

Page 28



AGENDA 7 

However, it is recognised that with the building in residential use the relationship with the 
Woodhaven will change with the steps potentially used on a more frequent basis. Finally, it is noted 
that proposed layout within the building provides for an internal access to the deck area from within 
the building, which would thus avoid having to use the steps.  

 
In conclusion the application scheme puts forward a proposal to convert the building into a habitable 
dwelling which will deliver residential accommodation which meets with the Local Planning 
Authority's minimum standards, albeit with minimal external amenity space.  The building sits tightly 
with its neighbours. Access to the external space from within the building is possible which would 
mitigate against the potential to create an uncomfortable relationship with the neighbouring property 
to the west. On balance it is considered that the application scheme proposes a change of use to 
residential which accords with the policy requirements as set out at Policies COR2, DM2, DM14, 
DM15 and DM27. 

 
4. Other Issues 
 
Drainage & Flooding: The application proposes to connect the proposed dwelling to the existing network of 
infrastructure as per the existing situation to manage both foul and surface water. 
  
 
In terms of financial contributions to deliver off site  initiatives, such as open space and/or air quality 
improvements, as required by policy provisions (AL/IN/3 and AL/CRE/8) the Government has announced 
that Local Planning Authorities can no longer seek such commuted sums via S106 agreements on sites that 
fall below a certain size threshold. Within the settlement limits of Bow - the guidance indicates that for sites 
in village settlements in the open countryside, application schemes that propose less than 5 new dwellings 
or less are no longer qualifying sites for these provisions 
 
Planning balance and conclusions 
 
Whilst there are a number of local stakeholders that are concerned about the change of use as is proposed 
and/or consider that insufficient local community consultation has been undertaken in order to justify a 
change of use, Policy DM25 provides support for the application given that there are number of alternative 
facilities within Bow that provide meeting space for local community groups. Therefore if this application is 
approved it would not result in the total loss of such service/amenities to the community.   
 
The area for car parking for future occupiers is divorced from the house but is policy compliant in terms of 
the number of spaces proposed. 
 
The proposal in terms of the nature of accommodation proposed presents a viable layout for future 
occupants and incorporate mitigation in terms of how the external space will be accessed to seek to 
minimise the impact of the occupiers of the adjoining houses. 
 
On balance whilst there aspects of the application scheme that are not ideal, it is not considered that the 
potential harm that would be created (ie increased demand for on street car parking and overlooking 
between the application site and Woodview if future occupiers choose to use the rear steps to access the 
patio area) are sufficient to justify refusing planning permission. Therefore planning permission is 
recommended subject to the following conditions:  
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 

of this permission. 
 
 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed in 

the schedule on the decision notice. 
 
 3. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order with or without modification) no development of the 
types referred to in Classes [A, B, C, D] of Part 1 of Schedule 2, relating to the new dwelling shall be 
undertaken within the application dwelling curtilage without the Local Planning Authority first granting 
planning permission. 

 

Page 29



AGENDA 8 

 4. Prior to commencement of any part of the site the Planning Authority shall have received and 
approved a Construction Management Plan (CMP) including: 

   
 (a) The timetable of the works; 
 (b) Daily hours of construction; 
 (c) Any road closure and/or were where delivery vehicles and construction traffic will load or unload 

building materials, finished or unfinished products, parts, crates, packing materials and waste with 
confirmation that no construction traffic or delivery vehicles will park on the County highway for loading 
or unloading purposes, unless prior written agreement has been given by the Local Planning Authority; 

 (d) Hours during which delivery and construction traffic will travel to and from the site; 
 (e) The number and sizes of vehicles visiting the site in connection with the development and the 

frequency of their visits; 
 (f) The compound/location where all building materials, finished or unfinished products, parts, crates, 

packing materials and waste will be stored during the demolition and construction phases; 
 (g) Details of the amount and location of construction worker parking. 
  
 Works shall take place in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 
 1. In accordance with the provisions of Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 3. To safeguard the residential amenity of neighbouring residents, the visual amenities of the building in 

relation to the contribution that it makes towards the Bow Conservation Area, in accordance with 
Policies DM2, DM14 and DM27 of Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 

 
 4. This information is required to be submitted and approved before the commencement of any 

development in order to ensure safety of the public highway and to protect the amenities of the 
occupiers of the surrounding residential properties and in accordance with Policy DM2 of Mid Devon 
Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) and Policy COR9 of Mid Devon Core Strategy 
(Local Plan Part 1). 

 
REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT 
 
The proposal to convert the existing church hall building in the centre of Bow into a residential house is 
considered acceptable in principal  and given that there other facilities within Bow available for use by the 
local community.  The scope of external works proposed will not adversely affect the visual amenities of the 
building and/or the manner in which it presents to the Conservation Area. The scope of the dwelling to be 
created complies with minimum internal space requirements, and the proposed conversion is to be 
undertaken in a manner which will not adversely affect the visual character and/or appearance of the 
building as it presents to the street and the wider Bow Conservation Area. The area for car parking for future 
occupiers is divorced from the house but is policy compliant in terms of the number of spaces proposed. The 
proposal in terms of the nature of accommodation proposed presents a viable layout for future occupants 
and incorporate mitigation in terms of how the external space will be accessed to seek to minimise the 
impact of the occupiers of the adjoining houses. 
  
It is therefore considered that on balance the application proposal is accordance with the following Policies; 
COR1, COR2 and COR17 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1), Policies DM1, DM2, DM8, 
DM14, DM15 and DM27 of the Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies), and 
Government advice in the National Planning Policy Framework.   
 

 

Page 30



AGENDA 9 

 

 
 
Application No. 15/00330/FULL Plans List No. 2 

 
 
 
Grid Ref: 
 

276993 : 93112  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Applicant: Ms G Westcott 
  
Location: Land at NGR 277031 

93171 (Adjacent 
Glenthorne) Cheriton 
Bishop Devon  

  
Proposal: Erection of 8 

affordable dwellings 
with associated 
access, parking areas, 
drainage and 
landscaping 

 
  
Date Valid: 16th March 2015 

 
 
 
 

Page 31



AGENDA 10 

 
Application No. 15/00330/FULL 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
This application seeks planning permission for the erection of 8 affordable dwellings with associated access, 
parking areas, drainage and landscaping on a site just outside but directly adjacent to the settlement limit of 
Cheriton Bishop. The site comprises the northern part of a field which rises from south to north and is bound 
by native hedgerows with some trees within the hedgerow on the northern and part eastern boundary. An 
existing field gate provides access to service the site which is currently used to stable and graze horses. 
Yeoford  Road runs along the eastern boundary.   
 
The site sits directly adjacent to a group 5 houses that are within the settlement boundary, and comprise a 
linear development of detached houses. The Village Doctors surgery lies on the opposite side of Yeoford 
Road 
 
The eight units comprise; two 1 bedroom flats (ground and first floor), two 1 bedroom houses, three 2 
bedroom houses, and one three bedroom house. The houses are proposed to be built on behalf of the 
Cheriton Bishop Community Land Trust (CLT) and will be managed by a registered provider. The houses 
are proposed as semi detached properties (3 groups of 2) with the two flats in single building. Parking is 
provided adjacent to each plot. The scheme is arranged to form a street scene (north facing) with generous 
south facing gardens, with a new service road (approximately 40 metres in length) formed through the  
existing field gate opening from Yeoford Road with improved visibility splays. New hedge banks are 
proposed to form the western and southern boundaries which comprises native hedgerows a top a Devon 
bank detail. The hedgerow is proposed to be planted as feathered whips providing a further 600 - 800 MM to 
the screen provided by the bank. A new pumping station and formation of surface water attenuation tanks 
are proposed on the western boundary.  The scheme is divided into 8 plots as set out below: 
 
Plot 1 comprising a ground floor flat of 54 sq M, Plot 2 comprising a ground floor flat of 61 sq M, plots 3 and 
4 comprising one bedroom 2 storey houses of 70 sq M, plots 5 & 6 comprising two bedroom 2 storey houses 
of 78 sq M, Plot 7 comprising a three bedroom 2 storey house of 89 sq M and Plot 8 comprising a two 
bedroom 2 storey house of 79 sq M. 
 
The dwellings are proposed with rendered walling up to first floor level above a brick plinth with the upper 
levels clad with timber boarding. A slate roof covering with clay ridge tile is proposed for all the units with 
painted timber windows. Solar panels are indicated on the south facing roof slopes. Air source heat pumps 
are proposed to be installed to each property.  
 
The application site lies outside, but within approximately 200 metres of the boundary of Dartmoor National 
Park. 
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Design and Access Statement 
Landscape and Visual appraisal prepared by C. Foxford - November 2014 
Preliminary Ecology Appraisal prepared by Green Ecology - August 2014 
Ground Investigation Report prepared by Terra Firma - September 2014 
Housing Needs Report prepared by the Community Council of Devon 
Planning Application form, site plan, survey as existing, layout plan, elevations and floor plans, drainage 
plan 
 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
00/02010/FULL Erection of an agricultural livestock building - PERMIT 
02/01353/FULL Erection of extension to agricultural livestock building - PERMIT 
 

Page 32



AGENDA 11 

 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
 
COR1 - Sustainable Communities 
COR2 - Local Distinctiveness 
COR3 - Meeting Housing Needs 
COR8 - Infrastructure Provision 
COR9 - Access 
COR11 - Flooding 
COR17 - Villages 
COR18 - Countryside 
 
Mid Devon Allocations and Infrastructure Development Plan (Local Plan 2) 
 
AL/IN/3 - Public Open Space 
AL/DE/2 - Overall Affordable Housing Provision 
AL/DE/4 - Occupation of Affordable Housing 
AL/DE/5 - Inclusive Design and Layout 
AL/DE/6 - Exceptions Policy 
AL/CRE/8 - Crediton Air Quality 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
DM2 - High quality design 
DM8 - Parking 
DM15 - Dwelling sizes 
DM16 - Town centre development 
DM29 - Protected landscapes 
 
CONSULTATIONS 

 
HOUSING ENABLING & BUSINESS SUPPORT MANAGER - 25th March 2015  
Based on evidence from the housing needs survey and the number of applicants on Devon Home Choice, I 
am satisfied that the proposed housing scheme will satisfy the local need for affordable housing in Cheriton 
Bishop. 

 
CHERITON BISHOP PARISH COUNCIL - 14th April 2015 
Support. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - 2nd April 2015 
Contaminated Land - no objections to this proposal 
Air Quality - no objections to this proposal 
Waste & Sustainability  
Drainage - no objections to this proposal 
Noise & other nuisances - no objections to this proposal 
Housing Standards - no objections to this proposal 
Licensing - Not applicable 
Food Hygiene - Not applicable 
Private Water Supplies - Not applicable 
Health and Safety - No comments 

 
NATURAL ENGLAND - 26th March 2015 - Statutory nature conservation sites - no objection 
 
Protected species - standing advice applies 

 
 
 
 

Page 33



AGENDA 12 

HIGHWAY AUTHORITY - 24th March 2015  
Observations: 
The Highway Authority would raise no objection to the application and has been in pre application with the 
developer to delivery the appropriate access deign and alignment. 
 
Drawings T6743/01P2 and 14411-01P1 should be conditional of any consent for layout and alignment. The 
Highway Authority would also seek the imposition of the following conditions. 
 
Recommendation: 
THE HEAD OF PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION AND ENVIRONMENT, ON BEHALF OF DEVON 
COUNTY COUNCIL, AS LOCAL HIGHWAY AUTHORITY, MAY WISH TO RECOMMEND CONDITIONS 
ON ANY GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION 
 
1. The proposed estate road, footways, verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, drains, service routes, 
surface water outfall, road maintenance /vehicle overhang margins, embankments, visibility splays, 
accesses, car parking and street furniture shall be constructed and laid out in accordance with details to be 
approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing before their construction begins, For this purpose, plans 
and sections indicating, as appropriate, the design, layout, levels, gradients, materials and method of 
construction shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure that adequate information is available for the proper consideration of the detailed 
proposals. 
 
2. No part of the development hereby approved shall be commenced until: 
A) The access road has been laid out, kerbed, drained and constructed up to base course level for the first 
20 metres back from its junction with the public highway. 
B) The ironwork has been set to base course level and the visibility splays required by this permission laid 
out. 
C) The footway on the public highway frontage required by this permission has been constructed up to base 
course level. 
D) A site compound and car park have been constructed to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure that adequate on site facilities are available for all traffic attracted to the site during the 
construction period, in the interest of the safety of all users of the adjoining public highway and to protect the 
amenities of the adjoining residents. 
 
3. The occupation of any dwelling in an agreed phase of the development shall not take place until the 
following works have been carried out to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority: 
 
A) The cul-de-sac carriageway including the vehicle turning head within that phase shall have been laid out, 
kerbed, drained and constructed up to and including base course level, the ironwork set to base course level 
and the sewers, manholes and service crossings completed; 
 
B) The cul-de-sac footways and footpaths which provide that dwelling with direct pedestrian routes to an 
existing highway maintainable at public expense have been constructed up to and including base course 
level; 
 
C) The cul-de-sac visibility splays have been laid out to their final level; 
 
D) The street lighting for the cul-de-sac and footpaths has been erected and is operational; 
 
E) The car parking and any other vehicular access facility required for the dwelling by this permission 
has/have been completed; 
 
F) The verge and service margin and vehicle crossing on the road frontage of the dwelling have been 
completed with the highway boundary properly defined; 
 
G) The street nameplates for the spine road and cul-de-sac have been provided and erected. 
 
REASON: To ensure that adequate access and associated facilities are available for the traffic attracted to 
the site 

Page 34



AGENDA 13 

 
4. Within twelve months of the first occupation of the first dwelling in an agreed phase of the development, 
all roads, footways, footpaths, drainage, statutory undertakers' mains and apparatus, junction, access, 
retaining wall and visibility splay works shall be completed to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the access arrangements are completed within a reasonable time in the interests 
of safety and the amenity of residents. 

 
DARTMOOR NATIONAL PARK - 30th April 2015  
Having considered the details of the planning application, the Authority acknowledges that the development 
will potentially be seen from vantage points to the south west within the National Park. It is, however, noted 
that this would be seen against the backdrop of existing development in this part of Cheriton Bishop. The 
Authority requests that the Council considers the imposition of conditions to ensure that a suitable 
landscaping scheme is provided to soften this aspect of the development. 
 
Subject to this request, the Authority has no objection to the proposed development. 
 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 
23 letters of representation have been received. 14 of those representations express support for the 
application recognising the importance of providing affordable housing within the village as clarified in the 
Parish Plan and to respond to local need. Some of the representations of support come from individuals 
involved in this project. 
 
In terms of the 9 objections received, including those from the Cheriton Bishop & Dartmoor Community 
Conservation Groups the following points of concerns are raised.  
 
1) There site is outside the settlement boundary and will constitute an undesirable extension to the 

existing ribbon development. 
2) A further access of Yeoford Road is considered to be dangerous for existing users and unsuitable to 

accommodate the development.  
3) The proposals will have a detrimental impact from the Dartmoor National Park, and the character of 

the landscape and village of Cheriton Bishop and the surrounding area. 
4) The development will also have a direct impact of the landscape and visual quality of the Dartmoor 

National park, and other landscape impacts. 
5) Development in this area (adjacent to Glenthorne) has previously been refused and therefore this 

application should be refused  
 

Note from officer this point refers to application case ref:  91/00925/FULL which was refused for the 
following reason: 

 
The proposal would constitute an undesirable extension of the existing ribbon of development, 
outside the reasonable limits of the village, contrary to the provisions of the Devon County Structure 
Plan Policy SE8 (CDE1 in Third Alteration) and the Mid 

             Devon Rural Areas Local Plan, Interim Policy Statement, Policy H12. 
 
6) There will be a major visual impact when viewed from the road from Crockenwell. 
7)  The development spoils view for existing land owners and owners of nearby properties. 
8) The proposals will overshadow block light from the adjacent properties. 
9) The development is close to a priority habitat 
10)  There are other locations in Cheriton Bishop for Affordable housing - Church Lane and Moor Park 

for instance.  
11) The proposals do not include provision for a replacement stabling building, and therefore the full 

visual impact cannot be clarified. 
12) The impartiality of the Visual and Landscape appraisal is questioned. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



AGENDA 14 

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
The main considerations in the determination of this application are: 
 
1. Policy 
2. Need for affordable housing in Cheriton Bishop 
3. Design and layout of housing, impact upon neighbouring properties and landscape and 

visual impact 
4. Surface water and drainage strategy 
5 Highway and parking provision 
6. Other matters 
 
 
1. Policy 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) states that full weight may be given to relevant 
policies adopted since 2004 (and in accordance with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004) 
even if there is a limited degree of conflict with the Framework.  All the policies listed above and described in 
the following paragraphs have all been adopted since 2004, and therefore carry significant weight in the 
determination of this application  
 
Policy DM1 of the Local Plan Part 3 Development Management Policies Proposed Submission requires that 
development is approved wherever possible, in accordance with the Local Plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.  
 
Policy COR3 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy sets the district target for the delivery of housing over the plan 
period. It seeks to deliver 100 affordable dwellings annually up until 2026.  
 
Policy AL/DE/6 of the Allocations and Infrastructure Development Plan Document (DPD) sets out the 
authority's exceptions policy for the development of 100% affordable housing on sites to meet the needs of 
the local community. It requires for proposals to meet the following criteria: 
a) There is a proven need for affordable housing from households who have a strong local connection 

with the parish or adjoining parish; 
b) The site adjoins a settlement in a location which takes account of visual and other impacts or is 

specifically allocated for affordable housing to meet local needs; 
c) The type of affordable housing and the scale of provision is limited to meeting the proven local need; 
d) A planning obligation is enforced which retains all the dwellings as affordable housing in perpetuity 

and gives priority to occupation by those with a strong local connection with the parish or adjoining 
parishes.  

 
Policy AL/DE/4 of the same document relates to the occupation of affordable housing. The Meeting Housing 
Needs Supplementary Planning Document sets out further advice and policy in addition to those already 
mentioned. The document sets out a dwelling mix at policy MHN/2 but as this application is for exceptions 
site housing to meet a local need it is accepted that the application need not meet with this policy. Policy 
MHN/12 states that in assessing the level and type of need for affordable housing in a rural area, the 
authority will consider using a housing needs survey, the Devon Home Choice or Council Housing register 
and/or the housing register of any registered provider.  
 
Policy COR9 requires that development proposals should not adversely affect the road network in terms of 
traffic and road safety.  
 
Policy COR2 of the Core Strategy and policies DM2 and DM14 require that new development does not harm 
the character and/or visual amenities of the area and that it is designed so that it is well integrated within its 
surroundings and reflective of local context. Policy DM2 requires development not to have an unacceptable 
adverse affect and amenity of neighbouring occupiers. Policy DM/5 relates to the design of new housing and 
states that new development should be designed to deliver high quality local places and that properties are 
of a suitable size including the provision of suitably sized private amenity space.  
 
Policy DM29 relates to development that is within and/or affects Dartmoor National Park, requiring that it 
must not adversely affect the special qualities of the landscape. 
 
 

Page 36



AGENDA 15 

Policy DM8 sets out criteria for the provision of car parking on site. Policy DM 15 sets out minimum internal 
sizes for new dwellings  
 
COR11 and DM2 concerns the drainage of surface water and foul drainage.  
 
2. Need for affordable housing in Cheriton Bishop 
 
Although the site is beyond the settlement limit, there would be policy support for the scheme as a matter of 
principal; if it can be proven that there is a proven need for affordable housing from households who have a 
strong local connection with the parish or adjoining parish. 
 
As stated the scheme is proposed to be developed for the Cheriton Bishop Community Land Trust (CBLT) 
who will retain the freehold of the site and with Teign Housing Association managing the properties. CLT's 
are not for profit organisations set up by local residents to meet the needs of the community in respect of 
housing, workspaces and community facilities. Assets are held by the CLT in perpetuity for the benefit of the 
community as a whole. 
 
The project has been progressed by CBLT in association with The Community Council of Devon. The CLT 
model is different from the Housing Associations and other Registered Providers who normally provide 
affordable housing within the district, in that the sole aim of a CBT is to meet the needs of the specific 
community they cover. Accordingly it is proposed that the houses will be allocated using a local allocations 
policy which will give higher priority to households having a local connection as it is an exception site to 
reflect the local need and therefore different qualifying criteria than would normally be adopted for other 
social housing secured on allocated housing sites. Future occupiers will need to prove that they are in 
housing need and the allocations policy will also contain a cascade to still allow for housing to be allocated 
to persons with connections to outlying parishes in order to ensure housing is not left unoccupied.  These 
arrangements are proposed for inclusion in a Section 106 agreement.  
 
The need for affordable housing was first highlighted by the Parish Council (PC) in 2011 as part of the 
process of preparing the Parish Plan. In order to support the case the PC commissioned for a Local Housing 
Needs Survey to be completed, which was done in 2012 which was reviewed again in 2014.  The 
recommendations of this work highlight a need for 19 affordable houses, principally one or two bed units. 
The report was prepared by the Community Council for Devon and informed by a survey undertaken with 
local residents.  
 
As a cross check of this evidence, the Affordable Housing Allocations Team Leader of this Authority, has 
provided the following comment on this application: 
 
Based on evidence from the housing needs survey and the number of applicants on Devon Home Choice, I 
am satisfied that the proposed housing scheme will satisfy the local need for affordable housing in Cheriton 
Bishop. 
 
Finally on this matter, local stakeholders who made submissions, recognise that there is a clear need for 
affordable housing in Cheriton Bishop, and within the surrounding Parishes. 
 
In summary on this matter it is considered that the application proposals accord with AL/DE/6 
 
3. Design and layout of housing and impact upon neighbouring properties, and surrounding 

landscape 
 
Design & Layout Issues: The site is approximately 100 metres in length and 40 metres wide and 
incorporates the top part of a field which slopes down to the main road between Cheriton Bishop and 
Crockernwell and just outside the Dartmoor National Park. The site sits within a landscape character area of 
inland elevated and underlating land (LCT 5A). 
 
The scheme layout as shown on the submitted plans is clearly described above.  
The materials proposed are reflective of the local vernacular.  This is evidenced by the computer generated 
visualisations included in the landscape and visual assessment. Samples of all materials and fenestration 
details will be required by condition. The overall design of the dwellings is representative of the locality and 
the adjacent houses. Porches at the front and pergolas at the rear will help add visual interest at street 
scene level and again reflecting the local context. The dwellings proposed all meet with the minimum space 
standards as set out in policy. 

Page 37



AGENDA 16 

 
Impact on neighbouring properties: There is shallow slope across the width of the site from the Yeoford 
Road, which assists in terms of maintaining the overall height of the dwellings below the ridge height of the 
nearest house - Glenthorne. This is evidenced on the street scene elevation. Given the juxtaposition 
between the proposed units and the existing houses, and the proposed heights relative to the adjacent 
properties, it is not considered the development is out of keeping with its context in terms of height scale and 
massing.  The formation of new hedgerows, comprising planting on Devon banks to form a natural boundary 
(minimum 2.0 metres in height in total) and soft planting within the estate area will further assist in managing 
the transition of the new development area with the existing development from a ribbon form development to 
a linear extension arrangement proposed at 45 degrees to the existing settlement boundary. The 
visualisations show the scheme presents a comfortable bookend to the village without presenting as a 
dominant form on the skyline with the new planting clearly evident. 
 
Following discussions with the applicant's agent and in seeking to response to concerns expressed, it has 
been agreed that oak trees will be planted in the hedge in the corner of the site, plus others along the hedge 
line - planted at half standard size. In addition further planting around the pumping station is required.  
Further details of all additional hedgerow and tree planting to be resolved as a conditional requirement.  
 
The immediately neighbouring properties to the east and south of the site of the site are orientated so that 
the outlook from these houses is westwards. With the outlook from the new properties due south it is evident 
that there will be no uncomfortable window to window relationships, even between Glenthorne and the 
proposed units. There is a separation of distance of approximately 20.0 metres between Glenthorne and the 
apartment block, and therefore it is not considered that the application scheme will create an oppressive 
environment for the occupiers of the existing houses that are adjacent. The level of separation gap is evident 
on the visualisations submitted. Finally, given the orientation of the development in relation to the existing 
houses (due north) and the overall massing proposed (at a lower level), the application scheme should not 
obscure sun light and and/or cast significant shadow to the existing buildings and their garden areas.  
 
Whilst it is acknowledged that whilst the wider setting for the current occupiers will change, it is not 
considered that the application proposals will adversely affect the amenities of the existing occupiers, and 
the proposed planting to form the southern boundary will help minimise the impact. 
 
Impact on landscape and visual amenity issues: In terms of both wider landscape impact from within the 
Dartmoor National Park, and the impact from Crockenwell Road the existing trees additional planting will 
soften the visual impact when viewed from middle distance locations from the south and west. As stated 
above the development results in finished floor levels being lower than that of the adjacent dwellings 
meaning that development is kept to as low height as possible when read against surrounding development.  
 
The applicant has submitted a landscape and visual appraisal to demonstrate the impact following an 
objective assessment process. The key conclusions drawn from that assessment are set out below: 
 
Subject to the quality of the development whilst impact of the proposed built form on the overall landscape 
character is considered to be small. Given the elevated location of the site on the edge of the village, the 
proposals will have a visual impact on receptors in the surrounding area. The perpendicular nature of the 
layout in relation to the ribbon form of the existing development will have its greatest visual impact at closer 
distances. Summary points 
 
- From Yeoford Rd, the roofscape and entrance will be visible the impact - the impact is considered to 

be low. 
- The development area will be visible from the curtilage areas of the adjacent properties on Yeoford 

Rd and on the south of the main road to Crockernwell - the impact is considered to be low. 
- The development will visually prominent when travelling east from Crockernwell - considered to be 

the highest impact. 
 
- From areas within the National Park, and from the network of paths and bridleways in the village and 

wider area the development will be visible- the impact is considered to be low. 
The National Park Authority (see comments above) have considered the application and have raised 
no objection to the application scheme. A condition is recommended regards additional planting to 
the details shown on the submitted plans to assist with softening the development in distant views 

 
Overall the development of the site will have only a localised impact upon landscape character and 
visual amenities of the area and not one which is considered to be detrimental. 

Page 38



AGENDA 17 

  
Overall it is considered that the development proposed will deliver affordable housing of a scale and 
design which adequately reflects the local vernacular and context of the locality and which will not 
adversely affect the special qualities of the landscape Dartmoor National Park. Accordingly the 
proposal is deemed to accord with the requirements of Policies COR2 of the Mid Devon Core 
Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and DM2, DM14, DM15 and DM29 of Local Plan Part 3 (Development 
Management Policies). 

 
4.  Surface water and drainage 
 
The site lies within flood zone 1 as defined by the Environment Agency, the area at lowest of flooding, and is 
not within 20 metres of a watercourse. 
 
Foul waters are to be pumped to the existing mains via a pumping station positioned at the end of the 
service road. In addition provision is made for an attenuation tank to hold surface water flows before it is 
release and piped to the nearest water course.  
 
Accordingly, subject to the submission of specific technical details regarding the whole drainage scheme 
prior to their installation it is considered that the proposal will not lead to an increase in surface water run-off 
rates from those currently experienced from the undeveloped site and the application therefore meets with 
the requirements of Policies COR11 and DM2 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and the 
National Planning Policy Framework.  
 
5. Highways and parking provision 
 
A new access is proposed from Yeoford Rd into the site utilising an existing field gate access with 
improvements to the visibility splays, which will require the removal of a section of the existing roadside 
hedgerow. The Highway Authority has been consulted on the application and are supportive of the 
proposals subject to conditions.  
 
The road immediately outside the site represents one of the main routes  into and out of the village and to 
ensure that the development of the site is carried out in a fashion which minimises disruption to traffic it is 
recommended that a condition be imposed requiring the submission of a Method of Construction Statement 
prior to works commencing.  
 
Each dwelling is proposed to have two allocated parking spaces with four visitor parking spaces at the 
entrance to the site.  Whilst there is no direct pedestrian route into the village, the distance to the village is 
less than 300metres, and therefore manageable on foot or cycle. 
 
Accordingly the proposals are considered to be in accordance with Policies COR9 and DM8.  
 
6. Other matters 
 
Ecological Impacts: 
An Ecological report has been submitted with the application which makes the following conclusions: 
 
The site is of overall low value to wildlife as it is species poor and intensively grazed improved grassland. It 
is noted the hedges provide potential habitats as does the existing stable which is to be removed. A series of 
planned mitigation is proposed with compensation in the form of bat tubes to be fitted to the buildings, native 
planting above the new Devon banks as is proposed and bird nesting boxes.  
 
 
The report is considered to adequately address the potential for protected species to be affected by the 
development and subject to the imposition of a condition requiring the implementation of the mitigation 
measures recommended in the report; it is considered that the proposal will not adversely affect ecological 
interests at the site.  
 
Various comments raised by local stakeholders. 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



AGENDA 18 

1. The site is not needed, as affordable housing is to be provided on the Moor Park site and Church 
Lane could also provide an element of affordable housing. Whilst it is acknowledged that the 
scheme approved for the Moor Park site (outside of MDDC's) includes 8 affordable units, the 
application scheme in conjunction with these units fall just below the level of local need as indicated 
in the update housing needs survey.  The Church Lane site was identified as potential option, but 
the land is not available to deliver 100% affordable housing. The site, with the owners agreement is 
currently being promoted as a housing site as part of the local plan review process. Until included as 
an allocation within the proposed submission plan (recently consulted upon) it is not currently an 
adopted allocation can be given very little weight. If included in the adopted plan (2013 -2033), then 
a percentage of the approved housing could be general needs affordable housing in accordance 
with policy. However this would not override and/or provide for the current need and/or there is no 
guarantee that housing on site will ever be delivered.  

 
2. The proposal should be refused as per application ref: 91/00925/FULL. The current development 

plan provides policy support for development beyond the settlement boundary to meet a recognised 
affordable local housing need. The assessment of the application as set out above recognises the 
scope of impacts (in terms of visual and other impacts) that will arise but none are sufficiently 
detrimental to outweigh the policy support afforded by AL/DE/6 to this particular application. 

 
3. The Local Planning Authority has reviewed the Landscape and visual appraisal and considers that it 

presents an objective assessment of the impacts having followed an accepted methodology.  The 
conclusions reached are set out above and are reflective of the comments submitted by the 
Dartmoor Nation Park Authority to the application scheme.  

 
4. Any future applications for a replacement stabling building will be assessed on its own merits.  
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 

of this permission. 
 
 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed in 

the schedule on the decision notice. 
  
 3. The commencement of the construction of the houses shall not begin until samples of the materials to 

be used for all the external surfaces of the buildings have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  Such approved materials shall be so used and retained. 

 
 4. The external doors, door frames and windows hereby permitted shall be recessed into the walls in 

accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
These works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and be so retained. 

 
 5. All planting, seeding, turfing or earthworks comprised in the approved details of landscaping as shown 

on the submitted and approved landscape plan as shown on drawing numbered 1411-01P1, shall be 
carried out within 9 months of the substantial completion of the development and be so retained. Any 
trees or plants which within a period of five years from the implementation of the scheme, die, are 
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of similar size and species. 

 
 6. In addition to the approved landscaping details, referred to in Condition 5, a further plan showing the 

locations of and specification of trees to be planted within the new hedgerows to be planted on the 
southern and western boundaries of the site, and new planting around the approved pumping station, 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing before the landscaping works are commenced. The 
approved details shall be carried out in within 9 months of the substantial completion of the 
development and be so retained. Any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the 
implementation of the scheme, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species. 

  
 7. No development shall take place until a construction management plan or construction method 

statement, also incorporating a phasing plan, for the development has been submitted to and been 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

Page 40



AGENDA 19 

 The approved plan/statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period.  The statement 
shall provide for: 

   
  (i)   Parking of vehicle of site operatives and visitors. 
  (ii)  Routes for construction traffic. 
  (iii)  Hours of operation. 
  (iv) Method of prevention of mud being carried onto highway. 
  (v)  Pedestrian and cyclist protection. 
  (vi)  Arrangements for turning vehicles. 
   
 8. The conclusions and mitigation measures set out in the Greenecology Preliminary Ecological 

Appraisal (Final Report - dated October 2014) received on 27 February 2015 by the Local Planning 
Authority shall be complied with in full during construction of the development hereby approved and in 
terms of the on-going management regime of the communal areas. 

  
 9. The proposed estate road, footways, verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, drains, service routes, 

surface water outfall, road maintenance /vehicle overhang margins, embankments, visibility splays, 
accesses, car parking and street furniture shall be constructed and laid out in accordance with details 
to be approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing before their construction begins, For this 
purpose, plans and sections indicating, as appropriate, the design, layout, levels, gradients, materials 
and method of construction shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. 

  
10. The development of the dwellings hereby approved shall not be commenced until: 
  
 a) The access road has been laid out, kerbed, drained and constructed up to base course level for the 

first 20 metres back from its junction with the public highway. 
 b) The ironwork has been set to base course level and the visibility splays required by this permission 

laid out. 
 c) A site compound and car park have been constructed to the written satisfaction of the Local 

Planning Authority. 
  
11. The occupation of any dwelling in an agreed phase of the development shall not take place until the 

following works have been carried out to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority: 
  
 a) The cul-de-sac carriageway including the vehicle turning head within that phase shall have been 

laid out, kerbed, drained and constructed up to and including base course level, the ironwork set to 
base course level and the sewers, manholes and service crossings completed; 

 b) The cul-de-sac footways and footpaths which provide that dwelling with direct pedestrian routes to 
an existing highway maintainable at public expense have been constructed up to and including base 
course level; 

 c) The cul-de-sac visibility splays have been laid out to their final level; 
 d) The street lighting for the cul-de-sac and footpaths has been erected and is operational; 
 e) The car parking and any other vehicular access facility required for the dwelling by this permission 

has/have been completed; 
 f) The verge and service margin and vehicle crossing on the road frontage of the dwelling have been 

completed with the highway boundary properly defined; 
 g) The street nameplates for the spine road and cul-de-sac have been provided and erected. 
 
 
12. Within twelve months of the first occupation of the first dwelling in an agreed phase of the 

development, all roads, footways, footpaths, drainage, statutory undertakers' mains and apparatus, 
junction, access, retaining wall and visibility splay works shall be completed to the written satisfaction 
of the Local Planning Authority. 

 
13. Prior to the commencement of the development, the following details shall be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 
 i) Design of the surface water drainage system. Such design to include details of attenuation tank, flow 

control devices and connection pipes. The drainage system shall be designed to ensure that there is 
no increase in the rate of surface water runoff from the site resulting from the development. 

 ii) An inspection regime during the construction of the surface water drainage system together with 
submission of a written report to the Local Planning Authority with the find of the inspection. 

 iii) Details of proposed maintenance of the system for the lifetime of the development. 

Page 41



AGENDA 20 

 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and so retained. 
 
REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 
 1. In accordance with the provisions of Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 3. To ensure the use of materials appropriate to the development in order to safeguard the visual 

amenities of the area in accordance with Policy COR2 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 
Part 1) and Policies DM2 and DM14 of the Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management 
Policies). 

 
 4. To ensure the use of materials and detailing appropriate to the development in order to safeguard the 

visual amenities of the area in accordance with Policy COR2 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local 
Plan Part 1) and Policies DM2 and DM14 of the Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development 
Management Policies). 

 
 5. To soften the visual impact of development on the visual amenities and landscape character of the 

areas and to help minimise the impact on the general amenities of the area in accordance with 
Policies DM2 and DM14 of the Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 

 
 6. To soften the visual impact of development on the visual amenities and landscape character of the 

areas and to help minimise the impact on the general amenities of the area in accordance with 
Policies DM2 and DM14 of the Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 

 
 7. This information is required prior to the commencement of development.  In the interests of safe 

operation of the highway and to protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby dwellings in 
accordance with Policy DM14 of the Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management 
Policies).  

  
 8. To ensure the protection of any ecological interests at the site. 
 
 9. To ensure that adequate information is available for the proper consideration of the detailed 

proposals. 
  
10. To ensure that adequate on site facilities are available for all traffic attracted to the site during the 

construction period, in the interest of the safety of all users of the adjoining public highway and to 
protect the amenities of the adjoining residents in accordance with Policy DM2 of the Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies). 

  
11. To ensure that adequate access and associated facilities are available for the traffic attracted to the 

site, in accordance with Policy COR9 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and Policy 
DM2 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 

 
12. To ensure that the access arrangements are completed within a reasonable time in the interests of 

safety and the amenity of residents. 
 
13. This information is required prior to the commencement of development to prevent an increase in 

flood risk, and to ensure the efficiency of the drainage system is sustained for the lifetime of the 
development in accordance with Policy COR9 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1). 

 
REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT 
 
The proposed housing development is considered to be justified on this parcel of land, outside the defined 
settlement limit of Cheriton Bishop, as it will meet an identified affordable housing need in Cheriton Bishop 
and the surrounding parishes. The delivery of affordable housing outweighs any localised impacts that may 
arise. Subject to the imposed conditions the proposal will deliver a development which utilises building 
materials and an overall design that reflects the local vernacular and context within which the site is located 
and will have an acceptable impact upon the visual amenities and landscape quality of the immediate 
locality and its setting adjacent to the Dartmoor National Park.  
 

Page 42



AGENDA 21 

The scheme proposes adequate access onto the public highway and in conjunction with the internal site 
layout and parking provision, will deliver a scheme which does not cause harm to highway safety and which 
delivers parking provision to meet the needs of the dwellings proposed in accordance with policy. Subject to 
specific detailing prior to construction provision is proposed to be made to ensure that drainage from the site 
will be adequate and that surface water run-off rates will be no greater than at present. The proposed 
dwellings will not cause demonstrable harm to the privacy or amenity of neighbouring residents and subject 
to conditions will not cause harm to the health and safety of surrounding trees or hedgerows or to the habitat 
of protected species and will make appropriate provision for new planting. Having regard to all material 
considerations the application is considered to accord with the requirements of Mid Devon Core Strategy 
(Local Plan Part 1) Policies COR1, COR2, COR3, COR9, COR11 and COR18, Mid Devon Allocations and 
Infrastructure Development Plan Document (Local Plan Part 2) Policies AL/DE/4 and AL/DE/6, Local Plan 
Part 3 (Development management policies) Policies DM1, DM2, DM8, DM14, DM15 and DM29 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



AGENDA 22 

 

 
 
Application No. 15/00352/FULL Plans List No. 3 

 
 
 
Grid Ref: 
 

304595 : 116820  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs J Perry 
  
Location: Land and Buildings at 

NGR 304595 116820 
Goldsmoor House 
Westleigh Devon 

  
Proposal: Conversion of 

redundant barn to 
residential dwelling 

 
  
Date Valid: 4th March 2015 
 

 
 
 

Page 44



AGENDA 23 

 
Application No. 15/00352/FULL 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Refuse permission. 
 
COUNCILLOR H BAINBRIDGE HAS REQUESTED THAT THIS APPLICATION BE DETERMINED BY 
THE PLANNING COMMITTEE FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON: 
 
To consider whether the building meets the requirements of Policy DM11 of the Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies): Conversion of Rural Buildings. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
This application seeks planning permission for the conversion of a redundant barn to a dwelling at 
Goldsmoor, Westleigh. The barn is situated on the Class III road from Durleymoor Cross to Goldsmoor 
Cross approximately 1.5 miles to the East of the settlement of Westleigh. The building stands adjacent to a 
separate residential property known as Goldsmoor to the west, and an agricultural worker's dwelling known 
as Goldsmoor House to the east. The barn is immediately abutting a single storey barn close to the road 
which is under ownership of the occupants of Goldsmoor. 
 
The building can be considered as two connecting parts. The largest section is a tall box shaped building, 
built from stone, cob and breeze block, measuring 12.7 metres in length, 6.1 metres in width and 5.6 metres 
at the highest point of the gently sloping monopitch metal roof. This building has a narrow depth, with a high 
wall to void ratio with unpainted render visible across most of the outer walls. The second part of the building 
is a small single storey addition to the rear which features a simple corrugated metal roof with block walls 
and a rough painted render exterior. This measures 7.7 metres in length and 4.8 metre width. The maximum 
height of the roof measures 3.2 metres.  
 
There are a number of unusually shaped and positioned windows across the extent of the building including 
a wooden sash and uPVC casement in the main section, with metal Crittal and a fixed-shut stained glass 
window more recently added in the smaller section.  The building is largely redundant, albeit there were a 
few areas used for storage of miscellaneous household items. There is some anecdotal evidence of use of 
the smaller section of the building for human habitation, including a water storage tank and curtain rails, as 
well as window openings and internal partition which are later additions to the building.  
 
It is proposed to convert the barn to a dwelling with associated garden, parking spaces and driveway 
access. Upon conversion the building would provide three bedrooms, an open plan kitchen and dining room, 
a lounge, bathroom and storage area. Access from the highway is proposed to be taken via the existing lane 
with vehicular parking in a section of the garden 'courtyard' on the northern side. It is proposed to convert 
the building by the removal of the existing mono-pitched roof and replacing this with a traditional albeit a 
shallow pitched roof of approximately 20 degrees.  The design includes many new openings. The two 
sections of the building together measure approximately 20 metres in length.  
 
This is a revised scheme following refusal of an earlier proposal for the conversion of this building to a 
dwelling in February 2015 (14/01474/FULL). 
 
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Structural Survey 
Ecology Report 
Supporting Statement 
 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
90/02005/OUT Outline for the erection of detached house - REFUSED - DECEMBER 1990 
91/01570/OUT Outline for the erection of a dwelling - REFUSED - OCTOBER 1991/APPEAL DISMISSED 
MAY 1992 
14/01474/FULL Conversion of redundant barn to dwelling - REFUSED - FEBRUARY 2015 
 

Page 45



AGENDA 24 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
 
COR2 - Local Distinctiveness 
COR18 - Countryside 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM2 - High quality design 
DM8 - Parking 
DM11 - Conversion of rural buildings 
 
CONSULTATIONS 

 
HIGHWAY AUTHORITY - 12th March 2015  
Standing advice applies please see Devon County Council document http://www.devon.gov.uk/highways-
standingadvice.pdf 

 
SAMPFORD PEVERELL PARISH COUNCIL - 24th March 2015  
Having visited the site in connection with the earlier application, 14/01474/FULL, they remain of the opinion 
that the proposed development is inappropriate for the location, not least because the access and egress 
arrangements are inadequate. They find that the statements made in the application on access that there is 
"excellent traffic visibility" and "ample provision for parking and turning" to be inaccurate. They therefore do 
not support the application in its present form and urge that Conditions be applied to any permission given 
that will fully address these issues. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - 24th March 2015  
Contaminated Land: No objections 
Air Quality: No objections  
Drainage: No objections  
Noise & other nuisances: No objections  
Housing Standards:  No objections  
Licensing: Not applicable 
Food Hygiene: Not applicable 
 
Private Water Supplies: A private water supply has been identified for this proposal address and other 
properties and therefore the accommodation will fall under the remit of the 'Private Water Supplies 
Regulations 2009' and a wholesome supply (as defined in the regulations) must be supplied.  If more than 
one property is using this water supply a private water risk assessment and sampling will need to be under 
taken by this authority prior to any residential use.   
 
Health and Safety: No objections 
 
Contaminated Land: There is no supporting information in respect of land contamination risks provided in 
support of this application.  Our contaminated land and historic mapping records are not sufficiently clear at 
this location/for this size of plot. Consequently, we cannot be certain of the site history therefore we 
recommend as a minimum that a Phase I contaminated land risk assessment be carried out. This should be 
provided prior to determination of the application in order to advise on probable risks from land 
contamination and if further Phase II-IV contaminated land assessments should be provided via appropriate 
conditions. This is consistent with the introduction of a new sensitive /vulnerable land-use, in this case a 
proposed residential dwelling (see Question 14 on 1App application form). 
 
A Phase I assessment should also provide additional information on the current status of the site including 
any contemporary potential sources of contamination e.g. heating oil tanks, asbestos containing material, 
waste/fly-tipped deposits, localised in-filling or raised ground and small vehicle workshops etc. 
 
In the absence of the above we recommend refusal of the application on the grounds of insufficient 
information. 
 

Page 46



AGENDA 25 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 
1 letter of representation received, summarised as follows: 
- No objection in principle 
- Proposed access from the road will result in an increase in traffic 
- The track in its upper part is unmade an rises steeply from the road to the proposed parking area - 

the track is prone to heavy surface run-off and if provisions are not made to improve it, there may be 
an increased risk of flooding to adjacent residential properties. 

- There is no mains water supply and a borehole should be at least 50 metres from a source of water 
supply.   

 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
The key issue for consideration is whether the existing building positively contributes to the area's rural 
character and whether this character would be retained through the conversion. The report also addresses 
the impact of the conversion upon protected species and the impact upon the character and appearance of 
the wider setting. The main issues for determination relate to: 
 
1. The principle for conversion 
2. Parking and Access 
3. Extent of building works 
4. Design 
5. Ecology 
6. Impact on neighbours and surroundings 
 
1. The Principle for conversion 
 
The site is outside of an adopted settlement limit where new residential development is subject to strict 
policy control. This is set out under Part 6 of the National Planning Policy Framework. However Paragraph 
55 of Part 6 permits the reuse of redundant buildings where they are found to lead to an enhancement of the 
immediate setting.  
 
Policy DM11 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) expands upon the National 
Planning Policy Framework, and specifically deals with the conversion of redundant or disused rural 
buildings. This policy is consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework insofar as it seeks to secure 
high quality design as one of its core planning principles. The policy allows for the re-use of rural buildings 
for residential, tourism or employment uses where they are of substantial and permanent construction, and 
where they make a positive contribution to an area's rural character. An assessment under DM11 is also 
subject to four further criteria, set out below: 
 
a) A suitable access to the building is in place or can be created without damaging the surrounding 

area's rural character and the road network can support the proposed use; 
b) The building can be converted without significant alteration, extension or rebuilding; 
c) The design will retain the original character of the building and its surroundings 
d) The development will retain any nature conservation interest associated with the site or building, and 

provide net gains in biodiversity where possible. 
 
It was agreed between the Authority and the applicant that the building is redundant for agricultural purposes 
and also that it is of substantial and permanent construction as set out in the previous refused planning 
application 14/01474/FULL. This is confirmed in the submitted Structural report although there is no specific 
detail with regard to the removal of the roof and the replacement with the shallow pitched roof as set out in 
the plans submitted. In this case the building's suitability for conversion turns on 2 main factors; 1. Whether 
or not the building positively contributes to the character of the area and 2. Whether or not the proposals 
involve significant alteration, extension or rebuilding. Consideration of this second point is given at section 3 
of this report. 
 
The test of Policy DM11 does not merely require a building to reflect the rural character of an area, but it 
also requires any such building to positively contribute to it. Regarding this test of character, the main 
structure is fairly untypical of buildings found in the rural setting. It features a monopitch corrugated tin roof 
that is gently sloping, wall sections of cob, concrete block and stone, built to an equivalent height of 2 
storeys.  
 

Page 47



AGENDA 26 

There are a number of substantial repairs which have been undertaken including the roof, and rebuilding of 
the north east elevation with breeze block, presumably where sections of cob walling have failed. It is 
unclear whether the building's height with large roof void may have increased from an original single storey 
position. 
 
The building includes 3 main openings, two of which are adjacent to an original stone built wall supporting 
the more modern corrugated roof. This section, open on both sides, gives access to the land proposed to 
become garden space. There is a stone buttress on the south west elevation and some areas of stonework 
visible on the exterior. There is no substantive evidence within this application that setting out the historic 
use of the building, nor are there many clues from visiting the site. Whilst the building features a mixture of 
materials including cob and stone, there has been extensive rebuilding and the shape and height are not 
characteristic of agricultural buildings in any traditional form. Whilst it is considered that more modern 
buildings are capable or making a positive contribution, this building is not considered to be of any intrinsic 
merit, and is thought to make little in the way of positively contribution to the rural setting.  
 
The Authority considers that the building sits awkwardly in its immediate setting adjacent to Goldsmoor 
which is a traditional cottage of more traditional design scale and massing. Whilst the agent has submitted 
further details arguing for the retention of the roof as an original feature, it is still thought there have been 
changes in the buildings height and overall massing, even if the barn has stood in its current form to a 
substantial period of time.  
It was argued in the last application 14/01474/Full that the building is unique and has a special character 
which merits retention for its unusual but positive contribution to the local setting. Whilst the building is 
unusually tall for a traditional barn with such a gently sloping mono-pitched roof, the Authority considers that 
not all buildings within the Mid Devon Countryside necessarily make a positive contribution to the rural 
character and this building is not of an overall shape or form to warrant retention, despite the presence of 
some more traditional materials in places. As such, it is considered that the building fails to meet the 
preliminary character test of Policy DM11. The building was previously assessed under policy and found to 
not comply. Application 14/01474/FULL was therefore refused. 
 
2. Parking and Access 
 
In relation to part a) of policy DM11, the building is already served by an access track running between the 
south west elevation and Goldsmoor House. Vehicular access connects with the Class III road running from 
Whitnage to Westleigh. The Highway Authority has referred to standing advice, although the Authority has 
sought further advice from the Highways Officer in the previous application 14/01474/FULL. Overall it is 
considered that the building is capable of being served by a suitable access, subject to some upgrading and 
hard surfacing. This would also reflect concerns raised by neighbouring residents who have made 
representations on the application. The Highways Officer has advised that there is adequate visibility along 
the road, despite it being unrestricted and generally seeing vehicle speeds of around 40-50 mph. It was 
commented this would not constitute a reason for refusal.  
 
The proposal includes parking provision for 2 vehicles, which is sufficient to meet the requirements of Policy 
DM8, which sets a requirement for 1.7 vehicles per new dwelling. There would also be sufficient parking 
space for vehicles to turn and leave the site in forward gear. Subject to the provision of a permeable surface 
and culvert, the issue of surface run off (as highlighted by neighbours) may also be overcome.  
 
3. Extent of building works 
 
In relation to part b) of DM11, it is not disputed that the building is of a substantial and permanent 
construction already. The structural report concludes that the stone walls need some upgrading in the form 
of repointing. Internally, minor repairs are required to the cob wall sections.  
 
Regarding the test that the building can be converted without significant alteration, extension or rebuilding, 
the proposal indicates on the plans that there will be three new windows, triple folding doors to the North 
East elevation and alteration to the existing window and doors to quad folding patio doors and a single 
glazed door.  
In addition to the south west elevation new windows will be inserted in the main 2 storey area along with 
alteration to the existing windows in the single storey element. Further roof lights are proposed also. Overall 
there is an increase in the number of openings proposed when compared to the earlier refused application 
reference 14/01474/FULL.  
 
 

Page 48



AGENDA 27 

Within this application the roof is to be removed in its entirety on both parts of the building and replaced with 
a pitched roof (although of a shallow pitch not typical of the region at approx. 20 degrees). This new roof will 
require extensive alteration to the existing building to accommodate this proposal. As such, it is considered 
that the building fails to meet the preliminary significant alteration test of Policy DM11. 
 
4. Design 
 
Part c) of Policy DM11 requires the conversion to retain the building's existing character through good 
design. The Authority maintains its position that the existing building is lacking in overall character, and 
therefore it is difficult to achieve a conversion which both retains a level of character and a high quality 
design. The building is proposed to be converted without interrupting the height, scale or massing but there 
are significant changes proposed to the roof. There are new vertically shaped windows and doors proposed 
on the north east elevation which seek to balance the horizontal emphasis. Many of the existing windows 
are more recent additions or repairs (including that on the south east elevation) which do not add to an 
historic character.   
  
The design would retain an external render finish with the replacement low pitched roof. It is not thought that 
the new openings would unsettle the wider design or intrinsically the use of an appropriate pitched roof. 
Although the proposal would not substantially erode the overall appearance of the building at present, it is 
still not considered to be a building of a character which positively contributes to the area's rural character; 
therefore its conversion would be contrary to the preliminary test of Policy DM11 of the Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies).  
 
Policy DM2 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) sets out guidelines on how good 
design can be achieved through new development. This includes works to show a clear understanding of the 
characteristics of the site, a positive contribution to the local character, and to create visually attractive 
places that take into account architecture, siting, layout, orientation, fenestration, materials and landscaping.  
 
The conversion would retain the building's height and massing, although these are not features the Authority 
believes are worthy of retention. It is accepted that the building is not widely visible from the road, although 
the south east elevation is a dominant elevation in contrast to Goldsmoor House and the adjacent single 
storey redundant barn. Furthermore, there is some doubt as to how the building can positively contribute to 
the area's character when it is not considered to do so at present. Overall it is considered that there is an 
outstanding issue of compliance with Policy DM11 that is intrinsically linked to the level of compliance with 
Policy DM2.  
 
5. Ecology 
 
In relation to part d), the ecological report sets out a survey of the building and the assessment and results 
are drawn up in two halves, referred to as Building 1 and 2. Building 1 refers to the larger section of the barn 
equivalent to two storeys in height, whereas Building 2 refers to the smaller single storey concrete block and 
render building.  
 
The survey found evidence of lesser horseshoe bats in Building 2 and the recommendations include the 
creation of a bat night shelter to be created in Building 1 prior to the commencement of work on Building 2. 
The report also recommends other appropriate mitigation including timber treatment, providing access for 
bats and appropriate timing of building works. Whilst it is conceded that there may be an impact on 
protected species, the findings are not considered to be so significant to warrant refusal of the application, 
and it is considered the recommendations could be made as a condition, should the application be 
considered for approval. The report also concludes that an EPS license will required from Natural England. 
 
6. Impact on neighbours and surroundings 
 
The site is largely private with no clear or obvious views from the surrounding countryside. Any landscape 
impact can therefore be said to be localised. The proposed development lies between Goldsmoor House to 
the East and Goldsmoor to the West. There is also a large agricultural shed situated approximately 20 
metres to the North West although this is not visible from the building. The application site is generally well 
screened from Goldsmoor House by an established tree and hedgerow boundary. From the neighbouring 
Goldsmoor Farmhouse there are only slight glimpses of the application site, and therefore the conversion 
would be very unlikely to constitute harm to the privacy or amenity of these neighbours.  
 
 

Page 49



AGENDA 28 

Goldsmoor to the West has a much closer relationship with the building by virtue of its proximity (with the 
south west elevation of the building standing less than 5 metres from the side elevation of the neighbouring 
property). The conversion of the building would increase vehicle movements and noise to and from the site, 
although there conversion would be unlikely to affect privacy between the two sites, as the side (east) 
elevation of Goldsmoor is a more private without any large openings reducing privacy. The proposed design 
of the south west elevation includes only one new opening, which is achieved by partially blocking the 
existing opening of the main barn. This window would serve as a lounge window, although it would no look 
directly into the neighbouring property, nor would it be likely to result in future occupants feeling exposed or 
overlooked by neighbours.  
 
As such, it is not considered that the proposed development would constitute unacceptable harm to the 
privacy or amenity of neighbouring residents, and the conversion would not affect any wider or strategic 
views of the countryside. The proposal can therefore be said to comply with some aspects of COR2 of the 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1), and DM2 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management 
Policies).  
 
REASONS FOR REFUSAL 
 
 1. The existing barn, by virtue of its overall height, massing and construction including a mix of breeze 

block, stone, cob and render with corrugated metal sheet roofing, is considered to be of a low amenity 
value and is not considered to positively contribute to the area's rural character. Overall, it is 
considered that this agricultural building is one that merely reflects the rural character of the local area 
rather than being one that makes any positive contribution to it. In addition the proposal includes for 
the provision of a pitched roof to replace the existing mono-pitched roof structures which would 
amount to significant alteration. The proposed conversion would therefore be contrary to the 
requirements of Policy DM11 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) and the 
supporting information is insufficient to outweigh the conflict with the development plan. 

 
 
INFORMATIVE NOTE 
 
 1. The submitted plan indicates a package treatment plant to be situated approximately 50 metres from 

the neighbouring property's water supply. Should the application be granted planning permission, 
the applicant is advised that any new private water supply must also be at least 50 metres from the 
point of discharge from the package treatment plant in order to comply with building regulations. 

 
 
 
 

Page 50



AGENDA 29 

 

 
 
Application No. 15/00382/FULL Plans List No. 4 

 
 
 
Grid Ref: 
 

299384 : 112863  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Applicant: Mr J Clapp 
  
Location: Land at NGR 299384 

112863 Red Linhay 
Crown Hill Halberton 

  
Proposal: Erection of an 

agricultural livestock 
building (889 sq.m) 

 
  
Date Valid: 17th March 2015 
 

 
 

Page 51



AGENDA 30 

 
Application No. 15/00382/FULL 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 
CLLR RAY RADFORD HAS REQUESTED THAT THIS APPLICATION BE DETERMINED BY THE 
PLANNING COMMITTEE TO CONSIDER WHETHER: 
 
1.  There is a need for a further building. 
2.  Whether crops that were supposed to be used for the AD plant are now proposed to be grazed by 

the beef herd, and 
3. Whether this would result in an increase in traffic movements. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
The proposed development is for the erection of an agricultural livestock building at NGR 299384 112863, 
Red Linhay, Crown Hill, Halberton.  The applicants have advised that the building is intended to 
accommodate a 40 head of cattle, and includes a covered area to be used for feed storage and trailers, a 
cattle handling area and an overhang to protect animals from inclement weather during feed times. 
 
The proposed building measures 32.27m long by 27.61m wide and 7m to the ridge, with a gross floorspace 
therefore of 890sqm. The building is proposed to be located directly adjacent to and to the west of the 
agricultural livestock building granted in Sept 2014 which measures 32 metres long, 14 metres wide, and 
has a floor space of 448sqm². Both buildings will be located north west of the existing general purpose 
agricultural buildings on site, in the corner of a large agricultural field, adjacent to the site entrance. Also on 
site, work is underway to implement the consent granted in July 2014 for an anaerobic digester plant (AD) 
which is proposed to be supplied with feed and waste from the holding. 
 
The proposed building's walling will be constructed using concrete panels, with Yorkshire boarding above 
and a fibre cement roof.  Additional landscaping is proposed by way of a new hornbeam and beech hedge 
planted to the north of the building 
 
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Waste Management Plan  
Waste Audit Statement 
Surface water drainage strategy 
Design and access statement 
Written scheme of investigation: archaeological watching brief 
Planning statement - revision A 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
08/00282/PNAG Prior notification for the erection of an agricultural storage building - NOBJ - 7th March 
2008 
12/00585/PNAG Prior notification for the erection of an agricultural storage building 
PRIOR APPROVAL REQUIRED - LETTER SENT 17TH MAY 2012 - NOBJ - 11th June 2012 
12/00630/FULL Erection of an agricultural livestock building - PERMIT - 19th June 2012 
13/01605/MFUL Erection of a 500kW anaerobic digester and associated works with 4 silage clamps - 
PERMIT - 10th July 2014 
14/00801 Erection of agricultural livestock building - PERMIT - 15th Sept 2014 
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
 
COR2 - Local Distinctiveness 
COR18 - Countryside 
 
 

Page 52



AGENDA 31 

Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM2 - High quality design 
DM22 - Agricultural development 
 
CONSULTATIONS 

 
CULLOMPTON TOWN COUNCIL - 30th March 2015 - No objections 

 
HIGHWAY AUTHORITY - 25th March 2015 
standing advice applies 
http://www.devon.gov.uk/highways-standingadvice.pdf 
 
14th May 2015 - My question would be what are the feed stock. E.g. if it is silage it could go to a clamp and 
be brought in by larger vehicles e.g. duoliners as is the case in Willand hence smaller movements. 
Notwithstanding that 183 m vehicles is 3.5 vehicles a week over the entire network and not significant or 
severe over the road from Post hill so is unlikely to pose a problem. The distance they are travelling may be 
something to consider and whether or not they are local or does sustainable traffic movements come into 
play, this is difficult as there is no definition of local only the 6km that inspector imposed on Menchine. 

 
HALBERTON PARISH COUNCIL - 15.05.15 -  
 
The PC at its recent meeting discussed the contents of your e-mail to Mr Taylor and have no additional 
comments for inclusion in the committee report. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - 9th April 2015  
Contaminated Land - No objections 
Air Quality - No objections 
Drainage - No objections 
Noise and other nuisances - No objections 
Housing Standards - N/A 
Licensing - N/A 
Food Hygiene - N/A 
Private Water Supplies - N/A 
Health and Safety - Health and Safety Executive enforced activity 

 
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT SERVICE - 14th April 2015  
The proposed development lies in an area of archaeological potential with the Historic Environment Record 
showing the presence of prehistoric activity across the wider landscape.  The archaeological monitoring of 
the building to the east did not record any archaeological features being exposed, but two flint tools were 
recovered dating to the late Neolithic or early Bronze Age.  The current planning application lies closer to the 
site of two prehistoric funerary monuments and any groundworks for this proposed development have the 
potential to expose archaeological and artefactual deposits associated with the known prehistoric activity in 
the immediate vicinity. 
 
For this reason and in accordance with paragraph 141 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012)  I 
would advise that any consent your Authority may be minded to issue should carry the condition as worded 
below, based on model Condition 55 as set out in Appendix A of Circular 11/95, whereby: 
 
'No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of 
archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the 
applicant and approved by the Planning Authority.' 
 
The development shall be carried out at all times in strict accordance with the approved scheme, or such 
other details as may be subsequently agreed in writing by the District Planning Authority. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



AGENDA 32 

Reason 
'To ensure that an appropriate record is made of archaeological evidence that may be affected by the 
development' 
 
I would envisage a suitable programme of work as taking the form of the archaeological monitoring and 
recording of topsoil removal and initial ground reduction to enable the identification, investigation and 
recording of any archaeological or artefactual deposits.  The results of the fieldwork and any post-excavation 
analysis undertaken would need to be presented in an appropriately detailed and illustrated report. 
 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 
No letters of representation had been received at the time of writing this report. 
 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
The main issues in the determination of this application are: 
 
1.Justification for the agricultural building 
2.The relationship of the proposed development to the AD plant requirements 
3.Impact on neighbours and the character and appearance of the area 
4.Impact on the environment and local road network 
 
1.  Justification for the agricultural building 
 
The site is located in the open countryside where COR18 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 
1) permits agricultural buildings. DM22 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) permits 
agricultural buildings subject to certain criteria being fulfilled. The development should be reasonably 
necessary to support farming activity on the farm or the immediate agricultural community; not have an 
adverse impact on the living conditions of local residents or the character and appearance of the area; not 
have an unacceptable impact on the environment and not have an unacceptable traffic impact on the local 
road network. 
 
The applicant has advised that the erection of an agricultural building is required in order for the applicant's 
livestock herd to be accommodated on site. There are currently 46 cattle accommodated in the building 
granted permission back in Sept 2014. Your officers have queried why there is a need for a further 
agricultural building so soon after permission was granted for the existing one, and the applicant has 
advised that not only is the business successfully expanding (with additional calves having been bred) but 
there is a need to move more cattle from a holding at Cove and then to keep the pedigree and commercial 
animals in separate buildings.  
 
The proposed building is larger than the existing building as it includes an area for feed and a greater 
overhang to protect the animals form inclement weather. The applicant has been asked whether one of the 
buildings on the opposite side of the track (permitted under agricultural prior notifications in 2008 and 2012) 
could be used for feed storage, particularly the building currently used for grain storage, as this will now go 
straight into the AD plant rather than being stored in the building. This would mean that the size of the 
proposed building could be reduced. However, the applicant has advised that the building is not suitable for 
the storage of feed as fertiliser and seed for the arable crops are kept in the building and neither of these 
should be mixed with feed for cattle due to their poisonous nature. 
 
Therefore on the basis of the information provided, it would appear that the proposed agricultural building is 
justified and complies with Policy DM22 in this respect 
 
2. Impact on neighbours and the character and appearance of the area 
 
The proposed agricultural building will be visible from the public highway to the north known as Crown Hill. 
However, the building's visual impact is mitigated by the retention of mature hedges that will act to partly 
screen the building from the highway, and this building would be located 'behind' the existing building. Whilst 
there are houses near the site, there are other intervening buildings between them and therefore any 
impacts on neighbours will be low.  
 
 
 

Page 54



AGENDA 33 

The design of the building reflects that of a standard agricultural building, and the building will be viewed in 
the context of the other buildings on site, forming part of the existing farm complex; consequently any 
impacts on the wider landscape are considered to be low. The building will also be visible from the main 
road between Halberton and Tiverton but this would be at a distance. As such, the development can be 
considered to be well-designed and appropriately located, respecting the character and appearance of the 
area in accordance with Policy COR18 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and Policies 
DM2 and DM22 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies).  
 
The proposed site is located approximately 150 metres from the Grand Western Canal and associated 
Conservation Area. It is not considered to impact upon the canal/the associated conservation area or setting 
such as to warrant refusal of the application. It will add to the group of buildings in this location, particularly 
once the Anaerobic Digester plant is completed. The proposed livestock building would be behind the 
Anaerobic Digester when viewed from the canal direction. In this respect it is also considered acceptable. 
 
3. Impact on the environment and local road network 
 
The submitted Waste Management Plan advises that the herd is bedded on straw so there is no slurry 
production or dirty water. When the building is cleaned out, the waste is either stored on a sloping concrete 
pad or taken directly out to temporary field heaps but once the AD plant has been commissioned, all manure 
will be deposited there in the generation of renewable energy. As a result, the proposal is considered to 
have a limited impact on the environment. 
 
With regards to the local road network, the Highway Authority have advised that standing advice applies. 
When applying this standing advice, it is concluded that the access is sufficient to cater for the additional 
development in that it is of sufficient dimension and has adequate visibility. The applicants have advised that 
they intend to move their herd currently located on land at Cove to the application site which will therefore 
reduce the number of transport movements from the site necessitated presently by a need to visit the 
animals in Cove on a daily basis. 
 
However, there is concern that in determining the application for the AD plant, the applicant advised that the 
land on and around the current application site and that for the building granted in Sept 2014 was to be used 
for arable faming to supply the AD plant. Consequently, by approving the building, some of that land will not 
be available. However, the area in question is relatively small and unlikely to significantly affect the operation 
of the AD plant. Of greater concern is the use of the land around the buildings for the grazing of the cattle. 
The applicant has advised that 'the fields immediately surrounding the site are to be retained as 'grassland 
with the remaining acres given over to the growing of wheat and barley, that in turn provide food and 
bedding for the livestock.' Clarification has been sought from the applicant on the area of land involved. The 
concern is that if less AD feedstock comes from the holding, more will need to be brought in by road and the 
impact this will have on the local highway network, including the junction with Post Hill and the road through 
Halberton. 
 
However the applicant has confirmed that only 99 of the 151 hectares at Hartnoll and Manley Lane were to 
be used for the AD plant (This is confirmed in the Transport Assessment for the AD plant) and that this 
leaves a balance of 52 hectares for the needs of the cattle. In the applicants opinion therefore, there would 
be no need to bring any additional feedstock for the AD plant in by road. 
 
Even if the development did necessitate the bringing in feedstock for the AD plant from elsewhere, the 
Highway Authority have advised that there is capacity within the network for the level of traffic that this would 
give rise to and hence do not wish to object to the proposal.  
 
On this basis, the proposal is consider to comply with the final criteria of Policy DM22 in terms of impact on 
the environment and local road network. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 

of this permission. 
 
 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed in 

the schedule on the decision notice. 
 
 

Page 55



AGENDA 34 

 3. No development shall take place until the developer has secured the implementation of a programme 
of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which shall first have been 
submitted to, and be approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 
carried out at all times in accordance with the approved scheme, or such other details as may be 
subsequently agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 4. All planting comprised in the approved details of landscaping as shown on drawing: P495/03 Rev A, 

shall be carried out within 9 months of the substantial completion of the development and be so 
retained. Any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the implementation of the scheme 
die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting 
season with others of similar size and species. 

 
 
REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 
 1. In accordance with the provisions of Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 3. The site lies in an area of archaeological potential with the Historic Environment Record showing the 

presence of prehistoric activity across the wider landscape. As such a pre-commencement condition is 
justified to ensure that an appropriate record is made of archaeological evidence that may be affected 
or lost once the development commences in accordance with Policy DM27 of Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies) and guidance in the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF). 

 
 4. To ensure that the development makes a positive contribution to the character and amenity of the 

area in accordance with Policy DM2 of the Local Plan Part 3: (Development Management Policies). 
  
REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT 
 
The proposed agricultural building is considered to be reasonably necessary to be used in connection with 
the business of rearing and keeping cows at the Red Linhay site, Crown Hill. It is not considered the 
application will have an unacceptable adverse impact on the neighbours, the character of the area including 
the Grand Western Canal and associated Conservation Area, the environment, or the local road network.  
Consequently this application is deemed to comply with Policies COR2 and COR18 of the Mid Devon Core 
Strategy (Local Plan Part 1), Policies DM2, DM8 and DM22 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development 
Management Policies) and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
  
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



AGENDA 35 

 

 
 
Application No. 15/00533/FULL Plans List No. 5 

 
 
 
Grid Ref: 
 

300503 : 112348  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Applicant: Mr C Dibble 
  
Location: Land at NGR 300503 

112348 (Bycott Farm) 
Lower Town Halberton 
Devon 

  
Proposal: Retention of cover 

over existing silage 
clamp 

 
  
Date Valid: 26th March 2015 
 
 

 
 

Page 57



AGENDA 36 

 
Application No. 15/00533/FULL 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 
CLLR RAY RADFORD HAS REQUESTED THAT THIS APPLICATION BE DETERMINED BY THE 
PLANNING COMMITTEE FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON: 
 
The proposed change of previously approved material of Yorkshire boarding to a dark grey profiled sheeting 
will have an adverse visual impact on the surrounding area. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
Retention of cover over an existing silage clamp.  
 
Planning permission was granted in 2014 under 14/01861/FULL for the provision of a cover over the existing 
silage clamp. The proposed cover/building measures 14.868m (w) x 26.165m (l) x 13m (h) to ridge. The 
previously approved plans showed the cladding material to be tantalised timber Yorkshire boarding on 
sheeting rails. 
The building has subsequently been constructed to the size set out in the 2014 approval. However the 
external cladding material has changed from the timber vertical boards to dark grey aluminium profile 
sheeting set vertically.  In addition the colour of the roof differs from that approved in that it is a light grey 
rather than dark grey. 
 
There are no other changes to the building. 
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Planning Statement. 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
02/01673/PNAG Prior notification for the erection of agricultural storage building - REC - 
99/02956/FULL Erection of an agricultural livestock building - PERMIT - 11.10.99 
09/01492/PNAG Prior notification for the erection of an agricultural building - NOBJ - 21.10.09  
11/00610/MFUL Erection of extension to existing slurry store - PERMIT - 20.07.11 
14/00803/MFUL Erection of an agricultural livestock building (3,612 sqm) - WDN - 16.06.14 
14/01073/MFUL Erection of an agricultural livestock building (3,811.7 sqm) (Revised Scheme) - PERMIT - 
03.10.14 
14/01861/FULL Erection of cover over existing silage clamp - PERMIT - 22.12.14 
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
 
COR18 - Countryside 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM2 - High quality design 
DM22 - Agricultural development 
DM27 - Development affecting heritage assets 
 
CONSULTATIONS 

 
HIGHWAY AUTHORITY - 20th April 2015 
 
Standing advice applies please see Devon County Council document http://www.devon.gov.uk/highways-
standingadvice.pdf 

 

Page 58



AGENDA 37 

HALBERTON PARISH COUNCIL - 30th April 2015  
Recommend refusal - The building should be clad in Yorkshire Board style tanalised timber as per the 
planning permission  14/01861/FULL for the same silage clamp cover as shown on original plan No. 
P489/06/REV.A for the south west and north west elevation dated 17.12.14. 
 
Members of the Parish Council have received complaints regarding the appearance of this structure from 
nearby residents. 
 
The Parish Council also requested that this application be called in by MDDC Cllr. Radford if the Local 
Planning Authority are minded to approve it 
 

 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 
None received. 
 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
This building is covering an existing silage clamp in order to provide dry storage for feed which is bulk 
purchased for the large herd of dairy cattle farmed on the holding. Planning permission was granted in 2014 
for the erection of a cover over the silage clamp but has been clad in a differing material and this application 
therefore seeks to retain the constructed building with the replacement material (grey Profile sheeting). The 
building is constructed off the existing silage clamp walls.  The original consent specified Yorkshire boarding 
walling on the side walls and partial cladding on one of the gables, all under a corrugated fibre cement roof 
in anthracite colour (dark grey).  However the applicant has constructed the building utilising an alternative 
material for the exterior cladding. This alternative cladding was substituted to ensure the silage clamp area 
is protected fully from inclement weather. This change to the material will enable the increase of storage 
periods as well as protecting the wheat and its quality. The building is a height of 13 metres above highest 
surrounding ground level, as the existing silage clamp is constructed on partially elevated ground which 
houses the effluent tank for the silage clamps which are in this area. The roof as constructed is a light grey 
colour. 
 
The height of the building is unusual for an agricultural building and is 5 metres higher than the next highest 
existing building on the holding. The alternative covering to the building is dark grey aluminium profiled 
sheeting similar in style to other buildings surrounding the new building. However, the building is located in 
the centre of the existing farmyard and due to the surrounding topography, vegetation and built environment; 
the site is not easily seen from public vantage points, other than for views from the lane which gives 
glimpsed views. The height of the building is required in order to allow for articulated tipping lorries to extend 
to full height to tip loads of soda wheat, which is said to be very sticky and so requires full extension in order 
to empty the load. Policy DM22 is supportive of agricultural proposals which are reasonably necessary to 
support farming activities. In this instance the applicant's business has grown in recent years and the dairy 
herd is now much larger and so feed is purchased in bulk to bring costs down, which is essential as milk 
prices have gone down significantly in the past 12 months. It is therefore accepted that the building is 
reasonably necessary for the holding and it should also be noted that the building seeking retention is the 
same height as that granted consent on the site in 2014.  
 
The farm lies close to but outside of the Conservation Area for Halberton and the main farmhouse is 
considered to be an unlisted heritage asset, although it is not presently on the register of such assets. 
Having regard to the limited public visibility of the building, and the use of the profile sheeting rather than 
Yorkshire boarding, it is considered that the alternative material will match ostensibly with those of the 
immediately surrounding agricultural buildings.  It is also considered that the alternative material will 
preserve the setting of both the Conservation Area and the unlisted farmhouse, will not have a detrimental 
impact on neighbouring properties greater than the previously approved material (Yorkshire Boarding) and 
on this basis the application accords with Policies DM2, DM22 and DM27 of Local Plan Part 3 (Development 
Management Policies). Nevertheless, given the height of the building, it is considered appropriate to include 
a condition requiring the removal of the building should it no longer be necessary for agricultural purposes.  
No change in roof colour is also considered acceptable given its location within a group of other buildings. 
 
No neighbour representations have been received but the Parish Council has now raised objection to the 
alternative cladding material stating the Parish Council have received complaints regarding the appearance 
of this structure from nearby residents. 
 

Page 59



AGENDA 38 

The site is a sufficient distance from neighbouring properties so as to not cause demonstrable harm to visual 
amenity and on the basis that it will not house livestock, will not cause any other form of nuisance.  
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 1. The date of commencement of this development shall be taken as the 26th March 2015 when the 

application was registered by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed in 

the schedule on the decision notice. 
 
 3. The building hereby approved, shall be used only for agricultural purposes. On its becoming 

redundant for such purposes, it shall be demolished, and all materials resulting from the demolition 
shall be removed from the site, within 3 years of the date this occurs. 

 
REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 
 1. In order to establish a legal commencement date for the development to enable the development to 

be monitored by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 3. To safeguard the rural character of the area in accordance with policies DM2 and DM22 of the Local 

Plan Part 3: (Development Management Policies). 
 
REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT 
 
The proposed agricultural building is considered to be reasonably necessary for the purposes of agriculture 
on the holding and by virtue of its scale, massing, design and location within the centre of the farmyard is not 
considered to harm the amenity of the occupiers of nearby dwellings, or its surroundings, including the 
setting of the Halberton Conservation Area and that of the unlisted Bycott Farmhouse which is considered to 
be an unlisted heritage asset. As such the proposal is considered to comply with Policies COR18 of Mid 
Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and DM2, DM22 and DM27 of Local Plan Part 3 (Development 
Management Policies). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



AGENDA 39 

 

 
 
Application No. 15/00507/MFUL Plans List No. 6 

 
 
 
Grid Ref: 
 

304319 : 114213  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Applicant: First Great Western 
  
Location: Land at NGR 304319 

114213 (Tiverton 
Parkway) Sampford 
Peverell Devon  

  
Proposal: New surface car park 

and associated lighting 
 
  
Date Valid: 30th March 2015 
 

 
 
 

Page 61



AGENDA 40 

 
Application No. 15/00507/MFUL 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
This is a full application for the retention of a surface level car park and access together with additional 
works to upgrade surfacing, landscaping and associated lighting. It is proposed to create approx. 185 car 
parking spaces. The car park is located on the north east side of the approach road to Tiverton Parkway 
Station, set down below the A361. 
 
The site is relatively flat and was formally an agricultural field. The surface car park which is there at present 
was established on a temporary basis without planning permission back in Winter 2013/14. It was 'tolerated' 
by the Local Planning Authority on a temporary basis to deal with an emergency. The car park was to be 
used to enable alternative coach transfer during the period when the Dawlish line was closed due to the 
winter storms. The applicants were advised that the Local Planning Authority would not take formal 
enforcement action during that time but that the land should be restored to its previous state and use within 
1 calendar month of the Dawlish railway line being re-opened. The line was re-opened in approx. April 2014 
and the car park still remains on site, albeit that it is not currently used. 
 
The nearest residential property is known as 'Jersey Cottage' which is located to the north of the application 
site. 
 
A previous application for car parking at the site was refused earlier this year. This was on grounds of 
insufficient consideration of site options, insufficient information on traffic generation and insufficient regard 
to the amenity of the occupiers of the nearest property Jersey Cottage. The main changes that have now 
been made to the scheme following that refusal are: 
a) Additional supporting information has been provided 
b) The extent of the car park has been reduced so that it doesn't go so far to the north west as 

previously 
c) Additional planting proposals have been provided 
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Transport Case and Access Strategy 
Letters of support from Barnstaple and District Chamber of Commerce, Plymouth City Council, Somerset 
County Council, Devon and Cornwall Business Council,  
Site Options Appraisal 
Phase 1 Habitat Survey 
Flood Risk Assessment 
Transport Assessment for Overflow Car Park 
Planning Report and Design and Access Statement 
 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
Application site: 
14/01629/MFUL - New surface car park and associated lighting - REFUSED 26/01/15 
 
Adjacent site: 
07/00466/MFUL - use of land for formation of car park with 215 new parking spaces - PERMIT 
07/01908/MFUL - use of land for formation of car park with 215 new parking spaces (revised scheme) - 
PERMIT 
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
 
COR18 - Countryside 
 

Page 62



AGENDA 41 

Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
DM2 - High quality design 
DM6 - Transport and air quality 
DM8 - Parking 
 
CONSULTATIONS 

 
DEVON & CORNWALL POLICE AUTHORITY - 8th April 2015  
I believe that this car park will serve British rail station at Tiverton, if that is the case can I please confirm that 
British Transport Police have had some consultation especially in relation to CCTV and appropriate lighting. 
 
If no consultation has been undertaken with BTP please let me know and I will forward to the appropriate 
department.  This is of course assuming the car park does indeed serve the rail station. 
 
At the time of writing this report, no response had been received from British Transport Police. 

 
HIGHWAY AUTHORITY - 15th April 2015 
There has been no further progress only in so far as discussion on its alignment. From a planning 
perspective you may find it easier to Grampian the provision of the footway and any discussion on its 
delivery or contribution can be dealt with through a section 278 agreement of the highways act, thus 
negating the need for a section 106.   
 
I will formally respond to the application and will include a Grampian with possible wording as follows - No 
works shall commence on site until the provision of a footway or contributions towards the provision of a 
footway from the junction with lower town to the entrance to the new car park has been provided and agreed 
in writing with the Local Planning Authority . 
 
The estimated cost of the footway would be approximately £170,000.00 and the level of contribution would 
need to be negotiated. 
 
15th April 2015 
The Highway Authority has no objection in principle and the Local Planning Authority will be aware of the 
previous comments and recommendations with regard to this application and the need to deliver the footway 
from Lower town to the car park. The applicant has indicated on his plan that this is to be delivered by the 
Local Highway Authority. The highway Authority has identified the footway as a scheme but would condition 
either the provision of this footway or a contribution towards its delivery as part of this development. This 
footway scheme is to service the train station as its primary function and the increase risk associated by the 
new car park warrants its delivery.   
 
The Highway Authority has indicated that a Grampian style condition as set out below could be imposed or 
the contribution/works secured by section 106. It is a matter for the Local Planning Authority to consider 
which would be the most expedient manner for its delivery " No use of the car park shall commence on site 
until the provision of a footway or contributions towards the provision of a footway from the junction with 
lower town to the entrance to the new car park has been provided and agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority".   
 
The Highway Authority had estimated that the cost of the footway as a ball park figure would be in the region 
of £170,000.00 and the level of contribution would need to be negotiated should the applicant determine not 
to provide the footway Recommendation: 
THE HEAD OF PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION AND ENVIRONMENT, ON BEHALF OF DEVON 
COUNTY COUNCIL, AS LOCAL HIGHWAY AUTHORITY,MAY WISH TO RECOMMEND CONDITIONS ON 
ANY GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION  
1. Off-Site Highway Works. No use of the development shall take place on site until the off-site highway 
works for the provision of/or contributions towards the provision of a footway from Lower town to the 
applicant site have be made available for use. 
 
REASON: To minimise the impact of the development on the highway network in accordance with NPPF 
Policy 32. 

 

Page 63



AGENDA 42 

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY - 14th April 2015  
No objections to the proposal subject to 
-        the car park being built at a minimum level of 75.4m, 
-        there being no storage or spreading of material on adjacent areas of floodplain, 
-        and an area of land be lowered to offset the loss of FZ2 floodplain storage that occurred as a 
consequence of the car parks construction. 
 
The car park was constructed in the winter of 2014 following disruption to railway services into the south 
west following the temporary loss of the main line at Dawlish. The general principles of the car park were set 
out at a site visit and in the absence of a formal flood risk assessment. 
 
The applicants flood risk assessment submission has highlighted that the north east corner of the existing 
car park is low and hence we consider should be raised slightly to cater for severe flood occurrences. It is for 
this reason we advise localised raising to a level of 75.4m be carried out. 
 
In terms of providing floodplain compensation we advise that an area equal to the equivalent area of FZ2 
lost under the car park be lowered to a level of 74.8m. 

 
SAMPFORD PEVERELL PARISH COUNCIL - 20th April 2015  
Sampford Peverell Parish Council recognises the need for additional car parking space to serve Tiverton 
Parkway station. The application is therefore supported in principle. But, the Parish Council considers that 
the extra traffic likely to be generated by the scheme requires a number of mitigating measures to ensure 
the safety of non-motorists who use the station and the associated 'cycle route.  
 
Firstly, a footpath and a 'cycle track is necessary so that non-motorists can proceed in safety from the 
station to Lower Town. 
 
Secondly, this footpath/'cycle track should be adequately lit. 
 
Thirdly, there should be a 40 or 30 mph speed limit imposed upon Station Road along its entire length.  
 
A final comment (that the Parish Council appreciates is not a planning matter): it would be beneficial if the 
new car park were to be controlled by an organisation other than the company that manages existing 
parking so as to introduce some competition into parking charges for Tiverton Parkway station users. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - 16th April 2015 
Contaminated Land - N/A 
Air Quality - N/A 
Waste & Sustainability  
Drainage - no objections to this proposal 
Noise & other nuisances - no objections to this proposal 
Housing Standards - Not applicable 
Licensing - Not applicable 
Food Hygiene - Not applicable 
Private Water Supplies - Not applicable 
Health and Safety Health and Safety Executive enforced activity -  no objections 
 
NATURAL ENGLAND - 16th April 2015  
Natural England has previously commented on this proposal and made comments to the authority in our 
letter dated 09 April  2015. 
The advice provided in our previous response applies equally to this application although we made no 
objection to the original proposal (14/01629/MFUL). 
 
Should the proposal be amended in a way which significantly affects its impact on the natural environment 
then, in accordance with Section 4 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006, Natural 
England should be consulted again.  Before sending us the amended consultation, please assess whether 
the changes proposed will materially affect any of the advice we have previously offered.  If they are unlikely 
to do so, please do not re-consult us. 
 
 
 

Page 64



AGENDA 43 

9th April 2015 
Natural England has previously commented on this proposal and made comments to the authority in our 
letter dated 03 November 2014. 
The advice provided in our previous response applies equally to this application although we made no 
objection to the original proposal (14/01629/MFUL).  Should the proposal be amended in a way which 
significantly affects its impact on the natural environment then, in accordance with Section 4 of the Natural 
Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006, Natural England should be consulted again.  Before sending 
us the amended consultation, please assess whether the changes proposed will materially affect any of the 
advice we have previously offered.  If they are unlikely to do so, please do not re-consult us. 
 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 
1 letter of objection had been received at the time of writing this report, summarised as follows:  
a) Inaccuracies in plans and submitted details 
b) Proposed movement of boundary of car park still means it would be within 60m of nearest dwelling 

and 40m of boundary 
c) Landscaping would take 5-10 yrs to establish, no planting proposed on top of bund and type of tree 

proposed inadequate to mitigate impact on Jersey Cottage 
d) Applicants should consider moving entrance south westwards from current location to protect 

amenity of Jersey Cottage 
e) Lighting proposal improved over previous submission but need to ensure compliance with DM2 
f) Creating this car park on a temporary basis should not be a reason to grant permanent consent 
g) Other possible sites have been dismissed without any real consideration and would be more 

convenient to passengers using the station 
h) Car parks should be grouped to prevent spread of development in open countryside 
 
3 letters of support were submitted with the application, summarised as follows: 
a) Essential rail link for business and private travellers from North Devon and further afield 
b) Existing car parking facilities are inadequate and could deter people from using service 
c) If modal shift from cars to rail is to be encouraged, people need to be able to park. If they arrive at 

station and there is nowhere to park, people will continue their journey by car 
d) Tiverton station can secure its position as a gateway to Devon with frequent direct services to and 
 from London but investment needed otherwise could be damaging to Mid Devon economy 
 
 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
The main considerations in the determination of this application are:  
1) Land use policy 
2) Planning history 
3) Consideration of need for development 
4) Consideration of alternative sites 
5) Highway safety 
6) Impact on adjacent property  
7) Flood risk 
8) EIA screening  
9) Planning balance 
 
1) Land use policy 
The site is located outside any settlement, in the countryside where Policy COR18 of the Mid Devon Core 
Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) seeks to strictly control development outside settlement limits but permits 
transportation and infrastructure proposals with an overall strategy to deliver sustainable development. 
Policy DM1 of Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) seeks to approve sustainable 
development. It mirrors para 14 in the National Planning Policy Framework and states: 
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of date at the time of 
making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless material considerations indicate otherwise 
taking into account whether: 
a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly 
and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against 
national policy taken as a whole; or 
b) Specific national policies indicate that development should be 
restricted. 

Page 65



AGENDA 44 

 
Policy DM2 seeks high quality new development which makes a positive contribution to local character, is 
visually attractive, well integrated and do not have an adverse effect on residential amenity. Policy DM6 
reflects the National Planning Policy Framework in that developments which generate significant levels of 
traffic should be accompanied by an Integrated Transport Assessment. Policy DM8 relates to appropriate 
levels of parking provision and requires that design must enable and encourage the maximum use of 
sustainable modes of transport, including provision for cyclists and low-emission vehicles. 
 
Therefore consideration must be given as to whether the proposal is sustainable and whether any adverse 
impacts of granting planning permission could significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits. 
 
2) Planning history 
 
Application 14/01629/MFUL was refused earlier this year for the following reasons: 
 
i)The site is located in the open countryside. The Local Planning Authority is not satisfied that the 
information submitted robustly addresses all options for parking at the station, the pro's and con's of each 
and provides a balanced recommendation for progressing one option over another. Neither does it clearly 
justify why certain options were being considered to deal with the longer term passenger number projections 
but not the more immediate need. The Local Planning Authority are of the view that without that justification 
the adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits 
contrary to Policy DM1 of Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) and the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
ii)The Local Planning Authority is not satisfied that sufficient information has been submitted to date to 
comprehensively consider traffic generation, its impact and mitigation in the form of an Integrated Transport 
Assessment, contrary to Policy DM6 of Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 
 
iii)The nearest neighbouring property is just 25m away from the boundary of the car park. The Local 
Planning Authority is not satisfied that sufficient regard has been had to the amenity of the owners of the 
adjacent property in terms of noise, disturbance and light pollution from the proposed development in 
considering mitigation measures for the proposed development. Consequently the proposal is considered to 
be contrary to Policy DM2 of Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 
 
Members must now consider whether the information which has been submitted with this current application 
is sufficient to overcome the reasons for refusal issued previously. 
 
3) Consideration of need for development 
 
The 'Transport Case and Access Strategy' submitted with the application states that Tiverton Parkway 
Station is a key hub linking strategic rail and road networks from across Devon and Cornwall with a rail 
service that provides a journey time to London Paddington of 2 hours. This results in a high number of 
passengers arriving at the station by car due to the distance they have travelled (i.e from North Devon and 
Cornwall) and the lack of alternative public transport.  
 
 
The Devon and Torbay Local Transport Plan recognises that Parkway stations support modal shift (getting 
people out of their cars and using some other form of transport) for long distance trips and reduce private 
vehicle travel in situations where public transport is not an option for the whole journey. There is therefore a 
need to provide adequate parking facilities at Parkway stations to reduce the need for people to drive into 
urban centres or make longer car trips. This is a view also supported in the letters of support submitted with 
the application which refer to passengers who are unable to find a car parking space at Tiverton Parkway 
Station, being more likely to continue their journey by car rather than using the train. 
 
There are currently 230 spaces in the main station car park, the existing overflow provides another 216 
spaces (total of 446) and the proposed car park would add a further 185 spaces (totalling 631 spaces). In a 
survey of car park occupancy, the existing car park was shown to be over 90% full on one in three midweek 
days 
 
The applicant has recently had to negotiate a new franchise for the rail service and this necessitated 
forecasting passenger demand and parking requirements.  
 

Page 66



AGENDA 45 

This work showed that passenger numbers are now in excess of 400,000 per year and that this is more than 
double that of 10 years ago and that parking demand will surpass capacity within 3 years and will be almost 
20% over capacity by 2026. It is understood that these forecasts do not include any additional demand 
generated by the Tiverton Eastern Urban Extension proposals, which themselves recognise the importance 
of Tiverton Parkway Station and the need to create/improve modal links between the two. 
 
A survey carried out in 2009 (after the opening of the overflow car park) showed that 93% of passengers 
had used the car at some point to access the station, in contrast to only 15% accessing the station at some 
point by either cycle or walking. It is acknowledged that Tiverton Parkway has a high reliance on people 
being able to access the facility by private car but the submitted information also sets out ways in which a 
modal shift can be encouraged, particularly for people travelling a shorter distance to use the facility. As a 
result, the application includes an 'Access Strategy' which sets out various schemes which can deliver this 
and these include establishing a 'cycle' hub' where funding has already been secured from the Cycle Rail 
Fund, pedestrian footpath improvements and expanded cycle routes. This demonstrates that the applicant 
doesn't just consider that providing additional car parking will solve the problems at the station and it 
represents a more comprehensive approach to the issue which was lacking in the earlier application. 
 
Having considered the information submitted, your officers are satisfied that the applicant has been able to 
robustly demonstrate a need for the development, given the sites location in the countryside and its strategic 
function. 
 
4) Consideration of alternative sites 
 
The previous application did not include any robust information which showed that various options for car 
parking at the station had been considered, the pro's and con's of each and a balanced reasoning for 
progressing one site over another. Given the sites location in the countryside, it is necessary to consider 
whether the proposal is the most suitable form of development required to address the need set out above. 
The current application includes a document titled ' Site options Appraisal' and clearly demonstrates that the 
application site, together with 4 other new sites and a proposal to provide a first floor deck over the existing 
main car park have been considered. One of the main problems with alternative locations is that much of the 
land around the station lies within Floodzone 3, where sequentially it would not be appropriate to provide 
additional parking where other land at a lower risk of flooding is available. Even turning the existing car park 
through 90 degrees would involve Flood zone 2 land. On the basis of the information submitted with this 
current application, your officers are satisfied that sufficient consideration has been given to whether there 
are other alternative sites which may be more appropriate and that sufficient justification has been put 
forward to justify the location of the current proposal and hence overcome the previous reason for refusal 1 
on the previous decision 
 
5) Highway safety and transport assessment 
 
The letter of objection received made reference to no integrated transport assessment having been 
submitted as required by Policy DM6 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 
However the applicants have submitted 2 documents, one titled ' Transport Case and Access Strategy' and 
the other titled 'Transport Assessment for Overflow Car Park' and therefore comply with the requirements of 
Policy DM6.  
The Highway Authority have considered the submitted information and are of the view that the additional 
traffic attracted to Tiverton Parkway will lead to an increased risk of conflict between those vehicles and 
pedestrian and cycle traffic using the same road to access the station without segregated footways. 
 
Clearly this proposal will result in more traffic being attracted to the site (41% more parking spaces are being 
provided over that which exist now) and the submitted documents (set out above) do show that some 
passengers access the station on foot or by bike and that there is an intention to encourage a further modal 
shift away from the car with various projects being proposed.  
 
On this basis, it is considered appropriate for the development to contribute towards the provision of a 
pedestrian footway from the junction with Lower Town to the car park the subject of this application. The 
submitted drawings show that from the car park, there is pedestrian access through to the existing overflow 
car park and from there to the station road where there is already a footway provision. The provision of a 
pedestrian footway from the junction with Lower Town to the car park, can be provided on County Highway 
land and the Highway Authority are therefore seeking a financial contribution towards it by way of a s106 
agreement.  
 

Page 67



AGENDA 46 

Devon County Council have advised your officers that the likely cost of the footway would be in the region of 
£170,000 and that they have some money available but would be looking for a contribution of £100,000 from 
the applicants. At the time of writing this report, no response to this request had been forthcoming from the 
applicant, but this would be required to ensure compliance with Policy DM2 of Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies) which seeks to 'create safe and accessible places that also encourage 
sustainable modes of travel such as walking and cycling'.  An update on this will be provided at Committee. 
 
6) Impact on adjacent property  
 
A letter of objection has been received from the adjacent property owner. 'Jersey Cottage' is located 60m 
away from the closest boundary of the proposed car park, with the boundary of the curtilage being 40m 
away from the car park. This has been increased from the previous application by deleting the area of car 
park lying closest to the property from the application. The owner has expressed concerns about the impact 
on his amenity of the property in terms of light pollution, noise and general disturbance. The Local Planning 
Authority was not satisfied that the previous scheme had sought to satisfactorily mitigate those impacts and 
consequently reason for refusal 3 was attached to the refusal. The previous application showed the car park 
being closer to Jersey Cottage, the removal of the existing bund in this area and no specific details of 
planting. The current application has also amended the lighting details resulting in lower lighting columns, 
downward directing LED lighting and timer switches.  
 
The objector has indicated that the changes made are an improvement over the previous scheme but still 
remains concerned that the landscaping is not sufficiently robust and that his amenity would be improved 
further by moving the access from its current location, eastwards, further from his property. The detailed 
landscaping of the bund and additional tree planting can be conditioned so that this can be improved. Your 
officers have asked the applicant to consider the moving of the access eastwards but have been advised 
that 'We have considered an alternative access closer to the station, but we are constrained by the visibility 
spay, proximity to the existing overflow car park and existing ditch. Locating the entrance in this location 
would result in additional safety risks with minimal reduction in disruption to the neighbours. Your officers 
have therefore considered whether the scheme as submitted with the access at the north western end of the 
site results in such an adverse impact on the amenity of occupiers of Jersey Cottage as to warrant a refusal. 
On balance, it is considered that with the planting of the bund, additional tree planting, the removal of the 
area of land closest to Jersey Cottage from the application and the alterations to the lighting, the impact of 
the development as proposed will not have such an adverse effect as to warrant a refusal. Consequently it is 
considered that there are sufficient mitigation measures proposed to ensure compliance with Policy DM2 of 
the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 
 
7) Flood risk 
 
The application site is located in the main in Flood Zone 1 and consequently the Environment Agency have 
not objected to the proposal. However, they have asked for confirmation that the surface water drainage 
aspects of the proposal shall be maintained for the lifetime of the development and this could be done via 
condition, together with confirmation that the car park is built at a minimum level of 75.4m, there being no 
storage or spreading of material on adjacent areas of floodplain, and an area of land be lowered to offset the 
loss of Flood Zone 2 floodplain storage that occurred as a consequence of the car parks construction. 
 
At the time of writing this report, this information was awaited from the applicant and an update on this will 
be provided at committee 
 
8) EIA screening  
 
The previous application has been screened under the EIA regs and was found not to require an EIA. A 
copy of the screening opinion has been placed on file, DMS and in EIA register 
 
8) Planning Balance 
 
Your officers are satisfied that the applicants have submitted a robust case to illustrate the need for 
additional parking, their commitment to encouraging a modal shift in passengers arriving at the station and 
have justified why the chosen location is the most appropriate. Your officers fully understand the benefits 
that additional parking and infrastructure at Tiverton parkway can bring to the economy of Mid Devon and 
the wider south west and have weighed all this against the objections received from the occupier of the 
adjacent property.  
 

Page 68



AGENDA 47 

Your officers consider that appropriate mitigation measures have been put in place to sufficiently protect 
residential amenity and that the impact of the development as proposed will not have such an adverse effect 
as to warrant a refusal. On the basis that the outstanding concerns of the Environment Agency are 
addressed and a financial contribution is secured towards the provision of the footway, your officers are 
satisfied that the development is acceptable and complies with relevant policy. 
 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 

of this permission. 
 
 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed in 

the schedule on the decision notice. 
 
 3. Notwithstanding the submitted details, the use of the car park shall not begin until there has been 

submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, a landscaping scheme, 
including details of the changes proposed in existing ground levels. All planting, seeding, turfing or 
earth reprofiling comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out within 9 months 
of the substantial completion of the development and be so retained.  Any trees or plants which, within 
a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously 
damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and 
species. 

 
 4. The use of the car park shall not begin until there has been submitted to, and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority, details of the times when the car parking lighting will be turned off and 
the mechanism used to enable this to happen. The lighting of the car park shall thereafter only be in 
accordance with the approved details. 

 
 5. The use of the car park shall not begin until the works required to lower the land to offset the loss of 

Flood Zone 2 floodplain storage that occurred as a consequence of the car parks construction, shall 
have been carried out. 

 
 6. The use of the car park shall not begin until the surface water drainage scheme as shown on drawing 

no: B00989-500 Rev: P01 and as set out in paragraph 4.2 of the submitted Flood Risk Assessment 
have been completed.  The drainage scheme shall thereafter be so retained. 

 
 7. The use of the car park shall not begin until a maintenance strategy for the surface water drainage 

scheme, for the lifetime of the development, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the surface water drainage scheme shall be maintained in 
accordance with those approved details.  

  
 
 
REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 
 1. In accordance with the provisions of Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 3. To ensure that the development makes a positive contribution to the character and amenity of the 

area and protects the amenity of the neighbouring property in accordance with Policy DM2 of Local 
Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 

 
 4. To ensure that the development protects the amenity of the neighbouring property in accordance with 

Policy DM2 of Local Plan Part 3: (Development Management Policies). 
 
 5. To protect the functionality of the floodplain. 
 
 6. To ensure that there is a suitable scheme in place to deal with surface water and to protect the 

functionality of the floodplain. 
 

Page 69



AGENDA 48 

 7. To ensure the SUC scheme can perform its intended function for the lifetime of the development to 
protect the functionality of the floodplain. 

 
 
REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT 
 
 
The Local Planning Authority are satisfied that the applicants have submitted a robust case to illustrate the 
need for additional parking, their commitment to encouraging a modal shift in passengers arriving at the 
station and have justified why the chosen location is the most appropriate. The Local Planning Authority fully 
understand the benefits that additional parking and infrastructure at Tiverton parkway can bring to the 
economy of Mid Devon and the wider south west and have weighed all this against the objections received 
from the occupier of the adjacent property. The Local Planning Authority considers that appropriate 
mitigation measures have been put in place to sufficiently protect residential amenity and that the impact of 
the development as proposed will not have such an adverse effect as to warrant a refusal. On this basis the 
Local Planning Authority are satisfied that the development is acceptable and complies with Policy COR18 
of Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and Policies DM1, DM2, DM6 and DM8 of Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



AGENDA 49 

 

 
 
Application No. 15/00537/MFUL Plans List No. 7 

 
Grid Ref: 
 

274885 : 105457  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Applicant: Lightsource Renewable Energy Ltd 
  
Location: Land at NGR 274885 105456 (Sharland 

Farm) Morchard Bishop Devon  
  
Proposal: Installation of a solar farm to generate 

4.6MW of power (site area 7.65 ha) and 
associated infrastructure, including 
photovoltaic panels, mounting frames, 
inverters, transformers, substations, 
communications building, fence and pole 
mounted security cameras 

 
  
Date Valid: 31st March 2015 

 

Page 71



AGENDA 50 

 
Application No. 15/00537/MFUL 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. Grant permission subject to conditions for the scheme of development proposed 
2. To allow a proposed variation to the S106 pursuant to planning permission 92/01338/FULL 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
The application scheme proposed the installation of a solar farm to generate 4.6MW of power and 
associated infrastructure, including photovoltaic panels, mounting frames, inverters, transformers, 
substations, communications building, fence and pole mounted security cameras on land at Sharland Farm. 
 
The application site forms part of Sharland Farm and comprises 3 fields within the holding. The site is 
located just beyond the railway line and water course that run parallel to A377 on the bottom section of the 
valley leading up towards Morchard Bishop. On the western boundary there is an existing mature hedgerow 
that effectively screens the site at ground level views from the south west. 
 
The site layout: 
 
A new access is proposed utilising an existing field gate just beyond Knightly bridge off the adopted 
highway, approximately 400metres from the junction with the A377. The layout plan indicates this access 
would be used as a construction access and is approximately 360metres in length from the junction with the 
highway to the field array. The 3 field areas that form the development area are approximately 8.2 hectares 
in size, with the rows of panels and other infrastructure proposed covering 37% of the site according to the 
applicant. Sharland Lane is proposed as a maintenance access. 
 
The panels would be attached to mounting frames (constructed from steel or aluminium with a matt finish) at 
an angle of between 15-30 degrees, and are pile driven into the ground - a foundation is not required. The 
panels are fixed with no moving parts. The approximate standing height of the panels above ground on the 
high side is 2.4 metres, and 0.8 metres for the low side.   
 
All the plant associated with the new use of the land  (storage shed, communications building/ substations 
central transformer and composting wc) are located in north east corner of the first field  accessible. Field 
transformers and inverter stations are proposed with the field areas. The floor areas of each of these 
structures/buildings are relatively compact with the height dimensions as follows: 
 
Site transformers - 2.6 metres high. 
Field transformers - 2.8 metres high finish in moss green 
Storage building - 2.5 metre high 
Inverters units - 2.9 metres high 
Toilet Cabinet - 3.0 metres high 
Security poles - 2.4 metres high with CCTV units mounted on top 
Client side substation - 2.9 metres high 
DNO substation - 4.4 metres high with a sloping roof 
Communication building - 2.5 metres high 
 
A 2.0 metre high deer type fence will run around the perimeter of the development area, including gate 
facilities for small animals (badgers, foxes etc.) 
 
A path network is proposed internally within the development area with the formation of  swale detail  across 
the site (further details) required in assist with ground drainage to the Knightly Brook. 
 
Landscaping - no additional hedge planting is proposed. Inside the compound area new seeding and wild 
flower mix is proposed. 
 
The applicants have indicated that they are in discussions with the landowner (sheep farmer) in terms of 
continuing to graze the land within the compound area, and they have submitted an example of a grazing 
licence that would be used to formalise the arrangement as they have done on other sites. 
 

Page 72



AGENDA 51 

The site comprises: 3.1 ha grade 3a agricultural land; 2.4ha grade 3b land and 2.7ha grade 4 land. 
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Site location plan and site layout plan 
Topographical survey of the site  
Construction details for ancillary buildings as described above 
Security system details  
Fencing details. 
Technical detail of proposed panels 
Planning, Design and Access statement prepared by Lightsource: dated March 2015 
Flood Risk Assessment - prepared by PFA consulting, March 2015 - including plan showing position of 
swale 
Landscape & Visual Impact Assessment - Pegasus Environmental dated 7th August, including the planting 
plan   
Statement of Community involvement - prepared by Lightsource: dated March 2015. 
Archaeology & Cultural Heritage Assessment - prepared by CgMs dated January 2015. 
(Including Archaeological Geophysical Survey - prepared by Bartlett Clarke dated 2015). 
Historic Environment Setting Impact Assessment - prepared by CgMs dated January 2015.  
Ecological Appraisal - by Avian Ecology dated 27 March 2015. 
Construction, Decommissioning & Traffic Management Statement - prepared by Lightsource: dated March 
2015 
A sequential Analysis Study prepared by Pegasus Group dated May 2015. 
 
PLANNING HISTORY (off site) 
 
92/01338/FULL: Erection of an agricultural bungalow at Sharland Farm 
Of relevance to this current application are the terms of the legal agreement pursuant to 92/01338/FULL 
which require that the land forming the holding in 1992 shall be treated as one, and does not allow for areas 
within the holding to be sold off separately.   
 
13/00330/FULL:  Installation of ground mounted photovoltaic 16 panel solar array to generate up to 4kW of 
power at Sharland Cottage in the rear garden the scheme comprised a single row of 32 panels and the site 
is two field boundaries away from the current application scheme. The development has not been 
implemented but the planning permission is still valid. 
 
This application was approved on 17.04.2013   
 
12/01306/MFUL: Installation and operation of solar farm to generate 1.43 megawatts, associated 
infrastructure, including PV panels, mounting, frames, inverters, transformers and fence at Ellicombe Farm, 
Morchard Road. This development is a single field development of 5.81 hectares, and has been 
implemented. This development is less than 1 Kilometre of the current application site. 
 
This application was approved on 13.12.2012   
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
 
COR2 - Local Distinctiveness 
COR5 - Climate Change 
COR9 - Access 
COR11 - Flooding 
COR18 - Countryside 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73



AGENDA 52 

Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
DM2 - High quality design 
DM5 - Renewable and low carbon energy 
DM7 - Pollution 
DM27 - Development affecting heritage assets 
DM28 - Green infrastructure in major development 
 
CONSULTATIONS 

 
MORCHARD BISHOP PARISH COUNCIL - 12th May 2015 
Not supported by a majority of 4 to 2, with 2 abstentions. The main objection that it was on agricultural land 
and not a brown field site. 

 
HIGHWAY AUTHORITY - 29th April 2015  
Observations: 
The Highway Authority has no objections in principle to the above development and the applicant has 
indicated that they would provide a banks man to direct HGV traffic into and out of the access, however the 
HGV traffic will not require one, if, the hedges are maintained to the current height, but private motor 
vehicles and smaller commercial vehicles will need to either be escorted in and out with a banks man or the 
visibility splays should be improved to the north to provide for a safe entry and egress. The highway 
Authority would prefer the later as this would also provide a safe access to current standards for the ongoing 
maintenance of the site and for agricultural access too. Therefore I would advise the following condition is 
imposed. 
 
Recommendation: 
THE HEAD OF PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION AND ENVIRONMENT, ON BEHALF OF DEVON 
COUNTY COUNCIL, AS LOCAL HIGHWAY AUTHORITY,MAY WISH TO RECOMMEND CONDITIONS ON 
ANY GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION 
 
1. Visibility splays shall be provided, laid out and maintained for that purpose at the site access where the 
visibility splays provide inter visibility between any points on the X and Y axes at a height of 0.60 metres 
above the adjacent carriageway level and the distance back from the nearer edge of the carriageway of the 
public highway (identified as X) shall be 2.40 metres and the visibility distances along the nearer edge of the 
carriageway of the public highway (identified as Y) shall be 90.00 metres in both directions. 
 
REASON: To provide adequate visibility from and of emerging vehicles. 
 
2. The site access road shall be hardened, surfaced, drained and maintained thereafter to the satisfaction of 
the Local Planning Authority for a distance of not less than 6.00 metres back from its junction with the public 
highway. 
 
REASON: To prevent mud and other debris being carried onto the public highway. 

 
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY - 28th April 2015 
We have no objections to the proposal, subject to there being no PV units placed within Flood Zone 3 which, 
with reference to Drawing L338/06 Appendix 3 of the applicants Flood Risk Assessment, does appear to be 
the case.  
 
We disagree with the assertions made in Section 3 of the Flood Risk Assessment that the proposal is 
'Essential Infrastructure' because PV units not need to be located in a flood risk area for operational 
reasons. In strictest terms there should be no PV units permitted within Flood Zone 2 and thus your authority 
could deem that the application as submitted fails the Sequential Test given the availability of areas of Flood 
Zone 1.  
 
Despite this policy clash we do feel that the provision of PV units in Flood Zone 2 in this particular instance 
is not of concern given that there is no built development in the vicinity that is at risk of flooding from the 
Knightly Brook that would dis-benefit from any minor increase in localised flood levels that may arise.  
 

Page 74



AGENDA 53 

The Environment Agency no longer provides comment upon the management of surface water runoff from 
developments that fall outside Critical Drainage Areas. The Lead Local Drainage Authority, Devon County 
Council in the instance, should be consulted regarding the proposed use of swales. 

 
DEVON & CORNWALL POLICE AUTHORITY - 16th April 2015  
The below recommendations follow guidelines produced by BRE National Solar Centre. 
 
Risk 
The South West of England has been identified as having the necessary solar power to make commercial 
Solar Farms a viable option.  Farming energy from the sun using photovoltaic panels on a commercial scale 
is a new venture and will bring with it new risks and challenges to protect the location and panels from 
criminals.  Because this is a new project there is no UK crime data to base crime prevention advice on.  
Policing experience elsewhere indicates that placing large quantities of expensive photovoltaic panels in 
isolated locations without adequate protection will attract criminals and they will be stolen.  The main risk will 
come from organised gangs who will use heavy duty tools and vehicles to remove large quantities of the 
panels.  Once stolen the panels may be moved from the crime scene before re emerging for sale. 
 
Site 
In view of the potential risk when considering suitable location for Solar Farms a major consideration from a 
police view will be how the site can be protected from unauthorised vehicle entry.  Full consideration of the 
natural defences of location should be taken into consideration for e.g. steep gradient, Substantial hedging, 
Rivers etc.  Where ever possible the boundary protection of the site should be an appropriate distance from 
the actual panels to discourage parking a vehicle against the boundary and manually lifting panels onto the 
vehicle. 
 
Access to the Site 
The solar company/site owner will require vehicular access to the site.  The physical security guarding this 
access must be robust to sustain a high level of attack as these sites will probably be remote and lacking 
any natural surveillance.  Consideration should be given to protecting the access road at two separate 
locations (1) At the actual entrance to the site and (2) set away from the specific entrance to keep authorised 
vehicles a substantial distance from the site.  The security of solar farms must be properly assessed by all 
those involved in the planning process.  To be considered a truly sustainable resource within the National 
Grid, solar farms will need to be as secure as possible.   
 
All planning applications should therefore include full details of the security proposals within the Design and 
Access Statement (as required by Department for Communities and Local Government Circular 1/2006 
paragraph 87).  The security measures to be incorporated at each location will have to considered on a site 
specific basis. They will obviously be determined to some degree by, for example, the existing landscape 
and local planning constraints etc.,  The basic principle of all crime prevention is to provide layers of defence 
to whatever is in need of protection. 
In the case of Solar Farms this protection will almost certainly require both the physical element, such as 
fences or ditches and also the utilisation of appropriate technology such as CCTV and motion detectors. 
 
The advice offered below covers the general crime prevention points which should be considered by any 
applicant. 
 
Perimeter Security and Access Control 
If perimeter fencing is to be used then it should be a proven security fence. The recommendation would be 
to install fencing which has been tested and approved to current UK Government standards.  Fencing which 
meets the SEAP (Security Equipment Approval Panel) class 1-3 may be the most appropriate.  Fencing 
which is not of a specialist security type is likely to offer at best only token resistance to intruders. However if 
supplemented with movement detectors attached to the fence together with motion detectors/beams 
internally this could potentially be acceptable. 
 
Planting up and alongside any fencing will be acceptable providing there is no detrimental effect upon site 
surveillance that is available or allow easy access over the fence by climbing trees etc.   
 
The standard for rating bollards, blockers and gates is PAS 68:2007 and PAS 68:2010. 
 

Page 75



AGENDA 54 

Landscaping techniques such as ditches and berms (bunds) may also be appropriate in some instances. To 
be effective in stopping vehicles these need to be designed carefully. Police are able to provide further 
specific advice in relation to the design of such defences upon request.   
 
There should be a minimum number of vehicular access points onto site, ideally only one.  Clearly such 
access points will present the most obvious means for the criminal also and therefore will require a robust 
and adequate defence. Some thought should also be given to the wider issues of access around any site. If 
for instance the land surrounding the site is under the same ownership can this be made more secure by 
improving gates etc.  Again this provides layers of difficulty for the criminal to overcome. 
 
Electronic Security 
There is a vast range of electronic security available. For most sites it is very likely that this will play an 
important role. In selecting which type of technology to employ a proper assessment on a site specific basis 
should be undertaken to ensure any system will be fit for purpose.  For CCTV this assessment is commonly 
called an Operational Requirement (OR).  An obvious example would be to establish how effective will the 
CCTV be at night at these locations, bearing in mind distance involved, quality of lens/equipment.  There will 
be little point in deploying CCTV or other defence unless it is monitored in some way or can provide an 
instant alert in some form and also who would then respond to this?  There does need to be an operational 
requirement (OR) that the installer must adhere to in order to comply with data Protection legislation. The 
OR will identify who responds to an intruder and what actions are intended.  The OR also identifies the 
expectations of each individual camera as well as response requirements.  There is requirement for a code 
of practice which covers storage of data and who is authorised to view it, and identifies a person 
responsible. There is also a requirement for a code of practice which covers storage of data and who is 
authorised to view it, and identifies a person responsible. 
  
Appropriate signage is also required. 
CCTV which simply records will probably be of very limited value and basically not fit for purpose, there for 
contravening data protection legislation.  
 
Other Options 
The presence of site security personnel in some capacity should be considered including perhaps in terms 
of some types of response to site alarm activations.  If the individual solar panels can be marked overtly this 
would reduce the ease with which they could be re sold/re used and thus help act as an additional deterrent.  
Covert marking should also be considered. 
 
Consultation with local police Beat managers following installation would be beneficial identifying points of 
access, routes to the site etc in the event of assistance being required. 

 
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT SERVICE - 27th April 2015  
I refer to the above application and your recent consultation.  Assessment of the Historic Environment 
Record (HER) and the details submitted by the applicant do not suggest that the scale and situation of this 
development will have an impact upon any known heritage assets.  A geophysical survey undertaken of this 
area does not indicate the presence of any archaeological features within the application area. 
 
The Historic Environment Team has no further comments to make on this planning application. 

 
NATURAL ENGLAND - 20th April 2015  
Natural England has no comments to make regarding this application. Please see the information below for 
further advice on when Natural England should be consulted and links to guidance on the gov.uk website. 
 
Impact Risk Zones 
You can search the 'Magic' mapping website to see if the development is in or near a protected site, 
including SSSIs, SPAs and SACs and if you need to consult Natural England.  
 
1. Within the mapping tool, select 'sites of special scientific interest' and 'impact risk zones for SSSIs'. 
2. Use the 'identify' button to select a location and see the types of development Natural England need to be 
consulted about. 
 
You can also download the risk zone data for your own mapping software. If the proposal affects a 
European site (SPA or SAC), check if the proposal will pass the 3 tests in this guidance: 
 

Page 76



AGENDA 55 

Assess planning proposals for protected sites: alternative solutions, imperative reasons of overriding public 
interest and compensatory measures Unless there are additional local consultation arrangements in place, 
Natural England should be consulted for all developments where: 
 
- The Proposals affects a protected species not covered by the Standing Advice (further details available 
here)  
- The proposal requires an environmental impact assessment  
- The proposal is likely to damage features of a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI)  
- The proposal is likely to have a significant effect upon Special Area of Conservation (SAC), Special 
Protection Area (SPA) or Wetland of International Importance under the Ramsar Convention (Ramsar Sites) 
- The proposal could lead to the loss of more than 20 ha of the best and most versatile agricultural land - 
Any minerals and waste development where the land will be restored for agriculture. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - 29th April 2015  
Drainage - No objections 
Noise & other nuisances - No objections 
Health and Safety - No objections 
 

 
EXETER INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT - 15th April 2015  
This proposal has been examined from an Aerodrome Safeguarding aspect and does not appear to conflict 
with safeguarding criteria.  
 
Accordingly, Exeter International Airport has no safeguarding objections to this development provided there 
are no changes made to the current application.  
 
Kindly note that this reply does not automatically allow further developments in this area without prior 
consultation with Exeter International Airport. 
 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 
At the time of writing 7 representations have been made, 6 of which have confirmed their support for the 
application scheme. 
 
In terms of the single representation raising an objection the scope of concern focuses on the loss of on 
agricultural land which is considered by the objector to be perfectly good for sheep. It is also considered that 
the proposed solar farm development would be an eyesore/blot on the landscape.   
 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
The application site comprises 3 fields (approx 8.5 hectares) of rolling farmland that sits on the settled valley 
slopes that form the valley between Morchard Bishop and Down St Mary. The area is classified as 
Landscape Character assessment Type 3B. Distant views of rolling farmland with little or no development on 
top are considered a special quality of this landscape character type. The site includes land that falls within 
flood zone 1, 2, 3a.  The main considerations in the determination of this application are:  
 
 
1. The benefits of renewable energy and planning policy  
2. Land use  
3. Landscape and visual impact, including cumulative impact 
4. Highways  
5. Flooding  
6. Ecology and other matters  
7. The planning balance 
 
1.  Policy 
 
1. The benefits of renewable energy and planning policy 
 
The scheme would be capable of generating up to 4.6 megawatts of electricity annually, which the applicant 
states is the equivalent of the average annual electricity needs of approximately 1,440 homes.  

Page 77



AGENDA 56 

The Government's target for the amount of electricity to come from renewable sources by 2020 is currently 
15%.  According to RegenSW's Renewable Energy Progress Report 2014, to date, the amount of electricity 
generated from renewable sources in the South West stands at 8.3% of demand (1,185 megawatts).  Solar 
PVs in Devon contribute 208.44 megawatts (installed capacity) as at March 2014.  The level of energy 
generation provided by the proposed development would make a contribution towards renewable energy 
targets in the UK.  
 
Policy COR5 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) states that measures will be sought to 
contribute towards national (and regional) targets for the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions, including 
the development of renewable energy in locations with an acceptable local impact, including visual, on 
nearby residents and wildlife.  Policy DM5 of Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) and the 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) require the benefits of renewable energy to be weighed against 
its impact.  DM5 states that proposals for renewable energy will be permitted where they do not have 
significant adverse impacts on the character, amenity and visual quality of the area.  Where significant 
impacts are identified through Environmental Impact Assessment, the Council will balance the impact 
against the wider benefits of delivering low carbon energy.   
 
Development must consider landscape character and heritage assets, environmental amenity of nearby 
properties, quality and productivity of the best and most versatile agricultural land (grades 1, 2 and 3a) and 
biodiversity (avoiding habitat fragmentation) in accordance with policy DM5 and policy DM7 (pollution). In 
this instance the application has been screened under the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations 
and an Environmental Impact Assessment has not been deemed necessary.  
 
The NPPF states that Local Planning Authorities should design their policies to maximise renewable energy 
development while ensuring that adverse impacts are addressed satisfactorily.  The NPPF also states that 
when determining planning applications, Local Planning Authorities should not require applicants to 
demonstrate the overall need for renewable energy and recognise that even small-scale projects provide a 
valuable contribution to cutting greenhouse gas emissions.  Local Planning Authorities should approve 
applications for renewable energy if its impacts are (or can be made) acceptable. 
 
The overarching national policy statement for energy (EN-1) is generally aimed at nationally significant 
infrastructure projects but also has relevance for more local renewable energy schemes.  The statement 
promotes renewable energy but recognises that the development of new energy infrastructure is likely to 
have some negative effects on biodiversity, landscape/visual amenity.   
 
Planning Policy Guidance states that Local Planning Authorities should focus large scale solar farms on 
previously developed and non-agricultural land, provided that it is not of high environmental value.   
 
Where a proposal involves Greenfield land, the proposed use of any agricultural land needs to be shown to 
be necessary and poorer quality land has been used in preferable to higher quality land and the proposal 
allows for the continued agricultural use where applicable and/or encourages biodiversity improvements 
around arrays.  The Guidance also requires that the proposal's visual impact, the effect of glint and glare 
and the effect on neighbouring uses, aircraft safety and the need for and impact of security measures are all 
considered.  Great care should be taken to ensure heritage assets are conserved in a manner appropriate to 
their significance. 
 
 
2.  Principal of The PV Array on agricultural land 
 
The application is supported by an assessment of the Agricultural Land Classification (ALC) of the site. It is 
reported  that the site comprises 3.1ha of grade 3a land in the first field below Sharland Farmhouse along 
with 2.4 ha of grade 3b (immediately below running down to the brook) and 2.7 ha of grade 4 (sweeping 
round to the north west).  
 
Agricultural Land Classes 1, 2 and 3a are identified in the NPPF as being the 'Best and Most Versatile' 
(BMV) agricultural land and the NPPF, the Planning Practice Guidance and policy DM5 of LP3 seek to direct 
solar installations to lower quality agricultural land. In this instance 65% of the application falls within the 
lower grade of agricultural land. 
 
The government have been clear in recent months that they are concerned about the provision of 
commercial scale solar installations on good quality agricultural land.  
 

Page 78



AGENDA 57 

This has also been reflected in a number of appeal decisions which have been dismissed whereby an 
installation would take up a significant proportion of BMV land. In Mid Devon, an Inspector for an appeal 
allowed in February 2014 (Nether Mill Farm, ref. 12/01518/MFUL) concluded that the use of 2.2ha of grade 
3a land on an overall site area of 9.4ha would not "represent such a significant loss of an agricultural asset 
as to override the need in national policy for renewable energy development" and that although there could 
be some loss in the quality and quantity of available grass, the land would have some agricultural value for 
grazing.  
 
In comparison this application includes a slightly higher amount of grade 3a land proposed to be used both 
in terms of land take and as a percentage of the overall site area, i.e. 35% compared to 23% in the above 
appeal. However it is relevant to note that even with development on site, the Inspector concluded that the 
site would retain some value as agricultural grazing land. 
 
In addition to the ALC assessment, the application is supported by a Sequential Analysis Study (SAS) which 
looks at alternative available sites within the district and also those within a 10km radius of the site within 
North Devon and Torridge administrative boundaries.  
 
Large scale solar installations require an adequate connection to the electricity grid, utilising either a 33kV or 
66kV which restricts the availability of deliverable sites within the search area, as distances beyond 1km 
radius of any such lines would be prohibitive in terms of the cost and environmental impact of connections. 
The assessment identifies 4 brownfield and 6 roof space sites, it is however noted  that the option for 
development on roofspace is not practical at this time as approximately 2.5ha of space is required to 
generate 1MW of electricity (minimum size considered as 'large scale' solar) and such sizes of roof space 
are not available. It is agreed that there are no alternative brown field and /or roof based comparable 
alternative. 
 
Within the search area 85% of the agricultural land is reported to be a mix of grade 3 and grade 4, and 
therefore of comparable quality to the application site. The assessment identifies 60 greenfield locations 
within 1.5km corridor around the grid lines which, and of the identified sites there are a number of sites that 
do not include any land which would be considered best and most versatile (i.e do not include any 3a land). 
 
The report examines each site in terms of deliverability, and concludes overall that there are no potential 
alternative sites of a poorer agricultural quality and a lower level of constraint than the application site for 
various reasons as set out in the report. The reasons given include: being at risk of flood,  close proximity to 
listed buildings, significant removal of vegetation, take up multiple fields or would have difficult access.   
 
In summary without further detailed examination of the alternative sites included in SAS, it is not considered 
possible to conclude beyond reasonable doubt that there would not be a site that is poorer quality that the 
application site, as claimed by the consultant who prepared the Sequential Analysis Study on behalf of the 
applicant.  Further consideration of this matter is given in section 7 of the report.  
 
 
3. Landscape and visual impact, including cumulative impact and impact on Heritage Assets 
 
An appraisal of the Landscape and Visual effects has been submitted as part of the application submission.   
 
The site is within the 'Crediton Rolling Farmland' of the Devon Landscape Character Assessment Character 
Area (14),  and on a more local level the site is within the Mid Devon Landscape Character Type 3B 'Lower 
rolling farmed and settled valley slopes'. There are a number of characteristics across this landscape type, 
and those which best fit to the application site and the surrounding area: 
 

 This is a gently rolling and undulating landscape with low-lying land adjacent to the rivers in a series 
of irregular rolling hills, characterised by a tightly rolling, medium to small scale landform. 

 

 Tightly clipped wide hedgerows unify the landscape creating distinct and harmonious patterns when 
viewed from distant vantage points. 

 

 There are medium to large scale commercial and intensive farms with modern buildings and isolated 
farmsteads 

 
 

Page 79



AGENDA 58 

The landscape Sensitivity Assessment and Guidance (Published September 2013) indicates that, the site 
being within LCT 3B has as a moderate sensitivity to medium sized solar PV developments of between 5 to 
10 hectares. 
 
The site itself is visually contained, with only short stretches of the immediately adjacent roads having views 
into the site. This type of view into the site is evident along as short section of the country road between 
Morchard Rd and Morchard Bishop which lies to the east, although given the high speeds at which vehicles 
are travelling along this road, any views are going to be glimpsed, other than at the proposed point of the 
new access into the site. From further afield, the site is visible from the east, and south from viewing point on 
the otherside of the valley slopes towards Down St Mary along the footpath between the B3220 and Down 
St Mary Parish Church. 
 
The submitted appraisal assesses the impact of the development and concludes as follows: 
 
With the proposal in place the landscape character of the site would change. However, the proposal would 
remain in scale with the existing landscape pattern and none of the existing key landscape elements which 
contribute to the landscape character of the area would be affected, in terms of; 
 
-  The proposal would not disturb the field pattern. 
-  The proposal will not disturb the hedgerow structure except to create the proposed means of access, not 
significant in extent 
 
Change in character would be restricted to the site itself and spacing between the rows of panels will 
maintain a sense of a grassland environment. 
 
The viewpoint assessment demonstrates that with the proposal in place the visual amenity of the wider 
landscape as perceived from public vantage points such as public highways and public rights of way would 
range from negligible to minor, with the most prominent impact being from slopes on the otherside of the 
valley (Down St Mary side) 
 
For the first section of the footpath referred the view back directly towards the site would incorporate views 
of the proposed scheme and the existing PV array at Ellicombe Farm on Morchard Rd. However it is 
considered that the respective installations would not dominate these views.  In addition views towards the 
proposed development area would also incorporate the row of panels approved behind Sharland Cottage 
 
In summary the magnitude of effect on this section of  Lower Rolling Farmed and Settled Valley Slopes LCT 
3B is considered to be low and the scope of visual impact, either individually and/or cumulatively with the 
other PV developments referred to is considered to negligible to moderate. 
 
The applicant's LIVA states that the development would only have a slight affect on landscape and character 
of the site, and having considered the submissions and from observations undertaken in the field, it is 
considered that the impact on the landscape character as a result of the proposals would be negligible to 
moderate.  
 
The Authority's Conservation Officer raises no objections to the proposal in terms of how the application 
scheme will affect the setting of listed buildings within the local area, and/or the assessment of the impact of 
the development as concluded in the historic environment settings assessment as submitted by the 
applicant. Following an assessment in the field, the Parish Churches of both Morchard Bishop and Down St 
Mary are evident on the skyline of the view to the east and south respectively which would include a view of 
the development site. However the visual connection and/or impact is considered weak or negligible. 
 
In summary given the limited visibility of the site from viewpoints both in the short and longer distance, it is 
considered that individually the proposed solar array will not cause demonstrable harm to the character of 
the landscape or the visual amenity of the area.  
 
Furthermore although there will be a cumulative impact with the existing solar array at Morchard Road the 
impact of the two sites in landscape quality and visual impact is not considered to dominate.  On this basis it 
is considered on balance that the application scheme meets the requirements of Policies COR2 of Mid 
Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and DM2, DM5 (criterion A), DM27 of Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies 
 
 

Page 80



AGENDA 59 

4. Highways 
 
As previously mentioned, the site would be accessed directly off the Morchard Rd to Morchard Bishop Lane 
and via the A377 to that point, and is therefore considered largely acceptable to accommodate the 
development traffic during the construction period which could be up to 95 HGV deliveries over a 3 week 
period (6-7 per day).  
 
The Highway Authority has commented as set out above and largely supportive subject to agreeing the 
traffic management arrangements during the constructions phases and the conditions as set out. The details 
for the construction of the new field access are subject to further agreement.  The application scheme 
proposes that once operational access for maintenance vehicles was to be via Sharland Lane, however the 
applicant has accepted that the new field access shall also be the access route during the operational 
phases, in order to protect the amenities of the residents along Sharland Lane. This will be controlled by 
condition.  
 
Subject to conditions as set out, including to secure a construction management plan, the development is 
not considered to result in any danger to users of the surrounding road network and accords with the 
requirements of policies DM2 (d) and COR9.   
 
 
5. Flooding 
 
The site is not within an area identified as being liable to river or surface water flooding but the perimeter of 
the site falls within flood zone 3A. Therefore the applicant has submitted a Flood Risk Assessment to in 
order to seek to outline how compliant the application scheme is with best practise guidance (to the NPPF). 
The comments from the Environment Agency are noted, however the following points are considered to be 
relevant in terms of completing the assessment of the application. 
 
All control equipment is located in flood zone 1 and 2. It is argued by the applicant's consultant that this 
demonstrates a sequential approach to site masterplanning and that the exception test is therefore passed. 
 
Rainfall falling onto the PV's will then fall on to the ground beneath the panels and then infiltrate into the 
ground at the same rate as it does in its current state. 
 
A swale network is proposed to assist with water run-off rates, the delivery of which will be controlled by 
condition 
 
On this basis the application scheme is considered to be partially in accordance with policy in that there are 
in so far as the development does not increase the risk of flooding.  
 
 
6. Ecology and other matters 
 
An ecological appraisal has been carried out on behalf of the applicant to understand the ecological value on 
the application site (desk based and field study).  Whilst the site is not a protected site, as an area of 
improved grassland with hedgerows it provides a natural habitat. 
 
The proposals do not result in the loss of significant sections of hedgerow and the development area is set 
back from the hedgerows that form the boundary to the site.  
 
 
 
In addition to proposed meadowland planting across the site (to facilitate the ongoing grazing of the land), 
the proposals include measures for wildlife enhancement, by creating suitable environments across the site 
for bird, bats and invertebrates.  The precise details are set out in a biodiversity management plan, the 
delivery details of which will be secured by conditions.    
 
Devon County Council Historic Environment Service has considered all the relevant information submitted 
by the applicant and raises no objections to the proposal.  
 
 
 

Page 81



AGENDA 60 

There have been no submitted objection from the residents who live along Sharland Lane, and a condition is 
recommended that Sharland Lane is not used to provide access to the development area either during the 
construction or operational phases, in order to minimise the impact on the general amenities of the area. 
 
There have not been significant levels of objection to the application with Morchard Bishop Parish Council 
raising an objection on ground of loss of best and versatile agricultural land only.  
 
7. The Planning Balance 
 
In planning terms, it is concluded that an acceptable access to the site can be provided to serve the 
proposed development and adequate measures are proposed to cater for surface water run-off so that the 
levels should not exceed the current level as a greenfield site.   
 
The site is well contained visually, and the although the development will be visible within mainly short 
distance views and longer distance from the east and south, the impact is not considered to adversely affect 
the visual amenities and/or landscape character either individually and/or cumulatively with the solar 
developments in the location. 
  
However, approximately 35% of the application site is classified as comprising the Best and Most Versatile 
agricultural land (grade 3a).  
 
To support their case on this matter the application has confirmed that the site will still be used as 
agricultural grazing land by the current landowner and they have submitted a sequential analysis of site 
selection. The submission document provides an overview of reasonably alternative sites considered, and 
sets out the reasoning why no alternative sites of a poorer agricultural value are considered to be 
deliverable. To summarise on this matter, paragraph 3.43 of the report states: 
 
'It is therefore concluded that there are no potential alternative sites of any poorer agricultural 
quality land than the application site, and subject to any fewer constraints that the application site'. 
 
In conclusion best practise guidance states that there is a preference to siting solar arrays on lower quality 
agricultural, or preferably brownfield land, however as with government guidance there is always a balance 
and trade off to be made. Policy DM5 crystallises this position at the local level, and the assessment of the 
application as set out above has demonstrated that: 
 

 The site is well chosen with regard to how it will affect the character of the landscape, visual 
amenities of the area and in terms of the impact of the development of heritage assets. 

 The site is sufficiently divorced from the nearest residential dwelling for there be no detriment to 
general amenities of the area. 

 A Biodiversity Management Plan is proposed. 

 The applicant advises that the site would continue to be used for the grazing of livestock during the 
operational life of the development. 

 
Having regard to all of these material considerations, the benefits of the scheme in terms of clean energy 
production are considered on balance to outweigh any harm caused through the temporary loss of 3.1 
hectares of grade 3a agricultural land for solely agricultural purposes. 
 
On this basis it is considered on balance that the application accords with Policies COR2, COR5, COR9 and 
COR18 of Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1), DM2, DM5, DM7, DM27 and DM28 of Local Plan 
Part 3 (Development Management Policies), the National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice 
Guidance and conditional approval of planning permission is recommended. 
 
8. Related Matter: Variation of S106 
 
The application site equates to 21% of the land that forms the Sharland Farm Holding, which is 98 acres in 
total. The rental income that would be generated by this development will contribute to the ongoing viability 
of the farm providing an income stream to facilitate the delivery of new stock, building and land 
improvements. Therefore it is not considered that the application scheme will adversely affect the viability of 
the holding as a working farm.  
 
 

Page 82



AGENDA 61 

Following on, if approval is recommended then it is not considered that there are any land-use planning 
reasons not to allow the variation of the legal agreement as referred to above, pursuant to LPA approval ref: 
92/01338/FULL, which as currently executed would not allow for any part of holding to be sold 
off/leased/used for a different use, as would be the case with the application scheme - refer to 
recommendation 2 as outlined above. 
 
If the recommendation on the planning application as set out in this report is approved by members then 
members authority is also sought to vary the terms of the Section 106 agreement pursuant to LPA ref: 
92/01338/FULL. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than three years from the date of this decision. 
 
 2. i) The solar PV facility shall cease to generate electricity on or before a date 25 years after the date of 

first export of electricity from the site. 
 ii) Confirmation of the first export date shall be provided by the undertaker to the Local Planning 

Authority within one month of its occurrence. 
 
 3. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the plans listed in the 

schedule on the decision notice. 
 
 4. No other part of the development hereby approved shall begin until the site access arrangement as 

indicated on drawing SHF_02 has been provided. Such site access arrangements shall be so 
retained. This point of access shall be used at all times, and at no time shall Sharland Lane be used to 
access the site. 

 
 5. Prior to the commencement of the proposed new access as set out in condition 4 of this planning 

permission, a scheme for surface treatment of the new route shall be submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Once approved, the land shall be restored in accordance with 
the approved restoration scheme. 

 
 6. Not less than 12 months before the expiry of the planning permission as set out in condition 2 or within 

3 months of any prior cessation of electricity generation from the site, a scheme for the 
decommissioning and restoration of the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Such a scheme shall include the following information: 

 a) details of the removal of the solar PV panels, frames, inverter modules, substation, fencing and 
cabling and restoration of the land 

 b) parking of vehicles for site personnel operatives and visitors 
 c) loading and unloading of plant and materials 
 d) storage of plant and materials 
 e) programme of works including measures for traffic management 
 f) provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones 
 g) vehicle wheel wash facilities 
 h) highway condition surveys 
 i) extended Phase 1 Habitat survey which covers the whole of the site and predates the date of 

cessation of electricity generation by no more than 12 months. 
   
 The approved decommissioning and restoration scheme shall be fully implemented within 6 months of 

its approval or the cessation of electricity generation, whichever is the later date. 
 
7. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in conformity with a Construction Management 

Plan which shall first have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The Construction Management Plan shall include the following:  

 
  a) The timetable of the works; 
  b) Daily hours of construction; 
  c) Any road closure;  

d) The number and sizes of vehicles visiting the site in connection with the development and 
the frequency of their visits; 

e) The compound/location where all building materials, finished or unfinished products, parts, 

Page 83



AGENDA 62 

crates, packing materials and waste will be stored during the construction phase; 
f) Areas on-site where delivery vehicles and construction traffic will load or unload building 

materials, finished or unfinished products, parts, crates, packing materials and waste; 
  g) The means of enclosure of the site during construction works; 

h) Details of proposals to promote car sharing amongst construction staff in order to limit 
construction staff vehicles parking off-site; 

  i) Details of wheel washing facilities and obligations; 
  j) The proposed route of all construction traffic exceeding 7.5 tonnes; 
  k) Details of the amount and location of construction worker parking.  
   
 Only the approved details shall be implemented. 
 
 8. No external artificial lighting shall be installed at the site without planning permission first having been 

obtained. 
 
 9. All cables shall be placed underground, except at the point of connection to the electricity grid system. 
 
10. The swales shown on PFA Consulting drawing number L338/06 (Proposed Drainage Arrangements 

shall be provided at 2m wide and 0.3m deep and shall be completed prior to the first export of 
electricity from the solar PV array. Following their provision the swales shall be managed and 
maintained in an operational condition until the site has been decommissioned in accordance with 
condition 6. 

 
11. The ecological mitigation and enhancement measures as contained in the Biodiversity Management 

Plan by Avian Ecology (issue date 29 March 2015) shall be implemented in full prior to the first export 
of electricity from the solar PV array. 

 
12. The ecological monitoring measures, habitat management measures and management schedule as 

contained in the Biodiversity Management Plan by Avian Ecology (issue date 29 March 2015) shall be 
adhered to from the date that development on the site begins until the date the site has been 
decommissioned in accordance with condition 11. 

 
13. Visibility splays shall be provided, laid out and maintained for that purpose at the site access where 

the visibility splays provide inter visibility between any points on the X and Y axes at a height of 0.60 
metres above the adjacent carriageway level and the distance back from the nearer edge of the 
carriageway of the public highway (identified as X) shall be 2.40 metres and the visibility distances 
along the nearer edge of the carriageway of the public highway (identified as Y) shall be 90.00 metres 
in both directions. 

 
14. The site access road shall be hardened, surfaced, drained and maintained thereafter for a distance of 

not less than 6.00 metres back from its junction with the public highway. 
 
 
REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 
 1. In accordance with the provisions of Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 2. To reflect the temporary nature of the proposal in the interests of visual amenity in accordance with 

Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) Policy COR2, Policies DM2 and DM5 of Local Plan Part 
3 (Development Management Policies) and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
 3. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 4. In the interests of highway safety to minimise the impact of the development on the highway network 

through the provision of an appropriate construction access in accordance with policies DM2 and DM5 
of Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
 5. To achieve restoration of the temporary access land in the interests of visual amenity in accordance 

with Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) Policy COR2, Policies DM2 and DM5 of Local Plan 
Part 3 (Development Management Policies) and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

Page 84



AGENDA 63 

 6. To achieve restoration of the site in the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Mid Devon Core 
Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) Policy COR2, Policies DM2 and DM5 of Local Plan Part 3 (Development 
Management Policies) and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
 7. To ensure that adequate facilities are provided during the construction phase of the development, in 

the interests of highway safety in accordance with policies DM2 and DM5 of Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies) and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
 8. To minimise the potential for light pollution and disturbance to local amenity in accordance with 

policies DM2 and DM5 of Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies), COR2 of Mid Devon 
Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
 9. To safeguard the visual amenities of the area in accordance with policies DM2 and DM5 of Local Plan 

Part 3 (Development Management Policies), COR2 of Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) 
and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
10. To prevent an increase in flooding and to provide adequate means of surface water disposal, in 

accordance with Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) Policy COR11and DM2 of Local Plan 
Part 3 (Development Management Policies) and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
11. In the interests of safeguarding protected species and their habitat in the carrying out of this proposed 

development in according with policy COR2 of Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1)  and 
policies DM2, DM5 and DM28 of Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 

 
12. In order to secure a net gain in biodiversity in accordance with policy DM28 of Local Plan Part 3 

(Development Management Policies). 
 
13. To provide adequate visibility from and of emerging vehicles in accordance with policy COR9 of Mid 

Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1). 
 
14. To prevent mud and other debris being carried onto the public highway in accordance with policy 

COR9 of Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1). 
 
INFORMATIVE NOTE 
 
 1. With regard to safeguarding of protected species; the developer is advised that the granting of this 

planning permission does not absolve the developer from complying with the relevant law, including 
obtaining and complying with the terms and conditions of any licences required as described in Part 
IVB of the Circular 06/2005. 

 
REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT 
 
The proposed development is on balance considered acceptable with regard to its design and siting and it's 
impact on the visual and landscape character of the area. Furthermore it is considered that the development 
scheme is satisfactory in terms of: ecology and wildlife, highway safety, flooding and drainage, residential 
amenity of nearby properties and its impact on the historic environment in close proximity to the site. On the 
basis that the application scheme achieves compliance with the material considerations as set out above, 
the contribution of the scheme to renewable energy targets and generation of clean energy is considered on 
balance to outweigh the fact that development will result in the loss of 3.1 hectares of best and versatile 
agricultural land from continuing to be used for solely agricultural purposes.  
  
On this basis it is considered on balance that the application accords with Policies COR2, COR5, COR9 and 
COR18 of Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1), DM2, DM5 (in part), DM7, DM27 and DM28 of 
Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies), the National Planning Policy Framework and 
Planning Practice Guidance, sufficiently enough to justify a conditional approval of planning permission.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



AGENDA 64 

 

 
 
Application No. 15/00574/FULL Plans List No. 8 

 
 
 
Grid Ref: 
 

282028 : 107323  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Binks 
  
Location: Sheraton House 

Kennerleigh Crediton 
Devon 

  
Proposal: Erection of single 

storey extension - 
HOUSEHOLDER 
APPLICATION 

 
  
Date Valid: 9th April 2015 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 86



AGENDA 65 

 
Application No. 15/00574/FULL 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 
MEMBERS ARE ASKED TO NOTE THAT THIS IS A HOUSEHOLDER APPLICATION 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
This application seeks planning permission for the erection of a single storey extension at Sheraton House, 
Kennerleigh.  
 
The property is situated just off the Class 3 road which runs through the centre of Kennerleigh and within the 
conservation area. This is a detached dwelling finished with render and a slate roof, the windows have a 
rosewood finish. The property is set back slightly from the highway, in a generous curtilage with the 
driveway and parking area to the front. The property has a hipped roof and a single storey part on the north 
elevation that provides a garage, utility and lounge, to the rear (east) is the main garden area. There is an 
existing conservatory to the rear (east) elevation.  
 
The proposal is to erect a single storey conservatory extension to the rear (east) elevation of the property, 
adjoining the single storey part of the dwelling. The extension would extend 3.7m from the rear elevation and 
would be 5.03m wide and 2.11m high to eaves and 4.1m to the ridge. It would be constructed with a 
rendered wall to approximately 0.8m high and glazing above finished with a rosewood finish externally and 
white uPVC internally. The dual pitch roof will be finished in "Supalite" tapco slate in pewter grey.   
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
None. 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
88/01383/OUT Outline for the erection of cottage, double garage and alterations to vehicular access - 
PERMIT - 20.10.88 
89/00882/ARM Erection of a house with double garage and alterations to vehicular access - PERMIT - 
26.07.89 
12/01027/CAT Notification of intention to fell 1 Conifer within the Conservation Area - NOBJ - 29.08.12 
15/00574/FULL Erection of single storey extension - PCO 
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
 
COR2 - Local Distinctiveness 
COR18 - Countryside 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
DM2 - High quality design 
DM13 - Residential extensions and ancillary development 
DM27 - Development affecting heritage assets 
 
CONSULTATIONS 

 
HIGHWAY AUTHORITY - 27th April 2015  
Standing advice applies please see Devon County Council document http://www.devon.gov.uk/highways-
standingadvice.pdf 
 

Page 87



AGENDA 66 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 
No letters of representations have been received at the time of writing this report. 
 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
The principal of appropriately scaled and designed extensions to existing buildings within the countryside is 
established by Policy COR18. Policy DM13 deals with residential extensions and ancillary development, 
more specifically it supports this development subject to the following criteria; 
a) Respects the character, scale, setting and design of existing dwelling 
b) Will not result in over-development of the dwelling curtilage; and 
c) Will not have a significantly adverse impact on the living conditions of occupants of neighbouring 

properties.  
 
A summary assessment of the application scheme against these criteria is set out below; 
 
A) The proposed conservatory extension in terms of its scale and design is not considered to dominate 

the existing property. The proposed material palette, as outlined above, reflects the appearance of 
the existing property and is considered to respect the character of the host dwelling. The proposed 
conservatory, being sited to the rear of the property, would not detract from the character and 
appearance of this part of the conservation area. Overall it is considered that the proposed 
conservatory would respect the character, scale, setting and design of the existing dwelling, and not 
adversely affect the character and/or appearance of the Kennerleigh Conservation Area. 

 
B) As outlined above the property has a reasonable size curtilage. Given the scale of this extension it is 

considered that the area is sufficient to support the additional accommodation whilst allowing 
continued enjoyment of the external amenities. The proposal would not impact upon the access and 
parking arrangements and it is not considered that the development would result in over-
development of the dwelling curtilage.  

 
C) The property has neighbours to the north west and south east, however given the scale and siting of 

the proposed conservatory and the separation distance to the neighbouring properties it is not 
considered that there would be any significant adverse impacts on the amenity of occupiers of any 
neighbouring properties.  

 
CONDITIONS 
 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 

of this permission. 
 
 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed in 

the schedule on the decision notice. 
 
 
REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 
 1. In accordance with the provisions of Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT 
 
The proposed conservatory, in terms of its scale and design, is considered to respect the character, scale, 
setting and design of the existing dwelling. Given the siting of the conservatory to the rear of the property, it 
is not considered that it would detract from the character and appearance of the conservation area. The 
proposal would not result in over development of the curtilage and it is not considered that there would be 
any significant adverse impacts on the living conditions of occupants of the neighbouring property and/or the 
character or appearance of the Kennerleigh Conservation Area.  
 
 
 
 

Page 88



AGENDA 67 

Overall the proposal is considered to comply with the following Policies; Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local 
Plan Part 1) COR2 and COR18, Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) DM1, DM2, DM13 
and DM27 and Government advice in the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jenny Clifford 
Head of Planning and Regeneration 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



DELEG 

 

 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 3 June 2015  
 
REPORT OF HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION -  APPLICATIONS DETERMINED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To inform Members of those applications which have been determined under the officer delegation scheme since your last meeting.  These decisions 
are made in accordance with the Authority’s powers contained in the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and have no financial implications. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
DETAILS OF DECISIONS 
 
DATE 
RECEIVED 

DATE 
DETERMINED/ 
DECISION 

REF NUMBER APPLICANT 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

PARISH/AREA 

 

26.09.2014 16.04.2015 
Grant permission 

14/01621/FULL Mr & Mrs T R Buckingham 
Smiths Farm Clayhidon 
Conversion of barn to ancillary 
accommodation (in connection with 
Smiths Farm) and dwelling 

Clayhidon 15 

 

29.09.2014 13.04.2015 
Grant permission 

14/01598/FULL Mrs C Heard 
Stokehouse Farm Bradninch 
Retention of change of use of 
agricultural storage building to 
upholstery business (Use Class B1) 

Bradninch 04 

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 9



DELEG 

 

11.11.2014 23.03.2015 
Grant permission 

14/01867/FULL Mr Angus Wiggins 
Land at NGR 293210 107100 
(Broadley Farm) 
Construction of new access onto 
highway 

Bickleigh 02 

 

05.12.2014 12.05.2015 
Grant permission 

14/02041/ADVERT Mr Aaron Morgan 
Vodafone Ltd 13 Fore Street 
Advertisement consent to display 1 
fascia and 1 projecting sign 

Tiverton 52 

 

09.12.2014 30.04.2015 
Withdrawn 

14/02040/LBC Mr & Mrs Alcock 
Higher Saunders Cherry Meadow 
Listed Building Consent for the 
erection of a dwelling following 
demolition of garage and shed 

Cheriton Fitzpaine 12 

 

11.12.2014 20.04.2015 
Grant permission 

14/02055/FULL Mrs L Broadway 
Langarra Dean Hill Road 
Variation of condition (2) of planning 
permission 11/00515/FULL to allow 
the siting of no more than 11 static 
residential caravans and 5 touring 
caravans 

Willand 59 

 

18.12.2014 23.03.2015 
Grant permission 

14/02128/LBC Mr & Mrs A & M Branton 
Land and Buildings at NGR 301338 
117206 (Hill Farm) Uplowman 
Listed Building Consent for 
conversion of redundant barn to form 
holiday let 

Uplowman 54 

 

23.12.2014 15.04.2015 
Grant permission 

14/02141/MFUL Jenner Homes 
Newcombes Resource Centre 
Newcombes 
Erection of 10 dwellings with 

Crediton Town 18 

P
age 92



DELEG 

associated infrastructure and parking 
(Revised Scheme) 

 

21.01.2015 05.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00083/FULL Mrs A Tyler 
14 Nymet Avenue Bow 
Erection of a garage and ground floor 
extension to provide additional living 
accommodation following demolition 
of existing garages 

Bow 03 

 

26.01.2015 23.04.2015 
Refuse permission 

15/00108/MOUT Messrs Persey and Harding 
Land at NGR 305658 112080 (West 
of The Harvesters) Uffculme Road 
Outline application for up to 60 
dwellings with access onto Uffculme 
Road, with all other matters reserved 

Halberton 25 

 

27.01.2015 23.03.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00118/LBC Miss S Kazer 
Croyle House Kentisbeare 
Listed Building Consent for remedial 
structural works to south elevation of 
the house 

Kentisbeare 32 

 

28.01.2015 05.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00126/FULL Tiverton Rugby Club 
Tiverton Rugby Club Coronation 
Ground 
Alterations to existing building 
including provision of dormer 
extension and viewing platform with 
external staircase 

Tiverton 52 

 

02.02.2015 15.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00146/LBC Mr J Inglis 
Oak Farm Wembworthy 
Listed Building Consent for installation 
of 4 replacement windows on South 
elevation 

Coldridge 16 

 

P
age 93



DELEG 

02.02.2015 30.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00147/FULL Mr Scott Oakley 
Oakmoore Farm Morebath 
Alterations to improve visibility to 
existing entrance 

Morebath 36 

 

05.02.2015 23.03.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00181/FULL Mr T Wheeler 
75 Palmerston Park Tiverton 
Formation of access and provision of 
hardstanding for the parking of 
vehicles 

Tiverton 52 

 

05.02.2015 11.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00184/FULL Mr Dibble 
Land at NGR 300510 112404 (Bycott 
Farm) Lower Town 
Retention of extensions to 2 existing 
agricultural livestock buildings and 
retention of additional livestock 
building (900.67 sq. m.) 

Halberton 25 

 

06.02.2015 13.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00192/FULL Mr C Holmes 
27 Westernlea Crediton 
Erection of conservatory to rear 

Crediton Hamlets 19 

 

06.02.2015 13.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00196/CLP Mr B Billing 
11 Orchard Way Tiverton 
Certificate of Lawfulness for the 
proposed erection of a garage 

Tiverton 52 

 

09.02.2015 16.04.2015 
Withdrawn 

15/00188/FULL Mr & Mrs Lawrence 
Springfields Uplowman 
Erection of a temporary dwelling for 
equestrian site owner/manager 

Tiverton 52 

 

09.02.2015 18.05.2015 
Withdrawn 

15/00195/OUT Mrs S Holmes 
10 Westgate Lapford 
Outline for the erection of 2 dwellings 

Lapford 33 

 

P
age 94



DELEG 

10.02.2015 23.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00214/FULL Mrs V & Miss S Gillbard 
London Inn Morchard Bishop 
 Change of use of storage buildings to 
ancillary accommodation to public 
house 

Morchard Bishop 35 

 

10.02.2015 13.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00222/FULL Mr A Box 
Roydon Alexandra Road 
Erection of two storey extension with 
balcony at first floor level, entrance 
lobby and installation of dormer 
window to rear elevation 

Crediton Town 18 

 

11.02.2015 10.04.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00209/PNCOU Mr Bussell 
Land and Buildings at NGR 309108 
116924 (Marshalls Farm) 
Burlescombe 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to dwelling 
under Class MB (a) 

Culmstock 22 

 

12.02.2015 23.03.2015 
No Objection 

15/00220/CAT Mr Gordon Davies 
Salama 15 Blundells Avenue 
Notification of intention to carry out 
works to one Beech tree, one Walnut 
tree and remove 2 Conifer trees within 
a conservation area 

Tiverton 52 

 

12.02.2015 30.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00224/LBC Mr M Scott 
Little Hayne Cottage Cheriton 
Fitzpaine 
Listed Building Consent for raising of 
outlet level of two chimneys and 
installation of twin-wall flue following 
removal of existing flue 

Cheriton Fitzpaine 12 

 

P
age 95



DELEG 

13.02.2015 14.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00226/FULL Mr Christopher Davis 
4 Star House Western Road 
Conversion of existing garage to 
kitchen, erection of a porch and 
installation of door in front elevation 

Zeal Monachorum 61 

 

13.02.2015 11.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00230/FULL Mr Peter Dunbavin 
Tag Business Centre Station Road 
Erection of extension to provide 
storage and industrial work unit 

Willand 59 

 

13.02.2015 14.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00231/FULL Mr E Fee 
Fairbank Station Road 
 Sub-division of dwelling and erection 
of extensions to form 2 semi-detached 
two-storey dwellings and provision of 
2 garages 

Newton St Cyres 37 

 

13.02.2015 21.04.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00234/PNCOU Mr Mike Snow 
Land and Buildings at NGR 283594 
102559 Venn Farm 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of agricultural building to dwelling 
under Class Q(a) and (b) ........ Please 
note this application was submitted 
and registered as MB(b). 

Sandford 43 

 

13.02.2015 20.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00240/FULL Mrs Kathryn Harvey 
29 Anstey Crescent Tiverton 
Erection of a fence 

Tiverton 52 

 

13.02.2015 14.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00241/FULL Mr Andrew Butt 
The Shippen (Cadeleigh Court) 
Formation of new access drive 

Cadeleigh 09 

 

13.02.2015 15.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00244/FULL Mr & Mrs R Warner 
Whitebirch House Markers Road 

Uffculme 53 

P
age 96



DELEG 

Erection of first floor over part of 
existing ground floor, extension to 
kitchen, and replacement of existing 
conservatory with two-storey 
conservatory 

 

16.02.2015 17.04.2015 
Approval of Prior 
Approval 

15/00228/PNCOU Mr D Meek, Devon County Council 
Land and Buildings at NGR 278806 
103988 Frostlands Farm 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to dwelling 
under Class MB (a) 

Sandford 43 

 

16.02.2015 20.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00242/FULL Mr E Rodd 
10 Market Street Crediton 
 Installation of 3 replacement windows 
on front elevation 
 

Crediton Town 18 

 

16.02.2015 09.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00250/FULL B G Pearce Ltd 
Land at NGR 274712 94910 West of 
Woodlands (Tellams Yard) 
Construction of an off road vehicle pull 
in, relocation of a section of existing 
roadside bank, re-positioning of 
existing gateway, formation of hard 
surface area, drop kerbs and making 
good highway surface 

Cheriton Bishop 11 

 

16.02.2015 14.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00251/FULL Mr & Mrs R Crang 
Land and Buildings at NGR 280715 
110169 (Archways) Black Dog 
Erection of extension to existing 
poultry unit 

Washford Pyne 57 

 

16.02.2015 13.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00254/LBC Mrs J Thomson 
National Westminster Bank Plc 133 

Crediton Town 18 

P
age 97



DELEG 

High Street 
Listed Building Consent for the 
installation of external shopfront 
signage following removal of existing 

 

16.02.2015 13.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00255/ADVERT Mrs J Thomson 
National Westminster Bank Plc 133 
High Street 
 Advertisement Consent to display 1 
internally illuminated fascia sign, 1 
externally illuminated hanging sign, 
and 1 replacement internally 
illuminated ATM surround 

Crediton Town 18 

 

17.02.2015 17.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00252/FULL Mr D Armitage 
Beechway Coleford 
Erection of single storey extension to 
include external alterations, 
alterations to roof and demolition of 
garage 

Colebrooke 17 

 

17.02.2015 13.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00253/ADVERT Ms J Thomson 
National Westminster Bank Plc 11 
Fore Street 
Advertisement Consent to display 2 
internally illuminated fascia signs, 1 
internally illuminated hanging sign, 1 
replacement ATM surround, and 1 
entrance sign 

Tiverton 52 

 

17.02.2015 16.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00258/FULL Mr & Mrs S Diggle 
Burrow Corner Cottage Butterleigh 
Erection of two-storey extension 
following demolition of existing 
converted garage 

Halberton 25 

 

P
age 98



DELEG 

17.02.2015 16.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00259/LBC Mr & Mrs S Diggle 
Burrow Corner Cottage Butterleigh 
Listed Building Consent for erection of 
two-storey extension following 
demolition of existing converted 
garage 

Halberton 25 

 

17.02.2015 15.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00261/FULL Mr G Gubb 
10 Fir Close Willand 
Erection of extension 

Willand 59 

 

18.02.2015 15.04.2015 
Refusal of Prior 
Approval 

15/00237/PNCOU Mrs D Pitts 
Lower Mounson Cheriton Bishop 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of agricultural building to dwelling 
under Class Q (b) 

Cheriton Bishop 11 

 

18.02.2015 13.04.2015 
Refusal of Prior 
Approval 

15/00238/PNCOU Mr J Harris 
Land and Buildings at NGR 296885 
106729 (Fig Tree Barn) 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to a dwelling 
under class MB(a) 

Silverton 45 

 

18.02.2015 13.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00245/FULL Mr A Cross 
1 Wanstead Villas Pennymoor 
`Erection of a two storey extension 

Cruwys Morchard 20 

 

18.02.2015 20.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00265/LBC Mr W Elworthy 
Land and Buildings at NGR 300590 
106083 (Colebrook Court) Colebrooke 
Lane 
Listed Building Consent to replace 
existing patio sliding doors with 
entrance door and sidelight, and 
installation of 3 windows to rear 
elevation (Unit 4) 

Cullompton 21 

P
age 99



DELEG 

 

18.02.2015 16.04.2015 
Refuse permission 

15/00268/FULL Mr & Mrs S Richards 
Farthings Park Cheriton Fitzpaine 
Erection of two-storey extension and 
detached garage 

Cheriton Fitzpaine 12 

 

18.02.2015 15.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00277/FULL Mrs C Dalley 
Land at NGR 296005 113661 
Prideaux Crescent 
Change of use from public amenity 
area to domestic garden for no. 68 
Pinnex Moor Road 

Tiverton 52 

 

18.02.2015 24.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00278/FULL Mr Jez Butterworth 
Home Farm Hockworthy 
Construction of a natural swimming 
pool with timber jetty and associated 
planting 

Hockworthy 28 

 

19.02.2015 15.04.2015 
Refusal of Prior 
Approval 

15/00262/PNCOU Mr Chris Noble 
Land and Buildings at NGR 293867 
105570 Higher Trey Mill 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of agricultural building to dwelling 
under Class Q(a) and (b) 
 

Thorverton 51 

 

19.02.2015 11.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00283/FULL Mr S Steele 
Land Adjacent to 1A Tiverton Road 
Cullompton 
Erection of a dwelling 

Cullompton 21 

 

20.02.2015 16.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00282/LBC Miss S Kazer 
Croyle House Kentisbeare 
 Listed Building Consent for repair and 
replacement of dormer windows and 
replacement of patio doors 

Kentisbeare 32 

P
age 100



DELEG 

 

23.02.2015 17.04.2015 
Withdrawn 

15/00260/PNCOU Mr G Tucker 
Middle Reeve Wembworthy 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of agricultural buildings to joinery 
workshops under Class M 

Brushford 05 

 

23.02.2015 23.04.2015 
Refuse permission 

15/00284/FULL Mr & Mrs C Preece 
Old Golden Lion Fore Street 
Removal of Condition 6 (occupancy 
condition) of Planning Permission 
4/32/95/0274 to allow flexible use of 
the main house and annexe 

Kentisbeare 32 

 

25.02.2015 08.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00256/ARM Mr M Walton 
Ascot House Westleigh 
Reserved Matters for the erection of 1 
dwelling following Outline approval 
14/00701/OUT 

Burlescombe 06 

 

25.02.2015 18.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00279/FULL Mr Tim Roberts 
Kilnview Farm Westleigh 
 Erection of two storey extensions to 
side and rear, sun room and porch 

Burlescombe 06 

 

25.02.2015 14.04.2015 
Refusal of Prior 
Approval 

15/00285/PNCOU Mr G Hepworth 
Building at NGR 289085 96643 
Bodley Farm 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of agricultural building to dwelling 
under Class MB(a) 
 

Newton St Cyres 37 

 

25.02.2015 20.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00287/FULL Mr Yousuf Qayum 
24 Fore Street Cullompton 
Change of use of part of first floor 
from Masonic Lodge (use Class Sui 

Cullompton 21 

P
age 101



DELEG 

Generis) to a residential apartment 
(use Class C3) 

 

25.02.2015 20.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00288/FULL Mr J Ilsley 
4 Hawthorn Road Crediton 
Construction of single parking bay, 
retaining wall and wrought iron railings 

Crediton Town 18 

 

25.02.2015 08.05.2015 
Application Part 
Granted/Part 
Refused 

15/00289/TPO Mrs Crooke 
7 Greenwood Willand 
Application to fell 1 Oak tree and carry 
out works to 2 Oak trees protected by 
Tree Preservation Order 
02/00005/TPO 

Willand 59 

 

25.02.2015 13.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00295/FULL Mrs Elizabeth Worley 
5 Garden Terrace Station Road 
Erection of a replacement 
conservatory 

Cullompton 21 

 

26.02.2015 23.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00291/CLU Mrs T Matthews, C/O Nigel Cant 
Planning 
Junes Cottage Holmfield House 
 Certificate of Lawfulness for the 
existing use of Holmfield House as 
two separate dwellings 
 

Crediton Hamlets 19 

 

26.02.2015 22.04.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00299/PNCOU Mr G Yeandle 
Land and Buildings at NGR 286481 
104964 (Dovers Linhay) Cheriton 
Fitzpaine 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of agricultural building to dwelling 
under Class Q (a) and (b) ..... Please 
note this application was submitted 
and registered under MB(a) and 

Cheriton Fitzpaine 12 

P
age 102



DELEG 

MB(b) 

 

26.02.2015 21.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00300/CLP Mr & Mrs Ian Wild 
Lyndhurst Hele Road 
Certificate of lawfulness for the 
proposed erection of chimney, 
installation and replacement of 
windows and doors, installation of 3 
velux windows and installation of 2 
cabrio balcony windows, the addition 
of a timber decking and the rendering 
over of existing stonework on the front 
entrance gable 

Bradninch 04 

 

26.02.2015 20.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00301/FULL Mr & Mrs I Wild 
Lyndhurst Hele Road 
Installation of velux window on side 
(North East) elevation 

Bradninch 04 

 

26.02.2015 23.04.2015 
Withdrawn 

15/00314/FULL Mr K Shorrock 
Columba Eastern Road 
Conversion of garage to additional 
living accommodation to include 
alterations to roof, external alterations 
to south and west elevations and 
provision of hardstanding for the 
parking of vehicles 

Zeal Monachorum 61 

 

26.02.2015 27.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00316/FULL Mr S Kingston 
The Twyford Inn 64 - 66 Bampton 
Street 
Demolition of fire damaged former 
public house and erection of 8 
dwellings 

Tiverton 52 

 

P
age 103



DELEG 

26.02.2015 19.05.2015 
Refuse permission 

15/00319/FULL M & J Thompson 
Land and Buildings at NGR 288551 
118209 (West of Whitnole Beeches) 
Whitnole Lane 
Conversion of barn to dwelling 

Stoodleigh 48 

 

27.02.2015 14.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00329/FULL Mr Chapman 
8 Kestrel Close Tiverton 
Erection of a conservatory 

Tiverton 52 

 

02.03.2015 30.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00310/ARM Mr William Falkner 
Land at NGR 297215 109143 (Burrow 
Farm) 
Reserved Matters for the erection of a 
rural worker's dwelling with treatment 
plant and access following Outline 
approval 14/00867/OUT 

Halberton 25 

 

02.03.2015 27.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00336/FULL Mr A & Mrs A Alcroft 
Bray Cottage Hockworthy 
Erection of a single storey extension 
to side and two storey extension to 
rear 

Hockworthy 28 

 

02.03.2015 21.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00337/TPO Mr R Johnson 
Old Blundells Cottage Station Road 
Application to carry out works to 9 
Lime trees protected by Tree 
Preservation Order 93/00005/TPO 

Tiverton 52 

 

02.03.2015 20.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00338/FULL Mr & Mrs Walters 
34 Broomhill Tiverton 
Erection of single storey rear 
extension (Revised Scheme) 

Tiverton 52 

 

02.03.2015 22.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00341/LBC Miss S Kazer 
Croyle House Kentisbeare 

Kentisbeare 32 

P
age 104



DELEG 

Listed Building Consent for removal of 
existing boiler, chimney liner and 
header tanks, and installation of 
replacement boiler and flue 

 

03.03.2015 14.04.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00318/PNCOU Mr J Hallsworth 
Land and Buildings at NGR 274246 
94855 (Little East Church) Hittisleigh 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to dwelling 
under Class MB(a) 

Crediton Hamlets 19 

 

03.03.2015 07.05.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00322/PNCOU Mr M & Mrs J Wooff 
Building at NGR 306886 111632 
(Gaddon Farm) Uffculme 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to dwelling 
under Class MB(b) 

Uffculme 53 

 

04.03.2015 29.04.2015 
Refusal of Prior 
Approval 

15/00327/PNCOU J Pryce 
Land and Buildings at NGR 290426 
114135 (Adjacent To Uptop) 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to dwelling 
under Class Q(a) 

Tiverton 52 

 

04.03.2015 29.04.2015 
Not Permitted 
Development 

15/00331/PNCOU Mr C Payne 
Broadmead Ash Stoodleigh 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to a dwelling 
under Class Q(a) 

Stoodleigh 48 

 

04.03.2015 28.04.2015 
Refuse permission 

15/00354/FULL Mrs Rachel Chidgey 
Orchard Lea Hemyock 
Erection of dormer window to rear 

Hemyock 26 

 

P
age 105



DELEG 

04.03.2015 29.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00355/FULL Mr Steve Turley 
Clifton Construction Ltd Bridge 
Meadow Industrial Unit 
Demolition of commercial building and 
erection of 5 dwellings with associated 
groundworks (Revised Scheme) 

Lapford 33 

 

04.03.2015 29.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00359/FULL Mr D Chapman, Westcountry Rivers 
Trust 
Land at NGR 268278 111428 
Eggesford Bridge 
Engineering works to existing fish 
pass 

Eggesford 24 

 

05.03.2015 22.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00358/FULL Mr & Mrs C Parker 
1 Jasmine Close Tiverton 
  Erection of single storey rear 
extension 

Tiverton 52 

 

05.03.2015 24.04.2015 
Withdrawn 

15/00360/FULL Mrs S Hughes 
16 Camellia Close Tiverton 
Conversion of garage to dining room, 
erection of first floor extension over 
and erection of two storey extension 
to front to form new garage and 
bedroom 

Tiverton 52 

 

06.03.2015 19.05.2015 
Refuse permission 

15/00344/TPO Mrs Moise 
25 Tidcombe Walk Tiverton 
Application to carry out works to 1 
Lime tree protected by Tree 
Preservation Order 4/52/05/TP5 

Tiverton 52 

 

06.03.2015 01.05.2015 
Refusal of Prior 
Approval 

15/00345/PNCOU Mr N Cooper 
Land at NGR 301928 104197 
(Opposite Merrier Harriers Inn) 
Bradninch 

Cullompton 21 

P
age 106



DELEG 

Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to a 
dwellinghouse under Class Q 

 

06.03.2015 14.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00362/TPO Mrs Fly 
53 Bilbie Close Cullompton 
Application to reduce a large lateral 
limb to a suitable growth point 
removing split from one Oak tree 
protected by Tree Preservation Order 
08/00009/TPO 

Cullompton 21 

 

06.03.2015 20.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00380/FULL Mr A Robinson 
Land at NGR 272146 95653 (Heritage 
Farm) Hittisleigh 
Construction of manege and erection 
of combined agricultural and 
equestrian building 

Hittisleigh 27 

 

09.03.2015 01.05.2015 
Refusal of Prior 
Approval 

15/00351/PNCOU Mrs Shaikha 
Land and Buildings at NGR 285664 
103549 (Trew Farm) Chilton 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to a 
dwellinghouse under Class Q 

Shobrooke 44 

 

09.03.2015 30.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00367/FULL Mr E Haggar 
2 Victoria Crescent Crediton 
Erection of extension to form garage 
and lounge following removal of 
existing garage 

Crediton Town 18 

 

09.03.2015 08.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00372/TPO Mrs Sheila Woodland 
Land at NGR 295678 102728 Church 
Road 
Application to fell 1 Chestnut tree 
protected by Tree Preservation Order 

Silverton 45 

P
age 107



DELEG 

94/00012/TPO 

 

10.03.2015 10.04.2015 
Not Permitted 
Development 

15/00365/PNAG Mr R Dunn 
Horwell Barton Colebrooke 
Prior Notification for the erection of an 
agricultural storage building 

Colebrooke 17 

 

10.03.2015 17.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00366/LBC Mr G Mcvittie 
Gills Cottage Craddock 
Installation of new stainless steel 
stove pipe projecting through roof of 
utility room 

Uffculme 53 

 

10.03.2015 07.05.2015 
Withdrawn 

15/00376/FULL Mr & Mrs Tim & Tracy Hart 
Land at NGR 316260 
115875(Hidonfields Farmhouse) 
Clayhidon 
Variation of condition 2 and 3 of 
planning permission 14/00032/FULL 
to move the position of outdoor school 

Clayhidon 15 

 

10.03.2015 18.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00377/FULL Mr N Mann 
Cherry Tree Cottage Clayhanger 
Erection of fence and erection of two-
storey extension (Revised scheme) 

Hockworthy 28 

 

11.03.2015 23.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00363/FULL Mr & Mrs C Pizey 
Moor Farm Moor Lane 
Erection of a stable block 

Shobrooke 44 

 

11.03.2015 01.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00393/FULL Mr Stephen Murphy 
Enniskerry Sand Down Lane 
Erection of front and rear extensions, 
including balcony, following demolition 
of integral garage/utility annexe 

Newton St Cyres 37 

 

P
age 108



DELEG 

11.03.2015 08.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00399/FULL Mr & Mrs A Morley 
Studleys Hemyock 
Alterations and repairs including 
replacement of rooflights with 3 
dormer windows and lowering of rear 
eaves 

Hemyock 26 

 

11.03.2015 08.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00400/LBC Mr & Mrs A Morley 
Studleys Hemyock 
Listed Building Consent for internal 
and external alterations including 
replacement of thatched roof with 
water reed and block ridge, 
replacement of rooflights with 3 
dormer windows, lowering of rear 
eaves, and replacement of all doors 
and windows 

Hemyock 26 

 

12.03.2015 08.05.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00368/PNCOU Mr Ian Ellicott 
Land at NGR 305843 107659 
(Yerrishayes) Kentisbeare 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to a dwelling 
under Class MB(a) and MB(b) 

Kentisbeare 32 

 

12.03.2015 20.04.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00389/PNAG Mr A Baker 
Land at NGR 294496 104339 (Land 
Adjacent Gilberts Barn, Chitterley) 
Silverton 
Prior Notification for the erection of an 
agricultural storage building 

Bickleigh 02 

 

12.03.2015 18.05.2015 
Refuse permission 

15/00403/FULL Mr A Clarke 
48 Cottey Brook Tiverton 
Erection of replacement extension 
and alterations to garden levels 
including new retaining walls and 

Tiverton 52 

P
age 109



DELEG 

removal of decking 

 

12.03.2015 07.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00404/FULL Mr & Mrs A Worthington 
Swift and Swallow Apartments 
Smithincott Barton Farm 
Removal of condition 10 of planning 
permission 03/01206/FULL relating to 
2 holiday lets to allow for full 
residential use 

Uffculme 53 

 

12.03.2015 07.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00406/FULL A & S Daldorph 
Brownlea Langford Road 
Erection of an extension 

Newton St Cyres 37 

 

12.03.2015 28.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00407/FULL Mr G Sheppard 
49 Fore Street Silverton 
Erection of two-storey extensions to 
front and side 

Silverton 45 

 

12.03.2015 06.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00423/ADVERT Mr David Bowels, Co-operative Food 
Group 
135 High Street Crediton 
Advertisement consent for 1 externally 
illuminated fascia sign and 1 
externally illuminated heritage 
projecting sign 

Crediton Town 18 

 

13.03.2015 08.05.2015 
Refusal of Change 
of Use 

15/00373/PNCOU Mr Simon Clarke 
Land and Buildings at NGR 287939 
111263 (Fodder Barn) East Ruckham 
Farm 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to a dwelling 
under Class MB(a) and MB(b) 

Cruwys Morchard 20 

 

P
age 110



DELEG 

13.03.2015 06.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00375/FULL Mr Michael Roberts 
Willow Brook Kennerleigh 
Formation of new vehicular access 
and parking/turning area and closing 
up of exisitng vehicular access 

Kennerleigh 31 

 

13.03.2015 20.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00424/FULL Mr WJ F Graham 
Peartree House Lapford 
Erection of shed 

Lapford 33 

 

16.03.2015 11.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00387/FULL A. Hosegood Esq 
Land at NGR 275645 111059(opp. 
Wheathaven) Lapford 
Erection of an agricultural livestock 
building(calf house) 

Lapford 33 

 

16.03.2015 07.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00388/FULL Mr K Wheeler 
2 Meadowside Crediton 
Erection of two storey extension with 
balcony at first floor level 

Crediton Town 18 

 

16.03.2015 15.04.2015 
No Objection 

15/00392/CAT Mr WJF Graham 
Peartree House Lapford 
Notification of intention to thin 1 Goat 
Willow by 10%, crown lift, rmoe 2 
limbs overhanging adjoining listed 
building, removal limbs obstructing 
access to BT pole 

Lapford 33 

 

16.03.2015 11.05.2015 
Approval of Prior 
Approval 

15/00401/PNCOU Mr M Ayre 
The Barn Whitemoor Lane 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to a dwelling 
under Class Q (a) and Q (b) 

Cadbury 08 

 

16.03.2015 11.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00433/FULL Mr M Ayre 
Barn On Whitemoor Lane  Cadbury 

Cadbury 08 

P
age 111



DELEG 

Erection of a ramp, erection of raised 
decking and installation of 2 metal 
flues (Revised Scheme) 

 

16.03.2015 01.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00438/TPO Mrs J Cookson 
Land Adjacent to 16 Jocelyn Mead 
Crediton 
Application to crown lift 2 Red Cedar 
trees and remove one Red Cedar tree 
protected by Tree Preservation Order 
no. 99/00007/TPO 

Crediton Town 18 

 

16.03.2015 11.05.2015 
Application Part 
Granted/Part 
Refused 

15/00439/TPO Ms R Skinner 
Southfield Southfield Drive 
Application to carry out works to trees 
protected by Tree Preservation Order 
No. 99/00007/TPO 

Crediton Town 18 

 

16.03.2015 11.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00443/FULL Mr P Collier 
Land at NGR 282937 100306 St 
Saviours Way 
Variation of condition (2) of planning 
permisison 13/00932/FULL for 
changes to north ,east and west 
elevations of dwelling 

Crediton Town 18 

 

16.03.2015 20.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00445/LBC Mr & Mrs J Freeman 
Foxowls Holcombe Rogus 
Listed Building Consent for internal 
alterations and replacement of 
external door with glazing 

Holcombe Rogus 29 

 

16.03.2015 14.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00446/FULL Mr F Elston 
Hatherland Farm Washfield 
Erection of a milking parlour/collecting 
yard 

Washfield 56 

 

P
age 112



DELEG 

16.03.2015 28.04.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00447/FULL Mr D Stone 
Howden Dene Tiverton 
Retention of summer house with 
attached logstore and erection of 
carport 

Tiverton 52 

 

17.03.2015 12.05.2015 
Refusal of Prior 
Approval 

15/00394/PNCOU Mr B Summers 
Land and Buildings at NGR 291372 
123742 (Lower Langridge Farm) 
Exebridge 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to a dwelling 
under Class MB(a) 

Oakford 39 

 

17.03.2015 12.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00405/FULL Mr Tony Bent 
Priory Cottage 13A Gravel Walk 
Removal of condition 2c of Planning 
Permission 12/00431/FULL 

Cullompton 21 

 

17.03.2015 13.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00408/FULL Mr & Mrs Robert Gubby 
Rosevale House Orchard Leigh 
Erection of an extension to provide an 
annexe 

Tiverton 52 

 

17.03.2015 20.04.2015 
Refuse permission 

15/00409/HRN Mr A Venner 
Land at NGR 302138 113709 
(Battens Farm) Sampford Peverell 
Hedgerow Removal Notice for the 
removal of 217 metres of hedgerow 

Halberton 25 

 

17.03.2015 11.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00453/CLU Mr C Kellow 
Annexe Jindivick 
Certificate of Lawfulness for the 
existing use of annexe previously 
approved for disabled use 

Willand 59 

 

P
age 113



DELEG 

17.03.2015 18.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00454/FULL Mr Dibble 
Bycott Farm Lower Town 
Erection of an agricultural livestock 
building (614.98 sqm) 

Halberton 25 

 

18.03.2015 08.05.2015 
Refusal of Prior 
Approval 

15/00410/PNCOU Mr M Baker 
Land & Buildings at Middle Rill Farm 
Shillingford 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to a 
dwellinghouse under Class Q...... The 
application was submitted formally as 
an Class MB (a), which is now 
revoked 

Bampton 01 

 

18.03.2015 08.05.2015 
Refusal of Prior 
Approval 

15/00411/PNCOU Mr M Baker 
Land and Buildings at NGR 299633 
124399 (Rill Barn) Shillingford 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to a 
dwellinghouse under Class Q 

Bampton 01 

 

18.03.2015 11.05.2015 
Withdrawn 

15/00418/PNCOU Mr & Mrs Blake 
Land at NGR 301850 114881 
(Broadview Farm) Uplowman 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to a dwelling 
under Class MB(a) and MB(b) 

Uplowman 54 

 

18.03.2015 11.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00458/FULL Mr & Mrs N Webber 
Land at NGR 304003 119376 
(Hurfords Mead) Hockworthy 
Change of use of land from agriculture 
to manege 

Hockworthy 28 

 

18.03.2015 13.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00460/FULL Mr Paul Netherway 
Great Landside Westleigh 

Sampford Peverell 42 

P
age 114



DELEG 

Erection of an agricultural livestock 
building 

 

19.03.2015 28.04.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00436/PNHH Mrs Sue Brown 
Mooracre Barn Crediton 
Prior notification for the erection of an 
extension, extending 3.9m to the rear, 
maximum height of 3m and eave 
height of 3m 

Sandford 43 

 

19.03.2015 12.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00463/FULL Miss C Smith 
Land at NGR 271455 111967 South 
of Newlyn 
Erection of a dwelling 

Chawleigh 10 

 

20.03.2015 14.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00428/FULL Ms Mary Criddle 
Land at NGR 311866 112350 (Nelson 
Farm) 
Erection of a timber stable block 

Hemyock 26 

 

20.03.2015 15.05.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00429/PNCOU Mr P Kelland 
Land at NGR 297899 120559 
(Bampton Down) Cove 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to a dwelling 
under Class Q (a) & (b) 

Tiverton 52 

 

20.03.2015 05.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00464/FULL Mr A Eills 
Brookham Withleigh 
Conversion of barn to holiday let 

Tiverton 52 

 

20.03.2015 15.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00480/FULL Mr P Kelland 
Land at NGR 297705 120536 
(Bampton Down) Cove 
Formation of visibility splay and 
alterations to access 

Tiverton 52 

 

P
age 115



DELEG 

20.03.2015 07.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00481/TPO Mrs Peto 
Lapford Northern Wood Lapford 
Application to fell 3 Ash trees 
protected by Tree Preservation No. 
08/00005/TPO 

Lapford 33 

 

20.03.2015 20.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00482/FULL Mrs W Heddon 
The Willows Copplestone 
 Erection of an extension 

Copplestone 62 

 

23.03.2015 14.05.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00441/PNCOU Mr & Mrs Stanbury 
Cleaveanger Farm Coldridge 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of agricultural building to dwelling 
under Class Q(a) and (b) ..... This 
application was formally submitted 
under Class MB(b) 
 
 

Nymet Rowland 38 

 

23.03.2015 13.05.2015 
Refusal of Prior 
Approval 

15/00442/PNCOU Mr K Thomas 
Foxlands Farm Hockworthy 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of agricultural building to dwelling 
under Class Q 

Hockworthy 28 

 

23.03.2015 18.05.2015 
Refuse permission 

15/00448/FULL Mr Mike Johnson 
Land Adjacent to Jersey Cottage 
Sampford Peverell 
 Erection of a dwelling 

Sampford Peverell 42 

 

23.03.2015 18.05.2015 
Approval of Prior 
Approval 

15/00459/PNCOU Mr P Roberts 
Land and Buildings at NGR 303198 
115178 (Micholsfield) Whitnage Road 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of agricultural building to 2 dwellings 
under class Q... This application was 

Uplowman 54 

P
age 116



DELEG 

formally submitted under class MB (b) 

 

23.03.2015 18.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00486/FULL Mr A Cummins 
Marwoods Farm Cove 
Conversion of redundant barn to 
dwelling (Revised Scheme) 

Tiverton 52 

 

23.03.2015 20.05.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00487/PNHH Mr C Smith 
19 The Brendons Sampford Peverell 
Prior notification for the erection of a 
conservatory extending 4.5m to the 
rear, maximum height of 3.5m, eaves 
height of 2.4m 

Sampford Peverell 42 

 

23.03.2015 18.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00489/FULL Mr Gordon Smith 
Land at NGR 288457 
106504(Stockadon) Cheriton 
Fitzpaine 
Erection of an agricultural livestock 
building 

Cheriton Fitzpaine 12 

 

24.03.2015 18.05.2015 
Not Permitted 
Development 

15/00455/PNCOU Mr & Mrs LJ & AM Vellacott 
Land and Buildings at NGR 295219 
125025 (The Old Pumphouse) 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to a dwelling 
house under use class Q (a) and (b) 
 

Morebath 36 

 

24.03.2015 19.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00462/FULL Mr & Mrs AM Butcher 
Crossways Cottage Bampton 
Erection of first floor extension 

Bampton 01 

 

24.03.2015 19.05.2015 
Not Permitted 
Development 

15/00465/PNCOU Mr & Mrs Brian Copley 
Lower Burston Farm Burston Lane 
Prior notification for the change of use 

Zeal Monachorum 61 

P
age 117



DELEG 

of an agricultural building to a dwelling 
under Class Q(a) and Q(b) 

 

24.03.2015 12.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00499/FULL Mr A Davies 
Little Moorhayes Washfield 
Erection of extension 

Washfield 56 

 

25.03.2015 19.05.2015 
Withdrawn 

15/00466/PNCOU Mrs D Webber 
Land and Buildings at NGR 292781 
107703 (Heronsfield) 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of 2 agricultural buildings to 2 
dwellings under Class MB(a) 

Cadeleigh 09 

 

25.03.2015 20.05.2015 
Approval of Prior 
Approval 

15/00467/PNCOU Mr R & Mrs P Stockman 
West Dunster Cadeleigh 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to a dwelling 
under Class Q 

Cadeleigh 09 

 

25.03.2015 12.05.2015 
Withdrawn 

15/00469/PNCOU Mr Anthony Hawkings 
Land and Buildings at NGR 307919 
114304 (Lower Penslade) 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to a dwelling 
under Class MB(a) 

Uffculme 53 

 

25.03.2015 19.05.2015 
Approval of Prior 
Approval 

15/00470/PNCOU Mr W Elworthy 
Land and Buildings at NGR 300589 
105835 Colebrooke Lane 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to dwelling 
under Class Q (a) and (b) 

Cullompton 21 

 

25.03.2015 18.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00512/FULL Mr Hookins 
Saffron 46-48 Bampton Street 
Replacement of existing corrugated 

Tiverton 52 

P
age 118



DELEG 

asbestos sheeting, corrugated plastic 
sheeting and tarpaulin roof covering 
with corrugated steel sheeting 

 

25.03.2015 20.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00517/FULL Mr J Sanders 
Land and Buildings at NGR 279484 
103796 Endfield Farm 
Erection of two covered yard 
extensions 

Sandford 43 

 

26.03.2015 13.05.2015 
Withdrawn 

15/00472/FULL Mr P Scantlebury 
Rigglesfoot Hemyock 
Erection of single storey extension to 
rear to form annex 

Hemyock 26 

 

26.03.2015 20.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00530/FULL Mr P Quartly 
5 Butts Close Chawleigh 
Erection of two-storey side and rear 
extension 

Chawleigh 10 

 

30.03.2015 20.04.2015 
No Objection 

15/00490/DCC Devon County Council 
Viridor Waste Management Ltd Broad 
Path Landfill Site 
County Matter Application for a 
proposed temporary soil stocking area 
to support restoration of Broadpath 
Landfill site 

Uffculme 53 

 

30.03.2015 27.04.2015 
Not Permitted 
Development 

15/00494/PNAG Mr C Webber 
Land at NGR 290977 112894(Higher 
Withleigh) Withleigh 
Prior Notification for the erection of an 
agricultural storage building 

Tiverton 52 

 

31.03.2015 24.04.2015 
Grant permission 

13/01601/MFUL/NMA Mid Devon District Council 
Car Park and Garages Angel Hill 
Non-Material Amendment for the 

Tiverton 52 

P
age 119



DELEG 

alteration of windows - conversion of 
3-11 St Andrew Street and 1-2 Ham 
Place into 14 dwellings 

 

31.03.2015 21.05.2015 
Approval of Prior 
Approval 

15/00493/PNCOU Mr J Littlefield 
Land and Buildings at NGR 286005 
108526(Yeo Hill Farm) Poughill 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of agricultural building to 2 dwellings 
under Class Q(a) and Q(b) 

Poughill 40 

 

31.03.2015 17.04.2015 
Withdrawn 

15/00497/PNCOU Mr A Rigamonti 
Ramstorland Farm Stoodleigh 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of agricultural barns to 2 dwellings 
under Class MB (a) and (b) 

Washfield 56 

 

01.04.2015 18.05.2015 
Withdrawn 

15/00502/PNCOU Mr & Mrs Farley 
Building Adjacent to Pond View 
Uffculme 
Prior notification for the change of use 
of an agricultural building to a dwelling 
under Class MB(a) 

Uffculme 53 

 

01.04.2015 28.04.2015 
Withdrawn 

15/00548/FULL Mr P Williams & Mr T Beagent 
25 Exeter Road Crediton 
Erection of 4 dwellings and formation 
of new access following demolition of 
sheds and outbuildings 

Crediton Town 18 

 

07.04.2015 20.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00560/FULL Mr & Mrs Miller 
Leafield New Buildings 
 Erection of conservatory 

Sandford 43 

 

08.04.2015 20.05.2015 
No Objection 

15/00525/CAT Mr P Keeble 
The Willows Cheriton Fitzpaine 
Notification of intention to fell 3 Fir 

Cheriton Fitzpaine 12 

P
age 120



DELEG 

trees within the Conservation Area 

 

08.04.2015 12.05.2015 
Withdrawn 

15/00528/CAT Mr P & Mrs J Crossman 
2 The Maltings Crediton 
Notification of intention to fell 1 Ash, 1 
Pine and 1 Beech tree within the 
Conservation Area 

Crediton Town 18 

 

08.04.2015 19.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00562/FULL Dr Wareham 
10 Tiverton Road Cullompton 
Installation of 7 replacement windows 
and 2 doors 

Cullompton 21 

 

09.04.2015 20.05.2015 
No Objection 

15/00527/CAT Mr D Collins 
The Old Post Office Colebrooke 
Notification of intention to fell 1 Beach 
Pine and 1 Lawson Pine and carry out 
works to 1 Yew tree within the 
Conservation Area 

Colebrooke 17 

 

09.04.2015 12.05.2015 
No Objection 

15/00531/CAT Mr James Parsons 
6 Parsonage Street Bradninch 
Notification of intention to remove 2 
Leylandii Cypress and 1 Pittosporum 
within a Conservation Area 

Bradninch 04 

 

09.04.2015 20.05.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00532/PNHH Mr & Mrs P Harris 
Wick Lea Nomansland 
Prior notification for the erection of an 
extension extending 4.95m to rear, 
maximum height of 2.7m and eaves 
height of 2.45m 

Thelbridge 50 

 

09.04.2015 01.05.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00541/PNAG Mr P Stevens 
Land at NGR 281992 104542 
(Doggetsbeer) Sandford 

Sandford 43 

P
age 121



DELEG 

Prior notification for the erection of a 
polytunnel 

 

09.04.2015 20.05.2015 
Grant permission 

15/00569/FULL Mrs J Simm 
1A Head Weir Road Cullompton 
Erection of a conservatory and 
addition of window 
 

Cullompton 21 

 

13.04.2015 13.05.2015 
No Objection 

15/00545/CAT Mr J Helliwell 
15 South Street Holcombe Rogus 
Notification of intention to fell 1 
Pittosporum Bush in a Conservation 
Area 

Holcombe Rogus 29 

 

14.04.2015 11.05.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00566/PNAG Mr T Durman 
Land and Buildings at NGR 314929 
115648 (Middle Ashculme Farm) 
Prior Notification for the erection of an 
agricultural building 

Hemyock 26 

 

14.04.2015 05.05.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00568/PNAG Mr D Partridge 
Land and Buildings at NGR 277348 
94119 (North of Venbridge House) 
Cheriton Bishop 
Prior notification for the upgrade and 
replacement of an agricultural track 

Cheriton Bishop 11 

 

17.04.2015 18.05.2015 
No Objection 

15/00598/CAT Mr Mark Anderson 
Buehills Holcombe Rogus 
Notification of intention to remove 1 
beech tree within a Conservation Area 

Holcombe Rogus 29 

 

20.04.2015 18.05.2015 
Approval of Prior 
Approval 

15/00609/PNAG Mr Roger Lee 
Land at NGR 282833 105295 Dowrich 
Farm 
Prior notification for the construction 

Sandford 43 

P
age 122



DELEG 

of 2 new agricultural tracks 

 

21.04.2015 14.05.2015 
Not Permitted 
Development 

15/00628/PNAG Mr Colin Bucknell 
Cranklands Farm Cullompton 
Prior notification for the erection of an 
agricultural storage building (1) 

Cullompton 21 

 

22.04.2015 20.05.2015 
Approval of Prior 
Approval 

15/00631/PNAG Mr W Butterfield 
Land at NGR 283292 101068 
(Pounds Hill) Crediton 
Prior notification for the formation of a 
road 

Sandford 43 

 

23.04.2015 11.05.2015 
Withdrawn 

13/00717/FULL/NMA Mr S Russell 
Land and Buildings at NGR 295243 
122092 (Plot 4 -Former Bampton 
School) School Close 
Variation of condition 2 of planning 
permission 11/00052/MFUL to allow 
substitution of housetypes on plots 1, 
2, 4, 20, 26 and 27, change of 
external materials on plots 4, 5 and 6 
and removal of condition 25 to allow 
plot 21 to be allocated land previously 
proposed as allotment - Non-material 
amendment to allow the substitution 
of previously approved plans 

Bampton 01 

 

28.04.2015 20.05.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00669/PNAG Mr J Kittow 
Silverhaye Farm Silverton 
Prior notification for the erection of a 
cover over an existing manure store 

Silverton 45 

 

29.04.2015 20.05.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00686/PNAG Mr P Greig 
Land and Buildings at NGR 301690 
102530 (South Of Pipers Farm) 

Bradninch 04 

P
age 123



DELEG 

 Prior notification for the erection of a 
roof to cover existing manure store 

 

01.05.2015 20.05.2015 
Development 
Acceptance 

15/00698/PNAG Mr J Kittow 
Silverhaye Farm Silverton 
Prior notification for the erection of an 
agricultural lean-to building 

Silverton 45 

 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Background Papers:   Contained in application files referred to. 
 
 
 

 P
age 124



P
age 125

A
genda Item

 10



P
age 126



P
age 127

A
genda Item

 11



P
age 128



AGITEM 

 
 
Application No. 99/03432/FULL Agenda Item 12 

 
 
 
Grid Ref: 
 

112789 : 299456 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Applicant: Hartnoll Farms 
  
Location: Hartnoll Farm Post 

Hill Halberton  
  
Proposal: Conversion of 

redundant farm 
building to an 
agricultural workers 
dwelling 

 
  
Date Valid: 15th May 2002 
 
 

 
 

Page 129

Agenda Item 12



AGITEM 

AGENDA ITEM 12 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
3rd June 2015 

 
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION 
 

99/03432/FULL - CONVERSION OF REDUNDANT FARM BUILDING 
TO AN AGRICULTURAL WORKERS DWELLING - HARTNOLL FARM 
POST HILL HALBERTON  
 
 
Reason for Report: 
 
The applicant has made a request to this authority for a variation to the s106 legal 
agreement attached to this consent. In line with the adopted Scheme of Delegation, this 
request is reported to committee as the previous application was considered by Planning 
Committee back in 2000. 
 
The Planning Committee considered an officer report on this matter on 22nd April 2015 but 
did not feel that the area of alternative land being offered ( being an area of woodland which 
neither equated in size or value to the area of the land being released from the agreement. 
Consequently Committee resolved to defer the decision to allow officers to negotiate with the 
owner for an area of land to be included which was of an equivalent size and quality to that 
being removed from the agreement. Details of the revised land being affected are set out in 
Paragraph 2.3. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
To allow the proposed variation to the s106 (to remove one area of land and replace it 
with another) and instruct the Legal Services Manager accordingly 
 

 
Relationship to Corporate Plan: 
 
None 
 

Financial Implications: 
 
There is no fee to the applicant for making this request, but MDDC legal fees will need to be 
covered by the applicant 
 
Legal Implications: 
 
A supplemental s106 agreement or Deed of Variation will be required 
 
Risk Assessment: 
 
None 
 
Consultation carried out with: 
 
1. Chair of Planning Committee 

Page 130



AGITEM 

 
2. Vice chair of planning committee 
 
3. Ward Member 
 
4.  Parish Council 
 
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Planning consent (ref: 99/03432/FULL) was granted by the Local Planning Authority  

for the conversion of a redundant farm building to an agricultural workers dwelling, 
subject to a s106 agreement tying the agricultural land which made up the holding to 
the dwelling so that neither could be sold off independently of the other. The dwelling 
the subject of that application is now known at ‘Red Linhay’ 

 
1.2 In 2014, the Local Planning Authority granted planning consent for a 500kW 

anaerobic digester (AD) on land to the east of ‘Red Linhay’ (ref: 13/01605/MFUL). 
The application site is on an area of land included within the s106 agreement 
mentioned above and therefore the Local Planning Authority have now received a 
request to remove that area of land from the s106 agreement to enable it to be sold 
to the AD operators. The applicant has offered a further area of land for inclusion 
within the s106 agreement to replace it. 

 
1.3 In line with the adopted procedure for dealing with these requests, the Chair and Vice 

Chair of Planning Committee, the Ward Member and the Parish Council have all 
been consulted and no objections have been received. 

 
2.0 MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
2.1 Planning permission was granted only last year for the AD plant and therefore its 

provision on the site in question is accepted by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
2.2 The applicant has advised that the removal of the area of land included within the AD 

application amounts to only 4 acres or 2.2% of the total amount of land which makes 
up the holding.  

 
2.3 The applicant is proposing to add in an alternative area of land measuring approx. 

5.94 acres in substitution for the 4 acres of land being removed. The previous area of 
land being offered was 3.8 acres of woodland. 

 
2.4 Therefore as a consequence of the proposal, the land for which the Local Planning 

Authority granted planning consent for the AD plant is released and additional land 
incorporated, therefore the size of the agricultural holding is protected whilst allowing 
the development of the AD plant to proceed. 

 
3.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 Your officers are satisfied that the removal of the area associated with the AD plant 

and its replacement with an area of land of a similar size will not affect the viability of 
the agricultural holding and therefore recommend that the Legal Services Manager 
be instructed to draw up the necessary Deed of Variation or supplemental s106 
agreement  

  

Page 131



AGITEM 

 
Contact for any more information Mrs Alison Fish (ext 4266) 

 
Background Papers Application 99/03432/FULL, application 

13/01605/MFUL plus correspondence from 
applicants solicitor in making their request 
 

File Reference 99/03432/FULL 
 

Circulation of the Report 
 

Cllr Richard Chesterton 
Cllr Ray Radford 

 
  

  

Page 132


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	8 THE PLANS LIST
	9 THE DELEGATED LIST
	10 MAJOR APPLICATIONS WITH NO DECISION
	11 APPEAL DECISIONS
	12 APPLICATION 99/03432/FULL - CONVERSION OF REDUNDANT FARM BUILDING TO AN AGRICULTURAL WORKERS DWELLING AT HARTNOLL FARM, HALBERTON

